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Corporate Profile
NG bl

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited
has been listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong since
2003. The Group is the leading producer
of fermentation-based amino acids, food
additive products and cassava starch-
based industrial products in Asia. Our
products are sold to food distributors,
international trading companies, and
manufacturers of food, paper, textile, and
chemical products in Vietnam and other
ASEAN countries, the PRC, Japan, Taiwan
and several European countries. Most

of our products are marketed under the
VEDAN brand name.

Since the 1970s, our products have been marketed in Vietnam, the
PRC, and other ASEAN countries. To accelerate market expansion, the
Group established Vietnam Vedan in 1991 as our major production
base. Since then, the Group's production has been undergoing
continuous expansion due to strong growing demand. The Group
is currently the largest MSG producer in the Southeast Asian
region, and the largest supplier of lysine and cassava starch-based
industrial products in Vietnam. In 1995, Vedan acquired a factory in
Xiamen to focus on developing the PRC market. In 2004, the Group
further acquired the assets and MSG business of Shanghai Vedan
Foods Company Limited, which will be developed into its business
operations center in the PRC, signifying its determination and
commitment to become a major player in the PRC market. To ensure
the Group has a stable supply of starch and a strong production
platform for starch related products, Vedan Vietnam acquired Ve-Thai
Tapioca-Starch Co. Ltd. in November 2005. In December the same
year, Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise Co., Ltd. was established
and started production of GA in April 2006. Shandong Vedan
Snowflake will play a crucial role in Vedan’s global supply chain in the
future, allowing it to meet the demand and to stabilise prices of raw
materials, hence facilitate its business development strategy in the
PRC.

Leveraging on our production facilities located in Vietnam and the
PRC, steady upstream supply of raw materials, our possessing of
advanced fermentation production technology and other biochemical
processing technology, coupled with the experienced management
team, the Group boasts strong competitiveness over its peers.
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Corporate Information

NAEAEH
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

BEt-A=Z+-BHLEE

For the year ended 31 December

2017 2016
Uss$’000 US$'000 Difference
TER FTEx =82
Revenue U g 322,805 327,640 (1.5%)
Gross profit E7 68,137 79,030 (13.8%)
Profit for the year REZHM 18,738 22,233 (15.7%)
Profit attributable to owners BB AEERET 19,061 22,501 (15.3%)
Basic earnings per share BREAREF 1.25 US centsE il 1.48 US cents3
Diluted earnings per share BREERF 1.25 US centsE il 1.48 US cents3 1l
Final dividend proposed per share BxERREAR S 0.443 US centsE{l  0.837 US cents 1l
Total dividends paid and B REIR
proposed per share BREREER 0.750 US centsE{l  1.478 US cents 1L
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRES

Armed With Modern Technology
And Sound Management, We Have
Successfully Created A Number Of
Quality Products To Cater To The
Consumers’ Tastes And Demands.
BEHRRKR RSB

HEE R ZE

BEED NLDE
HEEAKRMEK.

Yang, Tou-Hsiung 1 58 ##
ChairmanE &

Long-established in Asia, Vedan International (Holdings) Limited is
a premier manufacturer of fermentation-based amino acids, food
additive and cassava starch-based products. Its prominent reputation
has been built on the quality manufacture of MSG, a key food
additive lying at the heart of the unique tastes of Asia’s two billion
consumers. The Group's vision of the future is simple: to expand
and enrich its markets across the Asian region while developing new
products for the demand of consumers.

In 2017, the global economy began to recover on the back of more
stable raw material prices, gradual recovery of the economy in Europe
and stronger economic momentum in the US, which in turn drove the
economies of emerging countries to grow steadily as well as stimulate
international trade. However, ongoing geopolitical tension and unrest
in regions such as Europe, the Middle East and Asia, combined with
interest rate hikes by the US Federal Reserve, led to fluctuations in
currency exchange rates and interest rates, triggering the threat of
inflation. All of these factors consequently brought uncertainty to the
market.
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Chairman’s Statement

TE®RES

With regard to our operations, the selling price and revenue of our
major products, in particular MSG and modified starch, were affected
by price competition in the market. Compounding matters, the surge
in the unit price of coal boosted energy costs which has been just
stabilised recently, hence the overall cost of production increased.
Our profit margin was directly affected by such intense price
competition in the market and rising production costs. The Group
has therefore continued to direct focus on stabilising costs, actively
expand its business and boost sales, and develop new products and
markets, with the ultimate goal of strengthening profitability.

Looking at the Group's operations and profit during the year, revenue
amounted to approximately US$322,000,000, around US$4,830,000
less than the preceding year, which was mainly due to intense
price competition in the MSG and modified starch segments. Such
competition also dragged down selling prices and subsequently
affected business growth. While overall raw materials prices stood
firm or modestly tapered, energy cost increased, resulting in an
overall rise in production costs. Gross profit margin for the year was
21.1%, and gross profit declined appreciably by 13.8% from the
previous year to approximately US$68,140,000. Net profit declined by
US$3,490,000 from the preceding year to US$18,730,000, with net
profit margin at 5.8%.

Regarding major geographic markets and segment performance,
the demand for products and level of competition varied from
market to market. In Vietnam, the overall economy recorded stable
growth, and the prices of various raw materials remained stable.
The performances of some of our products, including soda, fertiliser
and feed products improved along with gradually increasing market
demand. Energy costs have, however, increased due to rising coal
prices, while the selling prices of MSG, modified starch and maltose
products dropped due to fierce price competition, which in turn
impacted on overall sales. In Vietnam, though adversely affected by
declining selling prices and increasing production costs, we were
nonetheless able to increase overall revenue by 1.5% year-on-year
owing to our solid branding and sales channels and growth spurred
by continuous development of new products in new markets. As for
the PRC, although the local economy has been gradually recovering,
the Group's operations still encountered headwinds as the MSG and
starch products businesses suffered from intense price competition.
We have worked hard to maintain profitability, and were modestly
successful that the profit is slightly higher than the preceding year,
even though revenue was approximately 8.8% lower than the
previous year. In respect of Japan and Korea, sales of fertilisers
stabilised due to greater demand in the two countries, but the
selling prices of MSG and modified starch declined slightly owing to
competition, hence revenue slid by roughly 3.0% in these markets
when compared with 2016. With respect to ASEAN countries, while
revenue increased due to greater demand for fertiliser and feed
products as well as maltose during the year, the selling prices of MSG
and modified starch decreased. Consequently, revenue derived from
ASEAN countries fell by approximately 1.9% when compared with
the previous year. It is worth noting as well that our operations in
Europe and the US were affected by intense competition, which led
to a modest decline in revenue.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

As for the performance of the Group's products, MSG and
seasonings, our major products were affected by weaker selling prices
and rising costs, and in particular, by keen competition in Vietnam
and the PRC. As a consequence, overall revenue fell by approximately
3.0% when compared with 2016. With regard to starch, which is
another key product segment, revenue has contracted by around
15.8% from the preceding year, even as raw material prices have
remained stable. The reason for the decrease was cut-throat price
competition in the PRC, Japan and Taiwan markets. A further product
that is part of the starch product category is maltose. While rapid
revenue growth was achieved in 2016, new competitors emerged in
Vietnam during 2017. Consequently, the selling price did not increase
along with sales volume, resulting in a decline in revenue of around
5.9% year-on-year. Nevertheless, the Group remains confident in
the potential of this product and in the market, and is developing
maltose and related products that possess higher value and margins.
In respect of hydrochloric acid and soda, which are under the
specialty chemicals segment, their performance grew steadily, with
revenue up 28.8% year-on-year. This was due to more stable demand
for fundamental chemicals in Vietnam as market sentiment in the
country gradually improved along with the strengthening economy.
With regard to our fertiliser and feed products, the demand from
Vietnam, Japan and ASEAN markets expanded, with sales also
climbing strongly by approximately 18.0% from the previous year,
and this was despite the selling price of similar products remaining
low. Demand has begun to rise amid keen market competition.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

In view of intense price competition and rise in production costs
during the year, the Group directed its focus on strengthening its
businesses and improving cost controls, while at the same time
developing new products and expanding its markets. It is worth
noting as well that the Group plans to set up a subsidiary in
Cambodia in a move to promote local sales and seek new business
opportunities. To cope with the rapidly evolving and competitive
environment, the Group will review and timely devise contingency
strategies and mechanisms, as well as adopt a more flexible raw
material procurement procedure. Furthermore, it will steadily work
towards improving production procedures and technologies. Such
efforts will help to stabilise costs and maintain the competitiveness
of the Group's production capabilities. Besides, given that trading
opportunities and conditions in Vietnam and ASEAN countries have
been gradually improving, leading to prospects of mid-to-long-term
economic growth. The Group will therefore also leverage its sales and
marketing capabilities to seize opportunities to expand, particularly
in the Vietnam market, though maintaining an eye on emerging
markets that hold development potential. Concurrently, the Group
will strengthen its distribution channels. Yet another effort by the
Group will be to integrate its marketing strategies as it widens
its sales channels in order to realize the full potential of its sales
network. Furthermore, research and development will be intensified
so as to introduce new products and raise brand awareness. As
for the PRC operation specifically, besides bolstering the business
development team, the Group will continue to expand in regional
markets and develop new products with higher gross profit margin.
Apart from that, the Group will continue to identify and evaluate
potential acquisitions and strategic collaborations as it leverages its
strength in niche markets and international experience to accelerate
expansion of its overseas business presence, a benefit of which also
includes greater operational efficiency and profitability.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

We realize that the operating environment and market competition
will continue to rapidly evolve. In 2018, there will nonetheless
be ample opportunities created by broad-based global economic
growth. As for Vedan International’s operations, we expect the
Group to face challenges in the form of further escalation in raw
material prices and keen competition. To address these issues, we
will increase investment in developing new products and penetrating
new markets. By enhancing our branding efforts and more effectively
utilising channel resources, we will strive to improve the flexibility
and capability of our operations. In general, we will formulate
strategies for capturing opportunities created in response to the fast-
changing operating environment. At the same time, we will continue
to stabilise production costs and look for strategic collaboration
opportunities. In this way, we trust that we will be able to strengthen
and effectively execute sales strategies in an increasingly open
market, including in Vietnam where economic growth has been
stabilising. This will facilitate further expansion into different business
sectors and markets. Leveraging our strong business foundation,
our operations will develop and grow in a suitable and positive
manner. We are aware of the changing operating environment
and the opportunities presented to the Company, as well as the
responsibilities that it bears. The management at every level will
therefore execute strategies in a pragmatic and prudent manner, with
the aim of achieving further breakthroughs and milestones in terms
of its business performance and overall development.

By Order of the Board
Yang Tou-Hsiung
Chairman

27 March 2018
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As a successful long-term player in a RAHEBR T e S E R ATT

market with significant entry barriers, FES mMEBER KA
Vedan International has distinct Hf Z2AR/NZBFER
competitive advantages that add real FEDEMNMEENEE
value to its products. With advanced REmMT B KRR 2 B
expertise in large-scale fermentation B B N T8 R (b 22
technology, starch processing conversion % f#{t, 2255 3 £ 17 - K 5
technology and chemical and electro- [ B A B 35 e SR R EE SR R R
chemical technology, Vedan International B9 ¥ & 5 ° /& & 2K & Fl Bl i
is developing new products which R SEVE) S o

represent the latest breakthroughs in
industrial science and look set to be major
profit drivers in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The global economy has rebounded gradually in 2017 with a
broad-based worldwide recovery. The employment situation
and the labour market have continued to show improvement,
trading of bulk commodities and various raw materials has
picked up and pushed up prices, and international trade has
revived to end the continuous declining trend in the global
economic growth rate. Forecast data issued by International
Monetary Fund (IMF) indicated that global Gross Domestic
Product (GDP) growth rate was higher in 2017 when compared
with the same period in 2016. GDP in key economies including
the US, the Eurozone and Japan has also generally increased,
while emerging markets and developing economies are
expected to experience their first GDP growth in seven years.
Growth in global trading volume was satisfactory in 2017, and
the recovery of international trade has become an important
gear driving global economic growth. After remaining nearly
stagnant in the past decade, the global economy has finally
shown a clearer albeit mild inflection point. A number of
economic analysis reports mentioned that the global financial
crisis has essentially come to an end and the global economy is
gradually entering into a long cycle of recovery.

In Vietnam, the GDP growth rate in 2017 was 6.81%, higher
than its 6.7% target for the year. During the third and fourth
quarters, its economic growth exceeded 7%, and, on average,
the CPI was 3.53% higher than that in 2016. Besides, Vietnam
set a new record in import and export trading volume in 2017,
exceeding US$400 billion for the first time. Total exports and
total imports increased by 21.1% and 20.8% year-on-year
respectively, both representing the largest respective increases
over several years. Investment capital lending rose 10.8%
year-on-year at US$17.5 billion, reaching the highest level in
history. Total capital arising from registration of new enterprises
invested by foreign investors, an increase in capital injection
and acquisition of equity interest by foreign investors grew by
44.4% year-on-year. Foreign exchange reserves also surged to
a historic high and the growth in Vietnam'’s stock market was
the highest in Asia. These outstanding performances plus the
relatively stable interest rate and exchange rate have combined
to create a prosperous year for Vietnam's economy in 2017.

14  vedan International (Holdings) Limited Uk B (EZER)BRATR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

I. BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued) — R¥HBE(#®|)

The recovery and invigouration of the global and Vietnamese
economies was also accompanied by more intense competition
and rises in raw material and energy prices. The Group saw
both growth and decline in its main products. For example,
growth in demand for specialty chemicals, fertilisers and feed
products pushed up sales, while competition in the MSG,
modified starch and maltose product markets led to drop
in revenue and gross profit of these products. In 2017, the
Group's turnover decreased by 1.5% or US$4,835,000 year-
on-year to US$322,805,000; gross profit decreased by 13.8%
or US$10,893,000 year-on-year to US$68,137,000, with the
overall gross profit margin was down from 24.1% in 2016 to
21.1%. The Group's net profit for the year declined by 16% or
US$3,495,000 year-on-year to US$18,738,000, with net profit
margin down from 6.8% to 5.8% year-on-year. The drop in
price of some of its products due to market competition and
the increase in energy costs caused a slight decrease in the
Group’s revenue and profit during the period.

Looking at 2018, it is generally forecast that the global
economy will maintain its growth trend but still faces certain
challenges. The unstable political environment in the Middle
East and East Asia, and the potential disasters caused by
extreme weather events, as well as the general economic
factors such as rising trade protectionist sentiment in different
countries, the monetary policies of the US Federal Reserve
and the European Central Bank, changes in energy prices,
inflation and market competition resulting from excess
production capacity will affect the Group’s operation in varying
extents. Facing such uncertainties, the Group will prudently
and proactively implement strategies aiming to strengthen its
businesses, control production costs and develop new products
and new markets in order to raise revenue and profitability.
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Il. BUSINESS ANALYSIS
() Sales Analysis by Market

C BRSO

(=) WEHETH

Unit: US$'000 B FET
2017 2016 Difference
“E-—t& TR =82
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Country Bx kil % Gk % kit %
Vietnam il 162,986 50.5% 160,615 49.0% 2,371 1.5%
Japan A& 64,199 19.9% 66,793 20.4% -2,594 -3.9%
The PRC e 29,056 9.0% 31,853 9.7% -2,797 -8.8%
ASEAN RBEEAR 31,792 9.9% 32,422 9.9% -630 -1.9%
us x5 16,761 5.2% 19,042 5.8% -2,281 -12.0%
Others Hi 18,011 5.5% 16,915 5.2% 1,096 6.5%
Total At 322,805 100.0% 327,640 100.0% 4,835 -1.5%
7 Vietnam T

During the period, turnover from Vietnam
amounted to approximately US$162,986,000, an
increase of 1.5% or US$2,371,000 when compared
with 2016. The growth in revenue was mainly
because of the gradual improvement in overall
economic sentiment in Vietnam. Sales volume and
selling price, and hence turnover of soda products,
fertilisers and feed products were boosted as
market demand for these products increased. In
contrast, revenue of MSG, hydrochloric acid and
starch products dropped slightly due to import
price competition among industry peers. The
Group is actively exploring sales opportunities in
the consumer food sector in a bid to capture the
fast growing consumer product market, as well
as consolidating its sales channels to enhance
efficiency and increasing promotion of new
products. As a result, the share of the Group’s
revenue generated from the Vietnamese market
rose from 49.0% in 2016 to 50.5%.
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II. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)
() Sales Analysis by Market (continued)

2

Japan

During the period, revenue from the Japan market
decreased by 3.9% or US$2,594,000 year-on-
year to US$64,199,000, and the country remained
as the second largest geographic sales market of
the Group. The decrease in revenue was mainly
due to the lower price of modified starch and the
adjustment of product items, which caused the
sales amount to drop. Revenue from the Japan
market occupied 19.9% of the Group’s total
revenue during the period, which was slightly lower
than 20.4% in 2016.

The PRC

Revenue from the PRC market reached
US$29,056,000 during the period, representing
a decrease of US$2,797,000 or 8.8% from 2016.
Its share in the Group's total revenue was reduced
from 9.7% in 2016 to 9.0%. The decrease was
mainly because the competition in the modified
starch and MSG markets brought down product
selling prices, and the Group decided to avoid a
price war and maintain the selling price and profit
at a certain level to maintain profitable operations.
Although the revenue decreased, the profit was
still higher than the preceding year. The Group is
consolidating its sales network and developing more
new high value-added products in a bid to raise its
performance and market share.
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II. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)
() Sales Analysis by Market (continued)

4

ASEAN member countries

During the period, revenue from ASEAN member
countries, excluding Vietnam, decreased by 1.9%
or US$630,000 year-on-year to US$31,792,000,
and its contribution to the Group's total revenue
remains at 9.9%. The decrease in revenue during
the period was mainly because the revenue of MSG
moderately declined due to price competition,
but the sales of MSG and maltose had already
rebounded slightly due to higher demand. As for
the ASEAN market, the Group reinforced its market
channels and actively developed new markets
thereby managing to secure new customers. The
market has replaced the PRC market as the Group's
third largest geographic market as the Group is
proactively setting up its presence there. The Group
plans to establish a subsidiary in Cambodia, with
the aim to enhance the business team, further
develop the market and expand the sales network
and structure of the Group’s market in ASEAN.

The US

Revenue from the US market reached
US$16,761,000 in the period, a decrease of
US$2,281,000 or 12.0% from US$19,042,000 in
2016. The reduction in revenue was mainly due to
lower selling prices of MSG products and slowing
sales of maltose which was caused by decreasing
demand from distributors. Its contribution to the
Group's total revenue was down from 5.8% to
5.2%.

18  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk BIB: (325%) AR AT
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II. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)
() Sales Analysis by Market (continued)

6

Other regions

In other regions, mainly including Taiwan, Korea
and the European Union (“EU"), total revenue
during the period rose by 6.5% or US$1,096,000
to US$18,011,000, compared with US$16,915,000
in 2016. Its proportion in the Group’s total revenue
increased from 5.2% to 5.5%. The increase in

. BROW(E|)
(=) TEHETH (F)

6
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revenue was mainly contributed from higher
product sales of fertilisers and MSG.

(1) Sales Analysis by Product (Z) EmSEEIN

Unit : US$'000 B TETT
2017 2016 Difference
—E2—t5 —E—RF =82
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Item EH k1] % | % TR %
MSG/GA g/ ARk 220,491 68.3% 228,893 69.9% -8,402 -3.7%
Modified starch/ SR,/

Native starch RABH 34,005 10.5% 40,393 12.3% -6,388 -15.8%
Specialty chemicals FLEM 29,012 9.0% 22,518 6.9% 6,494 28.8%
Fertilisers and PRt E2 g

feed products 18,425 5.7% 15,613 4.8% 2,812 18.0%
Others Htty 20,872 6.5% 20,223 6.1% 649 3.2%
Total At 322,805 100.0% 327,640 100.0% 4,835 -1.5%

1 MSG/GA 1 g AEB

During the period, the revenue from MSG and
GA amounted to US$220,491,000, a decrease of
3.7% or US$8,402,000 from 2016. The drop in
the revenue from MSG was mainly because the
Group realised there was fierce competition in
major markets and lowered the selling prices and
sales volume of MSG products in certain markets,
so various markets recorded differing extents
of reduction. In general, the contribution from
the MSG and GA to the Group's total turnover
decreased from 69.9% in 2016 to 68.3%.
However, these items remained as the Group's most
important products.
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II. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)
() Sales Analysis by Product (continued)

2

Modified starch/Native starch

The drop in the materials cost of starch during
the period was conducive to controlling costs.
However, fierce price competition in most of the
markets, particularly in the PRC and Japan, resulted
in a sharp decrease in selling prices of certain
products, and the revenue dropped accordingly.
The Group’s revenue from modified starch and
native starch during the period dropped by 15.8%
or US$6,388,000 year-on-year to US$34,005,000
as the selling prices of modified starch obviously
decreased in different markets. As a result of the
drop in revenue, the contribution from starch
products to the Group’s total revenue also declined
from 12.3% to 10.5%.

Specialty chemicals/Fertilisers and feed products

The Group's specialty chemicals including
hydrochloric acid, soda and bleach are sold in
the Vietnam market. During the period, driven by
steady economic growth in Vietnam, the demand
for basic chemicals increased, resulting in a notable
surge of sales volume of this product category
when compared to 2016. Revenue from specialty
chemicals climbed by 28.8% or US$6,494,000 year-
on-year to US$29,012,000 while the contribution to
the Group’s total revenue rose from 6.9% to 9.0%.

As for fertilisers and feed products, subsequent
to the short-term drop of demand for the former
due to agricultural products in different regions
being adversely affected by the weather in 2016
and the over-supply of chemical fertilisers, the
demand gradually picked up in 2017, particularly
in the Vietnamese and ASEAN markets. Although
selling prices remained within the low price range
of 2016, sales volume surged significantly. The
Group's revenue from fertilisers and feed products
increased by 18% or US$2,812,000 year-on-year to
US$18,425,000 and its contribution to the Group’s
total revenue rose from 4.8% to 5.7%.
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II. BUSINESS ANALYSIS (continued)
() Sales Analysis by Product (continued)

4

Other products

Other products principally include the new products
and trading products business that the Group
operates in Vietnam and the PRC. Revenue reached
US$20,872,000, up 3.2% or US$649,000 year-
on-year, thanks to higher revenue from trading
products in the PRC and Vietnam. The contribution
from other products to the Group's total revenue
increased from 6.1% to 6.5%.

The amylase products including maltose that the
Group has launched in recent years generated
revenue of US$10,177,000 in 2017. The decrease
of US$637,000, or 5.9% recorded year-on-year is
believed to represent a short-term adjustment of
product items. The Group is highly confident in
the potential of this product and its quality has
increasingly gained recognition from its customers.
Thus, the Group is developing related products,
so as to broaden the scope of its business and the
source of its profitability.
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MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY OVERVIEW

(1)

(2)

Cassava

During the harvest season of 2016 to 2017, the material
costs of cassava and starch dropped due to an abundant
cassava harvest in Vietnam and Thailand, which was
favourable to the Group’s production costs during the
period. However, the selling prices of cassava starch-
related products also decreased accordingly. The relatively
lower price of cassava in 2017 reduced farmers’ incentive
to grow cassava, while the extended rainy season of
Thailand and the pests plaguing the plantations of
Northern Thailand also contributed to a drastically lower
harvest. Therefore, the significantly lower harvest has
acted to boost the price of cassava, and the material costs
of cassava starch is expected to surge in Vietnam in 2018.

Molasses

The global molasses market experienced a shortage
in 2016/2017. The growth in production capacity fell
significantly short of the demand, so the stock dropped
to the lowest level since 2010/2011. However, after
entering the production season of 2017/2018, the
supply balance started to change. Regarding the global
molasses production volume, the weather in the regions
that grow the prolific beetroot and sugar cane was good
and the sugar factories in Brazil reduced the production
of ethanol, so more sugar cane can be used to produce
sugar, which boosted the production volume of sugar and
molasses. The production volume of sugar in Thailand
recovered from the impact of El Nino and rose 17%
quarter-on-quarter to a new high. As the sugar market
continued to enjoy the free flow of goods after the EU
called off the restriction of Common Agricultural Policy
(CAP), and with the abundant harvest resulting from
good weather, the supply of beetroot molasses increased.
According to a report from the International Sugar
Organisation, the production volume of sugar increased
by around 6.6% in the production season of 2017/2018
but the consumer demand for sugar only climbed around
1.7%, so an excess of supply is expected in the global
sugar market. The price of molasses might remain stable
in 2018. However, due to the implementation of biomass
alcohol policies in India, Thailand, Pakistan and the PRC
whereby part of the sugar beet supply is switched from
molasses to production of biomass alcohol, the supply
and demand, as well as the price of molasses may be
adversely affected.
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MAJOR RAW MATERIALS/ENERGY OVERVIEW
(continued)

(3)

Energy

As for the major sources of energy in the world, oil,
natural gas and thermal coal followed similar trends. In
the first half of 2017, the prices were stable, but began
to rise in the second half, particularly for oil and thermal
coal which even surged to the highest level in three years.
The main reasons behind the surge included the strong
demand in Asian countries and continuous negative news
from main fuel-producing countries, for instance, the
policies of capacity reduction and mining hour regulations
in the PRC, the cyclones in Australia, persistent
downpours in Indonesia, etc. Despite the trading volume
of coal in Europe and South Africa dropping substantially
in 2017, the austerity measures for the coal industry have
gradually changed from “reduction of excessive capacity
and restriction on output” in 2016 to “securing supply
and stabilising coal prices” in 2017. In the coal industry,
the PRC and India have greater influence on the demand
of the global coal market as the aggregate consumption
of these two emerging economies accounted for
61.6% of global consumption (coal consumption in
Asia accounted for 73.8% of global consumption). The
demand of these two large consumers should not change
too much in the short term, so the coal price is expected
to remain at a high level in 2018.

With regard to the cost of electricity, no adjustment was
made to the electricity tariff in Vietnam in the first half of
2017. However, under the pressure of rising coal prices,
Electricity of Vietnam announced that the electricity tariff
would rise by 3.17% effective from 1 December 2017,
the first such increase within the past three years. In spite
of this situation, with its new energy system commencing
operation, the Group has increased the use of self-
generated electricity. Hence, the upward adjustment of
electricity tariff had only an insignificant impact on the
Group.
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IV. FINANCIAL REVIEW

1.  Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group had cash and cash equivalents, short-
term bank deposits and structured bank deposit of
US$69,645,000, US$18,852,000 or around 21.3%
less than that at the end of 2016. Short-term bank
borrowings increased by US$3,286,000 or around
26.0% to US$15,906,000 compared with that at
the end of 2016, while middle-to-long-term bank
borrowings declined by US$4,699,000 or around 19.4%
to US$19,491,000. Total bank borrowings amounted
to US$35,397,000, US$1,413,000 or around 3.8% less
than that at the end of 2016. The borrowings were
mainly denominated in US dollars, representing 98.1%
of the total borrowing while the remaining 1.9% was in
New Taiwan dollars. The proportions of short-term and
medium-to-long-term bank borrowings were 44.9% and
55.1% respectively. During the year, net finance income
of US$49,000 was recorded in 2017, while net finance
costs of US$189,000 were recorded in 2016.

Trade receivables were US$31,651,000, representing
an increase of US$3,658,000 or around 13.1% when
compared with that at the end of 2016. Around 57.9%
of the trade receivables were due within 30 days. As at
31 December 2017, total inventory was US$82,868,000,
up by US$17,586,000 or around 26.9% when compared
with that at the end of 2016, and included a higher
proportion of raw materials.

As the bank borrowings declined, the gearing ratio (total
borrowings to total equity ratio) was 12.5%, lower than
13.2% at the end of 2016. Since cash decreased but still
exceeded borrowings, net gearing ratio (total borrowings
less cash and deposits to total equity ratio) was —12.1%,
higher than —18.5% at the end of 2016.

Current ratio was 3.8 at the end of 2017, slightly lower
than 4.0 at the end of 2016, while the quick ratio
declined from 2.7 at the end of 2016 to 2.2 due to the
increase in inventory. Although both the current ratio
and the quick ratio dropped, the financial position of the
Group remained sound.
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IV. FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

2.

Capital expenditure

During the year, capital expenditure amounted to
approximately US$20,539,000, US$8,386,000 higher
than the capital expenditure of US$12,153,000 recorded
in 2016.

Exchange rate

The economy of Vietnam achieved remarkable growth in
2017 and thus the import and export volume significantly
increased with a trade surplus, foreign direct investment
significantly rose, and the country’s foreign exchange
reserve surged to a historical high. All these factors has
helped stabilise the exchange rate of the Vietnam Dong.
The State Bank of Vietnam announced that the Vietnam
Dong depreciated by 1.2% in 2017, from 22,159
Vietnam Dong/US dollar at the end of 2016 down to
22,425 Vietnam Dong/US dollar in 2017. However, the
general bank and market exchange rates were similar
to the end of last year with an appreciation of the
Vietnam Dong (the interbank exchange rate of Vietnam
Dong appreciated by 30 Vietnam Dong/US dollar when
compared with the end of 2016). Entering 2018, the
economy of Vietnam is generally expected to achieve
continued growth as the export volume and foreign
investment are expected to rise, the withdrawal of state
capital will boost the supply of foreign currency and the
country’s foreign exchange reserve will increase. In this
regard, the exchange rate of Vietnam Dong to the US
dollar is expected to remain stable in 2018.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly engaged
in domestic distribution and the transactions there
are denominated in RMB. During 2015 and 2016,
the median exchange rate of the RMB depreciated by
6%-6.6%. Stepping into 2017, the global economy
has continued its recovery, the international financial
markets have remained relatively stable, and the PRC
economy has demonstrated a clear steady upward growth
momentum. The stability, coordination and sustainability
of economic development are strengthening, so the RMB
is generally likely to continue to appreciate or stabilise
this year. The exchange rate of the RMB to the US dollar
has appreciated around 6% in 2017, a relatively high
increment over past five years.
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IV. FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

4. Earnings per share and Dividends
Basic earnings per share were 1.25 US cents during the
period. The Board has resolved to declare the payment of
a final dividend of 0.443 US cents per share. The dividend
payout ratio was 60%.

V. PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2018, in face of the changing global
backdrop and shifting economic trends, although the Group
is optimistic about the projections of global economic growth,
as excessive capacity still exists in many commodities, the price
competition in the market is expected to continue. Moreover,
factoring in the uncertainties from the policies of major
countries around the world, future economic conditions and
trends are likely to become more complicated.

Nevertheless, the Group has reinforced its operational structure
in recent years, by securing a stable supply of raw materials,
improving production efficiency, stabilising production costs
and strengthening its marketing and business development
activities including developing new products, new markets and
new customers. All of these efforts have brought a measure
of encouraging success. Despite the uncertainty in the future,
the Group will continue to adhere to its development strategies
and adopt measures to ensure that these strategies are well-
implemented, highlighted by the following:

- Product lines will be restructured in order to raise the
proportion of high value-added products. The number
of low gross profit items will be reduced to maintain
reasonable profitability of products and, in turn,
operations.

- New products are to be actively developed while the
Group strengthens its business in new markets. The
Group will increase the number of new agents and
customers through strengthening its business structure.
Meanwhile, it will enhance the existing distribution
channels and maximise the branding efforts so as to
further reinforce its business development.

- The Group will actively diversify the sources of raw

materials and will strengthen and secure the procurement
of critical materials in bulk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

V.

PROSPECTS (continued)

The Group will continue to upgrade production
technology in order to improve the production efficiency.
At the same time, it will also increase capital expenditure
to expand the production scale of high-potential products
and implement energy-saving measures.

The Group will develop customised production techniques
and enhance the production scale of new products by
more effectively utilising its resources, collaborating
across different industries and with different customers,
conducting regular evaluations of its partnerships and
working more closely with customers. More products
from third parties will be introduced to fulfill customers’
needs in a segmented market and to bolster offerings to
niche markets.

Based on the strategy of “co-opetition”, the production
base in Vietnam will be used to develop markets in
ASEAN and Free Trade Agreement (FTA) nations, enabling
the Group to develop new businesses with added value.

Business footholds will be set up in ASEAN countries
to extend its business network from Vietnam, explore
business opportunities for the Group’s products, broaden
its brand influence and eventually expand its business
presence across the region.

By strengthening its financial management, the Group
can enhance efficiency and optimise the asset utilisation
rate. Steps will also be taken to mitigate the risk of
foreign exchange and interest rate fluctuations amidst the
potential for increased turbulence in financial markets.

To conclude, the Group will maintain flexibility at the
operating level to cope with the rapidly-changing business
environment. Apart from maintaining fundamental operations,
the Group will also devote greater efforts to formulate

appropriate strategies for new environments. While the
current situation presents many challenges, there are still many
development opportunities. The management is confident
that by implementing strategies based on its solid foundation
cautiously and prudently and continuing to proactively capture
opportunities, the Group will achieve further development and
advances in its operations and its business.
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At the heart of Vedan International’s
business success is a group of core
products with widespread applications
and strong brand recognition, one

of the Group’s most important and
well-guarded assets. Its renowned
“Vedan"” brand MSG, for example, is
considered essential throughout the
food processing industries across Asia
for its role in enhancing the flavours
of a range of foodstuffs, and enjoys a
huge and constantly growing market
throughout Vietnam, the PRC, ASEAN

countries, Japan and the United States.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

EE - SREEBRRAAWEEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, 75, the Chairman and an Executive Director
of the Company. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung graduated from Taichung
Min Der Commercial Vocational High School. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung
has approximately 55 years’ working experience in the MSG industry
and is one of the founders of the Taiwan Vedan Group. Mr. YANG,
Tou-Hsiung is responsible for formulating our overall corporate
strategy. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is also a director of Vedan Vietnam,
Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited and King International Limited.
Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung is also an executive director of Taiwan Amino
Acid Manufacturers Association.

Mr. YANG, Cheng, 63, an Executive Director of the Company. Mr.
YANG, Cheng had approximately 42 years’ working experience in the
MSG industry. Mr. YANG, Cheng is responsible for formulating our
business development strategy. Mr. YANG, Cheng is also a director of
Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited and King International Limited.
Mr. YANG, Cheng is presently the Chairman of Vedan Culture and
Education Foundation, one of the advisers to the Taichung City
Government, the commissioner of Industrial Development and
Investment Promotion Committee of Taichung City, the executive
director of Chunghwa Real Property Research Association, Executive
director of New Taiyuan Urban Development Association and the
supervisor of Taichung Culture & Education Foundation. Mr. YANG,
Cheng obtained an EMBA Degree from Xiamen University in the PRC
in 2004.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang, 60, the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s operations and strategic management. Mr. YANG, Kun-
Hsiang obtained a master degree in agricultural chemistry from Meiji
University, Japan. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has been involved in the
development of the business operations of Vedan Vietnam since
1991. Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang is currently a director and President of
Vedan Vietnam and also a director of Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power
Limited and Concord Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr. YANG, Kun-
Hsiang is also the Chairman of Taiwan Amino Acid Manufacturers
Association and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang has 31 years’ working
experience in the MSG industry.

Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen, 54, an Executive Director and a director of
Vedan Vietnam, Taiwan Vedan, Billion Power Limited, High Capital
Investments Limited and also the President of Dan Lian Biotechnology
Corporation. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has approximately 24 years’
working experience in the MSG industry. Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen is
responsible for coordinating our purchase activities. Mr. YANG, Chen-
Wen obtained a bachelor degree in mechanics in 1993 from Waseda
University, Japan.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, 58, an Executive Director. Mr. YANG, Kun-
Chou had approximately 36 years’ working experience in the food,
beverage and consumer products industry. Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is
a director and Vice President of Taiwan Vedan and is also a director
of Vedan Vietnam, Shanghai Vedan, Xiamen Vedan (formerly known
as Xiamen Maotai) and Concord Worldwide Holdings Ltd. Mr.
YANG, Kun-Chou also holds directorship in Ve Wong Corporation (a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) since 28
June 2006.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

EX SAEEERQAREBN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, 64, a Non-executive Director and
Chairman of Shanghai Vedan and Xiamen Vedan (formerly known
as Xiamen Maotai). Mr. HUANG is also the Vice President of Taiwan
Vedan. Mr. HUANG graduated from the department of accounting
and statistics of the National Taichung Commercial College, Taiwan
in 1974. Mr. HUANG has approximately 40 years' experience in
administration and finance.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng, 57, a Non-executive Director. Mr. CHOU is
the Supervisor of Taiwan Vedan and an Independent Non-executive
Director of Shin-Kuen Plastics Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded company on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. CHOU was the founder
member of Legalway Law Firm, the director and legal consultant
of Wincome Incorporation and a supervisor of Shih-Kuen Plastics
Co., Ltd. (a publicly-traded company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation). He has over 25 years of experience in the legal industry.
Mr. CHOU obtained his Bachelor of Law degree from Soochow
University, Master of Law degree from East China University of
Political Science and Law and Doctorate of Law degree from Peking
University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, 56, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. CHAO obtained a
bachelor degree in law in 1984 and a master degree in law from
Soochow University, Taiwan in 1986 and a master degree in law
from the University of Houston in 1992. Mr. CHAO is an executive
partner of Jurist Law Offices, a law firm in Taiwan. Mr. CHAOQO is
also a director of Hua Yu Lien Development Co., Ltd (a company
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation, formerly known
as Fui Industrial Co., Ltd. and was renamed on 19 June 2013) and
the Independent Non-executive Director of Force-MOS Technology
Co., Ltd (an emerging-stock company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation). Mr. CHAO has approximately 28 years’ experience in
his practice.

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, 57, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. KO graduated with a
Bachelor of Business Degree from Feng Chia University, Taiwan, and
subsequently obtained a Master of Science Degree in Accounting
from the University of Delaware, USA. Mr. KO has been the executive
partner of Weyong International CPAs & Co., Certified Public
Accountants in Taiwan since 2000. Mr. KO is also the Independent
Non-executive Director of Kunyue Development Co., Ltd. (a publicly-
traded company on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. KO
is currently a director of Taichung Season Arts Education Foundation,
Taiwan.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

EE SREEBRRAAWEEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, 58, an Independent Non-executive Director
and a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. CHEN, holds a Master
of Business Administration Degree from the Eastern lllinois State
University, and a Bachelor Degree from the National Taiwan
University. Mr. CHEN is presently the Chairman of Ray Wing Research
and Investment Corporation and also an Independent Non-executive
Director of Vectorite Biomedical Inc. (an emerging-stock company on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation). Mr. Chen has more than
30 years of experience in securities business in Taiwan and was the
Vice Chairman and General Manager of Yuanta Securities Investment
Consulting Co., Ltd,. the Chairman of Concord Capital Management
Corp. and the Senior Vice President of Concord Securities Co., Ltd.

Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa, 64, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of
the Group on 28 December 2012. Mr. HSIEH obtained a master
degree in management from National Chiao Tung University,
Taiwan and obtained a doctor degree in business management
from National Chengchi University, Taiwan. Mr. HSIEH is presently
the President of Commerce Development Research Institute and is
also the independent director of Y.C.C. PARTS MFG. CO. LTD. (a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) and the
representative of legal entity as director of First Commercial Bank.
He was the General Manager and the member of remuneration
committee of Long Bon International Co., Ltd (a company listed on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation). He was also the supervisor
of Taiwan Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Mr. HSIEH has approximately 25
years' working experience in the business management, strategic
management and technology management field.

The relationships of the following directors are as follows:

- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are brothers.

- Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou are brothers.
- Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng are cousins of Mr.

YANG, Kun-Hsiang, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, as well as Mr. YANG,
Chen-Wen.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

EX SAEEERQAUE[BN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NI, Chih-Hao, 52, the Group’s Chief Financial Officer and
the Executive Vice President of Vedan Vietnam and Financial Vice
President, is responsible for the finance functions of the Group.
Mr. NI graduated from University of Oregon, major in finance and
marketing, and holds a master degree in business administration
from Tunghai University, Taiwan. Mr. NI joined Vedan Group in 1993,
and was the senior manager of financial department, vice manager
of business and foreign trade department of Vedan Vietnam, special
assistant to the chairman, project manager of finance department of
Taiwan Vedan as well as the manager of the Group's Taiwan branch.
Mr. NI has full qualification in finance, marketing and executive
administration, and has accumulated approximately 25 years of
working experience.

Mr. HSIEH, Jau-Hwang, 67, Chief Strategy Officer of Vedan
Vietnam. Mr. HSIEH graduated from the National Cheng Kung
University, major in accounting and finance. Mr. HSIEH is responsible
for the strategic development and functions of the Group. Mr. HSIEH
has approximately 38 years of finance management and banking
experience. Mr. HSIEH was financial vice president of Vedan Vietnam
and worked for several financial institutions in Taiwan and Vietnam
including International Bank of Singapore and ABN AMRO Bank. Mr.
HSIEH was also a general manager of ChinFon Bank, Ho Chi Minh
City Branch. Prior to joining us, Mr. HSIEH worked as the President in
Gia Hen International Co., Ltd.

Mr. CHAO, Wen-Jui, 54, general plant manager of the production
management department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for
managing and overseeing all production departments of the
company. Mr. CHAO graduated from National Tsing Hua University
with a master degree in chemistry. Mr. CHAO joined Taiwan Vedan
in 1987, and was the vice plant manager of a recycle plant and
the manager of a MSG plant. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 2009
as the vice general plant manager of the production management
department. Mr. CHAO has over 28 years of working experience in
the MSG and food additive industry.

Mr. HUANG, Chih-Yuan, 67, Vice President of food and amino
acid business department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the
marketing and management functions of the company’s amino
acid product business. Mr. HUANG graduated from National Tainan
Commercial Vocational Senior High School. Mr. HUANG joined
Taiwan Vedan in 1988 as business supervisor, and joined Vedan
Vietnam in 1993 as the senior manager of food and amino acid
business department. Mr. HUANG also served as the head of business
department of Ve Wong Corporation, and has over 30 years of sales
management experience in the food industry.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

EE - SREEBRRAAWEEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang, 56, Vice President of specialty chemicals
business department of Vedan Vietnam, is responsible for the
marketing planning and sales management of the company's
specialty chemicals products. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang graduated from
National Taiwan University, major in economics. Mr. YANG, Tzu-
Chang joined Taiwan Vedan in 1991 as the assistant manager of
international trading department. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang joined Vedan
Vietnam in 1996, and was the manager of amino acid business
division and marketing planning division. Mr. YANG, Tzu-Chang has
over 27 years of sales management experience in the food production
industry.

Mr. KO, Chung-Chih, 55, Vice President of Vedan Vietnam, is
responsible for planning the overall management system and
overseeing the administration of the company. Mr. KO holds a master
degree in management from National University of Kaohsiung. Mr.
KO joined Taiwan Vedan in 1988, and had served as the supervisor
of the finance department. He joined Vedan Vietnam in 1991 as the
assistant manager of the finance department, and was subsequently
promoted to senior manager of the General Manager Office,
Corporate Administration Management Division. Mr. KO has 29 years
of working experience in finance and administration.

Mr. ZHUANG, Kuixing, 50, General Manager of the Group in
Chinese mainland region. Mr. ZHUANG graduated from Zhi-Ren
School of General Education. He joined Vedan Taiwan in 1997
and had acted as Manager of the Consumer Goods Division and
Assistant Vice President to the Agent Products Division successively.
Mr. ZHUANG has rich agency sales experience in international brands
such as Kinmen Kaoliang Liquor, SPEY Whiskey, Gekkeikan Sake, and
Cha Cha Spiced Sunflower Seeds. Mr. ZHUANG has over 22 years’
profound sales, operational, and management experience in the food
industry.
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Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary

EX SAEEERQAREBN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta, 44, senior manager of the Group’s Taiwan
Branch, is responsible for overseeing various aspects of the finance,
business and administrative function of the company. Mr. YANG,
Meng-Ta graduated from National Taiwan University with a bachelor
degree in civil engineering, and holds a master degree in civil
engineering from Pennsylvania State University. Mr. YANG, Meng-
Ta is also the director of Vedan Vietnam, Shanghai Vedan and
Xiamen Maotai. Mr. YANG, Meng-Ta joined Taiwan Vedan in 2001,
and was the supervisor of consumer product business department,
international trade department and finance department. He was
subsequently promoted to the senior manager of Taiwan branch. Mr.
YANG, Meng-Ta has accumulated extensive experience during his
service in various departments in the food production industry, and
has 17 years of management experience.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella, 42, is a Director, Corporate Services
of Tricor Services Limited (“Tricor”), a global professional services
provider specializing in integrated Business, Corporate and Investor
Services. Ms. WONG has over 19 years of experience in the corporate
secretarial field and has been providing professional corporate
services to Hong Kong listed companies as well as multinational,
private and offshore companies. Ms. WONG is a Chartered Secretary
and an Associate of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (“HKICS") and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators (“ICSA”) in the United Kingdom. (Note: The Company
has engaged Tricor Services Limited as external service provider and
appointed Ms. WONG as the Company’s company secretary since 1
April 2012.)
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The Group always believes that high-level corporate governance
standards and a sound and efficient board of directors are the
crucial foundation for the assurance of the Company’s effective
operation and sustainable development. In addition to mitigating
operational risks, pursuing performance excellence and enhancement
of the shareholders’ interests by making significant efforts through
continuous improvement of the corporate governance and internal
monitoring system, we also fulfill the environmental and social
responsibility of the Group in the ordinary course of business, which
has become a power for the advancement of society.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are disclosed based
on the principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The Group
commits to maintaining and ensuring a high level of corporate
governance standards and continuously reviews and improves our
corporate governance and internal controls practices, and the Board
endeavors to take the necessary actions to ensure the compliance
with the provisions of the CG Code introduced by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

DISTINCTIVE ROLE OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO")

The positions of Chairman of the Board and CEO are held by Mr.
YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Kun-Hsiang respectively. The
Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board in
establishing and monitoring the implementation of strategies and
plans to create values for shareholders.

The CEO is responsible for managing the operation of the Group's
businesses, proposing strategies to the Board and the effective
implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by the Board.

THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2017, there were 11 members on the Board,
which are the Chairman, the CEO, 3 other Executive Directors, 2
Non-executive Directors (“NED") and 4 Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INEDs").
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The INEDs are considered by the Board to be independent of the
management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgments. The
Board considered that each of the INEDs brings his own relevant
expertise to the Board and its deliberations. During the year ended
31 December 2017, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs
representing one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. None of the INEDs has any business
or financial interests with the Group nor has any relationship with
other directors and confirmed their independence to the Group.

The relationships between some members of the Board are disclosed
under “Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretary” on page 30.

The Board met regularly during the year. The Board’'s primary
function is to set and review the overall strategic development of
the Group and to oversee the achievement of the plans to enhance
shareholders’ value. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the
Executive Directors. The Board met four times during the year. The
NED and INEDs may take independent professional advice at the
Group’s expense in carrying out their functions.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and
providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent
judgment on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances for discharging their duties to the
Company.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Group has established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference as suggested under the former Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 to the then Listing
Rules. The Audit Committee comprises Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr.
KO, Jim-Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray and Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa, all
Independent Non-executive Directors. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong. Each member brings to the
Committee his valuable experience in reviewing financial statements
and evaluating significant control and financial issues of the Group
who among themselves possess a wealth of management experience
in the accounting profession, commercial and legal sectors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and
annual financial results and reports in respect of the year ended
31 December 2017 and significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, scope of work and appointment of external auditors,
connected transactions and arrangements for employees to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr.
CHAO Pei-Hong, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung, the Non-executive Director.
The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. KO, Jim-Chen.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
determining/reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors
and senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for
all directors and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Company, and the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and senior management and other related
matters.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
Executive Director, Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen and
Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray, the Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of directors, and assessing the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board adopted the board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) in accordance with the requirement set out in the CG Code.
Such policy aims to set out the approach towards achieving diversity
on the Board.

In assessing the Board composition and recommending candidates
of directors to the Board, the Nomination Committee would
consider a number of perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity
Policy, including but not limited to skills, regional and professional
experience, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, gender
and other characteristics.
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The Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring directors standing for election at the
Annual General Meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance with the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) and Written Employee Guidelines, and the
Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The principal businesses of the Group are manufacturing, R&D and
sales, of which the Group has not engaged in any high-risk and high-
leveraged investment. The members of the Board and the senior
management have not engaged in any conduct of business which is
beyond the risk acceptance level of the Company.

The Board of the Group oversees the Company to establish an
appropriate and effective risk management mechanism and internal
control system. The Audit Committee of the Board assists the Board
to oversee the management of existing or potential risks in the
Company. The management of the Company constantly supervises
risks and the implementation of the internal control system to
guarantee its effectiveness.

According to the characteristics of the industry in which the Group
operates, a designated internal audit department and personnel are
set up and appointed in each operating region with an operating
cycle of control customised for the regions to carry out regular
audit based on an annual plan and professional division of labour.
Analysis on the seriousness and deficiency rate of each operational
risk will be made, the results of which will be promptly reported to
the management of the Company and subsequent improvements
will be followed up. In addition to the monthly submission of audit
reports to the Audit Committee for review, the audit department also
presents major audit findings to the Board for examinations by the
members of the Board in order to effectively mitigate the operational
risks of the Group.

40 vedan International (Holdings) Limited B (EZER)BRATR

REZBECEIT - AEH URIEFENR
- RN AARA B IERITESN B
ARZBERBRRAFAE LIRENEREERY

B

LRETLMEE
E=ZgRERET <<¢¥*E =R H-UDAETASHEUR 37
DIVEAMEMBE -EESRAARANDEE

E/nﬁkﬁﬁ&%%ﬁ é%&m RERABMIFIK&
BEZEER AQAEETEEREERE
BI(EMETAERETERRINREST
Ay (I GRESFRD 1) R CEEHAXIESD) K
REF (EERTA) RERB g RERR
ENRERT I ENBRREH -

BEEEERNBER

AEBNERE MEREE/AR UENEC
o] /=5 [ i nﬁﬁZ&ﬁ ExgkELREE
EEGIANREBVARAREIBEE ZEE
TR

AEEEFSEERAEYAEAFRNER
EEBHNABEERG EFE TEZENT
,\ETﬁ%EjJ§$QE£§QTﬁE§U%EZEWﬁ%

AREREERERRERR KNSR RZRN
7§§ AREREL B2 -

REBEXFN S2EEZHREEEZAM
PR AS IuTmmimeJEi&? R
EEEH?IJ&E% PTEMBESZ HMBHEEE

Bz BREMRRAER  REARAFERE
ILEM%%EE&%%/R o FEAZ RRPIRR 12 A S R
EEXTHEMZEEZ I RS G HERE
jﬁéfﬁﬁ’é§$ﬁqﬂfiﬁﬁ$’§ﬁiéﬁ wal AR
fREEEZERR-



Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

The major scopes of work of the risk management and internal
controls of the Group are summarised as follows:

o Financial and financing cycle management — Alleviate risks
through stringent internal controls and legitimate taxation
planning applicable locally, credit risk management and control,
evaluation and prediction of factors attributing to financial
crisis; regularly assess capital position in markets, changes in
exchange rates and bank interest rates, and prudently manage
the fund allocation of the Company.

o Sales and payment collection cycle management — Oversee the
due execution of the procedures in the sales business, including
orders, credit provision, delivery, payment collection or refund
and customer complaints so as to minimise the risks in relation
to operating revenue.

o Procurement and payment cycle management — Perform
internal controls on operating procedures in relation to
supplier management, purchase requisition, price negotiation,
contracting, quality check for purchased products or product
returns, verification on payment or purchase discounts in order
to ensure the openness, fairness and incorruptibility of the
procurement system.

o Investment cycle management — The Group has established
the “Investment Review Board” to rigourously evaluate mid-
to-long-term investment or the subject matters of strategic
alliance and to timely deal with investment projects.

o Information risk management — Maintain the soundness of the
information management system of the Company, manage
and safeguard the security of network information and
swiftly provide the management with effective information on
operational management.

o Legal affairs, intellectual property rights and R&D cycle
management — The legal affairs department of the Group
collaborates with professional legal counsels to achieve risk
mitigation, transfer or aversion and to secure law compliance
by offering education, training and consultation in relation
to indentures, product liabilities, legal disputes and litigation,
patents, trademarks, intellectual property rights and other
relevant matters.
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o Environmental protection management for production cycle: e
Implement all environmental protection stipulations and plans
in accordance with the local regulatory requirements of the
operating regions; and establish special units to plan, execute,
supervise and track all environmental protection measures in
order to assure the fulfillment of environmental protection
responsibility.

o Occupational safety and hygiene management for production e
cycle — Conduct review and risk analysis on the detrimental
level of abnormal environmental safety and hygiene incidents;
and require the relevant departments of the plants to formulate
improvement measures.
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The main courses of study taken by finance personnel of the Group  ANEBEMEMEM KA B R2017F T ZHE R

stationed in the plant site in Vietnam in 2017 are as follows: BT

Date of Course Name of Course Hour of Study

EEREE RERR EBRH

2017/04/14 New Stipulation of Statutory Provisions 2
RGN IR TE

2017/05/17 Topics on Fixed Assets Insurance and 2

Risk Mitigation Awareness

& 7E & 2 R B 35 8 K L B By &6 2R

2017/06/19 International Accounting Standards 2
B & 5t 2

2017/08/18 Taxation Management and Trade Regulations 4
MEEREEHHRT

2017/09/26 Course on Foreign Exchange in Banking 2
HR1TIMNE FRIZ

The main courses of study taken by finance personnel of the Group  ANEE P EEIE M4 A B R2017F EZ#E R

stationed in the plant site in the PRC in 2017 are as follows: FiZ

Date of Course Name of Course Hour of Study

EERE RERR EBEH

2017/03/13 General Education on Accounting 2
BETEMHE

2017/06/16 How to Do a Good Financial Analysis by Non-Financial 4

Personnel

FEEN TS A B an{al i i B1 75 9 A

2017/09/01 Statistical Continuing Education 4
BETREHE

2017/12/04 Training on Accounting Certificate Employees to

FEtEEI
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During the year under review, all Directors have reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group, including
the resources on accounting and financial reporting functions of the
Company, the qualification and experience of staff members and
the training programmes participated by the staff members and the
relevant budgets. The Group will, from time to time, review its risk
management and internal control system in order to optimise its
effectiveness and in turn heighten the overall corporate governance
standard of the Group.

MEETINGS ATTENDANCE

REEFERN  2BEFCBHANEBAEZES
R BEAR R &R RIS E R
HHNER BTEERER UREIMERD
BRI REES - KRES TR AREE R
NEEZERS EEEMUEERTHE LR E
EEEBLEERKF-

Bl wCe

Attendance/Number of Meeting

HER/EENY
Audit  Remuneration Nomination  Annual General

Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

- FHZE8 yMzee REZZEE RRAEXE
Executive Directors HiTES
YANG, Tou-Hsiung (Chairman) GEE(LE) 4/4 N/AT A NATER i 0
YANG, Cheng & 24 N/AZ /AT A N/AT & A 0
YANG, Kun-Hsiang (CFO) GE (7TR##) 414 NAT & NATE NATE 111
YANG, Chen-Wen BRX 414 NATEE /AT A N/AT A 0/
YANG, Kun-Chou B 3/4 NAT 8 /AT A N/AT A 0
Non-executive Directors FHTES
HUANG, Ching-Jung BRER 4/4 NAT B 11 NATE A 0/
CHOU, Szu-Cheng ABE 4/4 NATEE NAT R NATE R 0
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES

Directors

CHAO, Pei-Hong HEE 4/4 2 17 111 11
KO, Jim-Chen ki 3/4 12 17 0 0/
CHEN, Joen-Ray A% 3/4 ) 17 111 0/
HSIEH, Lung-Fa WER 3/4 12 N/A @R NATEE 0/
Notes: P 3

Mr. YANG, Cheng authorized Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung to exercise the voting
right on the first board meeting. Mr. KO, Jim-Chen authorized Mr. CHAO, Pei-
Hong to exercise the voting right on the second board meeting.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

In respect of code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors of the
Company have developed and refreshed their knowledge and skills by
reading books and articles relating to legal and regulatory updates.

All Directors have already provided the training records for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to the company secretary.
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COMPLIANCE WITH APPENDIX 14 TO LISTING RULES

During the reporting period, the Company has complied with the
code provisions as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, with
the exception of code provision E.1.2.

In respect of code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman
of the board should attend the annual general meeting and should
also invite the chairman of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committees to attend. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung (the Chairman of the
Board and the Chairman of Nomination Committee) and Mr. KO, Jim-
Chen (the Chairman of Remuneration Committee) were not able to
attend the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 23 May
2017 due to business commitments.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to
fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at
the first general meeting after appointment and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Each of the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific
term of 1 year or 3 years, where Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung and
Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong were appointed for a term of 1 year and Mr.
CHOU, Szu-Cheng, Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray and Mr.
HSIEH, Lung-Fa were appointed for a term of 3 years. Each of the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company is subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor. During the year under
review, the Group is required to pay approximately US$345,000 and
US$115,000 to the external auditor for their audit and non-audit
services, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the Company'’s accounts for the year ended 31 December
2017. The Statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 106 to 112.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella of Tricor Services Limited, external
service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. Its primary contact person at the Company is Mr. NI, Chih-
Hao, Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

Ms. WONG has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 December 2017.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT TO CONVENE AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholders’
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All resolutions
put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
after each shareholders’ meeting.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address:  Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

(with attention to Ms. WONG, Wai Yee, Ella,
Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2528 3158

Email: vdi@vedaninternational.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.
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RE - HERERES

INTRODUCTION

One year after the new global greenhouse gas emission reduction
agreement came into effect at COP21, United Nations Environment
Programme indicated in the Emissions Gap Report that there is a
huge gap between the national pledges made on carbon reduction
and the actual performance, and carbon reduction actions still need
to be amplified worldwide with global warming mitigation taken as
an urgent mission in order to prevent disastrous climate with best
endeavour.

As an international corporate citizen, Vedan International Group
pays constant attention to such issue relating to climate change
and supports the civil notion of environmental protection, energy
conservation and carbon reduction and earth preservation with
practical actions. For many years, the Group has complied with
the national standards and regulations applicable to all production
bases and has formulated environmental policy which includes
environmental protection in daily management with all-staff
education in daily operation concerning energy conservation in
respect of self-initiated carbon reduction and energy efficiency
enhancement while participating in ecology-care activities and
proactively developing green economy with significant importance
attached to comprehensive development of corporate social
responsibility in hope to maximise its local corporate influence and
make valuable contribution to the local environmental protection.

Vedan International Group has established the “Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee” which includes the operation directors of
all production bases. The committee members practically promote
environmental education with combination of regional production
and sales strategy and the concept of environmental protection
and earth preservation and implements sustainable environment
plans with regular meetings to review the achievements under the
respective indicators. In this report, the Group truthfully discloses the
implementation of CSR. We will implement the corporate governance
policy in accordance with the laws and strive to achieve the most
outstanding operating efficiency of the Group with an aim to realise
mutual benefit with the environment.
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To uphold the mission of sustainable operation, corporate social
responsibility of the Vedan International Group entails not only
environmental protection and energy conservation education,
but also maintenance of sound corporate governance and risk
management, provision employees with a safe and healthy working
environment where they can fully exploit their potentials, and balance
of the interests of employees, customers, supply chain, investors
and the overall development of the community. We undertake to
make our best endeavour to constantly contribute to economic
development, environmental protection for the earth and society
through good and solid corporate governance.

RFKBERENED  CEL SR THKAER
SEmME BRTHEIRRERE SRHEHEEZ
SR EREHDGAEERBRER RHE
T AR2REESUARNERBE NN THER
BOUREBT TP fER REARMERE
BER2OGNE RAAESHEEBRITE
ENEEEL DBETENRE BREEBELAR
WHRRBERERRANIE

The Vietnam Plant (Primary Production Base) Promoted Park-like Construction in Factory Areas with

Colossal Tree Plantings to Conserve the Ecology
FELEEN- UEREHETIRARL AEEEREBALRE

This report has been prepared in compliance with the requirements
of the Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Reporting
Guide under Appendix 27 and the principles of the CG Code
under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange for the purposes of general disclosure and KPIs disclosure
responsibilities. The period and areas covered by this report are as
follows:

AREFRKBEBE AP LT R B
e GRIE e RERmERS) KW
Bm(eEERTR)D) 2RUET —RIEER
AREMESHENET -AREREHELE
BT

Period covered

2 HA

From 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017
7aot20179F1 A1HE2017412A31H

Areas covered

The production bases in Vietnam and China and the business footholds of branches in Taiwan
covered by Vedan International Group
KABEREEREYRE PREEEMRAES NREERE

R

48  vedan International (Holdings) Limited B (EZER)BRATR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIBE -HEREABRE

{ENVIRONMENT)
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

The Group upholds the concept of “care for environment and
sustainable operation” and proactively carries out the efficiency
management of water resources, carbon reduction management
and waste management, while initiating energy management
system and continuous management of power consumption, and
adopting energy-saving electrical equipment to enhance the energy
conservation performance in the offices, as well as promoting
park-like construction in factory areas with colossal tree plantings to
conserve the ecology.

In respect of environmental protection and energy conservation, the
Group undertakes to carry out the following actions:

(1) Emission management - Striving to reduce discharge of
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste

° Employee safety, environmental protection and resources
conservation are the prime principles of all operating
activities of the Group. In the ordinary course of business,
the Group shall, as long as technically practicable, provide
treatment for, and secure the reduction of, emission of
exhaust gas, wastewater and waste, and achieve or over-
achieve the provisions of the prevailing national laws of
the places where its production bases are located and the
requirements of internal standards.

o The Group regularly reviews the progress and
effectiveness of each resources management plan every
year and improves the deficiencies to ensure that there is
no substantial impact on the surrounding environment in
the factory areas.

o In 2017, the emission standard of each emission of the
Group was in line with the requirement of environmental
impact assessment for all production bases. The Vietnam
plant (primary production base of the Group) reformed
the concentration system in production plants in 2017
for the purpose of reducing the consumption of steam
energy, resulting in a decrease of 12,339.36 ton of
emission of COze. It also established a new denitrification
processing system which effectively reduced the
production of wastewater and sludge.
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BRE&RE
BR - EERE KELYE (&)

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(1) Emission management — Striving to reduce discharge of (1) HHRYEB-ZBHORLEK BEREEE
wastewater, exhaust gas and waste (continued) Yz BERR (48)
. According to the statistics, the types of emissions o ERET 2017 T EHREEBRE

ZHMBREREES T

produced in the production process of the primary plants

in 2017 and the relevant data are set out below:

2017 Unit
Type of emissions ERYESR —E—tF By
Total volume of wastewater BEKBHERE (2 5K) 6.35 m3/ton
discharged (m3)/product output (ton) ERES(ANE) SR K AME
Wastewater — Chemical Oxygen BEXK—{cBEEE(COD) (AfT),/ 9.07 kg/ton
Demand (COD) (kg)/product output EmEE (QAWE) NN
(ton)
Air emission — Sulphur oxides (SOx) (kg)/ | ZRFEM — AL E(SOX) (AFT) 2.15 kg/ton
product output (ton) EmEE (RANE) NN
Air emission — nitrogen oxides RN —REINOX) (RFF),/ 0.11 kg/ton
(NOx) (kg)/product output (ton) EmE=s (AH) NN
Total greenhouse gas emission BERBREME 837,226.80 ton COze
AWECO2e
Total emission intensity of MERBANERE 1.51 ton COze/ton
greenhouse gas AWECO2e,/ AMA
Total hazardous waste EEEZEYRE 83,788 kgA T
Total non-hazardous waste EBEEREYEE 38,236,805 kg A T
Hazardous waste intensity BEBEEYEE 0.15 kg/ton
(kg/ton product output) (AT /PAWERES) NN
Non-hazardous waste intensity BEBEEWEE 69.16 kg/ton
(kg/ton product output) (AT /PAWERES) NN

50 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited kBB (25R) R A =




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIBE -HEREABRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

BIR&RE
BR BERE KELYE (H)

(2) Resources usage management - Promoting energy 2 ERFEAEE-HEBHRERE EREWR
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of BRI A
resources

The Group advocates and implements the 3R policy
(Reduce, Reuse, Recycle) and recycles and reuses its
resources to achieve the goal of reducing materials
consumption and waste generation.

The Group implements green procurement policy to
procure suppliers to minimise their impacts on the
environment.

By implementing ISO 50001 Energy Management System,
the Group has established an energy management
system in the primary production bases and formed the
“Energy Management Committee” which is responsible
for the systematic management of all equipment in daily
operation in order to enhance the equipment efficiency
in a continuous manner. The Group has also implemented
energy saving and carbon reduction plan to rationalise
energy consumption and reduce energy cost.

In 2017, the Vietnam plant (primary production base
of the Group) improved the concentration system
in the production process in production plants and
reduced the use of steam energy while also reducing
water consumption for cooling down. According to
the statistics, the energy conservation rate of the
concentration system in the production process in such
production plant reached 72.54% and the emission of
CO2e was reduced.

The Group proactively implement the resources recycle
policy which recycles the condensation produced in
the concentration process of production and reuse the
same in the production process. In 2017, 1.39KL of
condensation can be recycled for every ton of products,
representing approximately 23.5% of the water
consumed in such production process.

In 2017, the packaging materials used by the primary
production bases of the Group in the production process
of main products can be classified into FIBC bags, paper
bags, carton boxes, plastic cylinders, etc. Towards the
goal of recycling and reusing the packaging materials
used for the finished products, the Company has recycled
and reused the plastic cylinders used for containing
maltose. According to the statistics in 2017, the recycling
rate reached 82%.

£ B T8 8 H 73R K (Reduce,
Reuse, Recycle)  &IRE W AFA -
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation

(continued)

BIRGEE

(2) Resources usage management — Promoting energy (2)
conservation, consumption reduction, recycle and reuse of

resources (continued)

° The total consumption of energy used in the primary

BR - EERE KELYE (H)

BEREAEE -HBEHRERE BRI K

BRA(#)

o 007 FBEEEMERFHARE

production bases in 2017 is as follows: SR
2017 Unit

Types of usage ERESE —E—+tF By

Indirect energy — unit consumption MEgR-—ENEMRE 808.63 kWh/ton
of electricity (total electricity (BENhBAE (TRNE)/ NS N
consumption (kWh)/production EmEE (QN))
output (ton))

Indirect energy — unit consumption of MERR-—EENHELRE 85.97 kg/ton
biofuel (total biofuel consumption (£Emeleme (DrF),/ NN
(kg)/production output (ton)) EmEZ (QN))

Direct energy — unit consumption of HERR-ERECAS 461.49 kg/ton
coal (total coal consumption (kg)/ (BExemRE (AT),/ NN
production output (ton)) EmE=Z(RAN))

Total water consumption BFEKE 7,598,055 m3 37 75 K

Water consumption intensity FRZE (BEKE (LK), 13.74 m¥/ton
(total water consumption (m3)/ EmE=s (AFE)) N VN
production output (ton))

Total packaging materials used FANBEMHEE - KEa 55,722 kg AT
— FIBC bags

Total packaging materials used FROBEEDRAE — KR 387,799 kg 2T
— paper bags

Total packaging materials used FROBEEDRAE K8 3,938,692 kg 2T
— carton boxes

Total packaging materials used FROBEEDREE - ZBE 507,944 kg 2T
— plastic cylinders

Intensity of packaging materials used FROBEEMHEE-REE 5.23 kg/ton
- FIBC bags NN

Intensity of packaging materials used | FABBRMBEE AR 9.29 kg/ton
— paper bags NN

Intensity of packaging materials used | F B BEMEEE — A58 70.30 kg/ton
— carton boxes UNE/N

Intensity of packaging materials used | FRMBEYEZE —BBE 40.68 kg/ton
— plastic cylinders NN
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(3) Environment and natural resources management —
Enhancing efficiency of energy consumption, caring for
environment and protecting natural ecosystem

° In order to combat the global warming and devote our
efforts against the climate change, the Vietnam plant
(primary production base of the Group) obtained the
ISO 50001 energy management system certificate in
October 2016. We established an impeccable equipment
maintenance and examination system through a high-
standard certification inspection. The usage of energy
consuming equipment has been gradually optimised,
which facilitated reasonableness and efficiency of energy
consuming equipment and reduced energy costs.

o Based on the differences of soil and changes in climate
among different business footholds globally, the Group
adopts environmentally friendly designs for its plants and
grows a variety of appropriate and diversified plants and
trees in the surroundings and at the same time promotes
park-like construction in factory areas. Various animals
are commonly seen in the landscaping wildlife ponds at
certain business footholds. The Group aims to bring land
greening, carbon reduction, biodiversity and ecosystem
and environmental protection into its daily operation.

° With reference to the international environmental
education regulations, the Group merges the national
environmental protection concept into the employee
concept through daily trainings and enhances the
knowledge, skills, attitude and values of the employees
in respect of environmental protection while promoting
environmental protection, safety and hygiene propaganda
and continuously universalising civic environmental
protection education

° Since April 2017, the thermal plants of the Vietnam plant
(primary production base of the Group) has planned
to use non-burnt bricks equipment which recycled the
clinker (fly ash and bottom ash) in electrical boilers into
non-burnt bricks and building backfill materials. Being in
line with the national development policy, it reused and
recycled waste and used such equipment and technical
skills to enhance reuse of resources, which conserved
energy and reduced consumption and brought significant
meanings to earth preservation. It is estimated that this
equipment will commence operation at the end of 2018.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(3) Environment and natural resources management —
Enhancing efficiency of energy consumption, caring
for environment and protecting natural ecosystem
(continued)

° In 2017, the primary production bases of the Group
organised a total of 37 training courses in relation to
environmental safety and hygiene with 2,617 participants
and the average training hours were 7.45 hours per
person every year. The contents of the courses are
summarised as follows:

No. Course Name

HR  REER

BR EERE KELYE (H)

BRERAREREE-RAGELANK
2 EERRRAEBERLERE (H)

0175 KB EERERBHIREL
SEERBHEIRRIZER375
K2 MANRE261TA FHEA
SEZHIEFH BT 45/ HFER
ST

1 Groups 1 — 6 Training Targets about Labour Safety under National Requirements

BREKZBLE - 6HIIRER

2 Industrial Safety Management and Practice for Foreign Workers

SMEBRA L XL E2EREER

3 Learning ISO/OHSAS Environmental Management System, Occupational Safety and

Hygiene Management System/Internal Inspector

ISO/OHSASIRIE B ARG BMEL>HBELEE EZLRH NIAEXE

4 Chemical Drugs Safety Course
LB &Em7 2 RIE

5 Waste Management and Resources Recycle Course
EEEMER  BIREIYGRIE

6 Safety of Gas Welder and Electric Welder
RE BREZR

7 Operation Safety of Loading Equipment and Stacking Machine
PHRE EEHETEE

8 Electricity Safety
AEZ2

9 Operation in Dust Area
M EE [ 19 R %

10 Safety Training for Operation in Limited Space and Overhead Operation

ZERIRERRERMEERBEMEZE

Total Total training hours Total participation
for the year

A% 2FEHAIREH BB EANIR
19,491 (hours) 2,617 (persons)
19,491 (/]NEF ) 2,617(A)
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Policy: Care for Environment and Sustainable Operation
(continued)

(4)

Internal inspection enhancement and cycle improvement

The Vietnam plant (primary production base of the
Group) implements the Environmental Management
System (ISO 14000), Occupation Health Safety
Management System (OHSAS 18001) and Energy
Management System (ISO 50001), and regularly reviews
the progress and effectiveness of all plans every year
and proactively improves the deficiencies in order to
continuously improve and govern the Company with
high-standard international regulations and conduct self-
reflection.

In 2017, in respect of all laws related to environmental
protection as well as the air monitoring, discharge of
sewage and waste disposal, the Group met the national
standard of all the places where its production bases are
located.

In 2017, the external inspection and environmental
examination in respect of environmental safety and
hygiene and energy in the primary production bases are

BIRGEE

BR - EERE KELYE (H)

(4) MmEAREREERNE

EETEAEEMBERENTIR
BEEIBRL(SO 14001) B¥ELR 2R
A4 E IR Z 4T (OHSAS 18001) 48R E
12 Z4(1S0 50001) FFFHEZE
BT EEE RIS  WEENE
K BESEUSZERABRRES
p=NEIRIA=E: T30

2017 F S BB RREBERRR
BZER -BRK BEEDS BHE4
BHEEEMZBERIZAE-

017FE T EAERMREL2HE
I B H B0 FE i B IR SR AROBI AR AT 0
T

as follows:
No. Name Result
'R =x #ER
1 First Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
FE-ZRERA i
2 Annual External Inspection (ISO14001&0HSAS18001) Pass
FEHMNEFFEAZ (SO 14001 &OHSAS18001) ik
3 Second Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
FE_FRERA i
4 Third Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
FE=FRERA i
5 Annual External Inspection (ISO 50001) Pass
FEHMEPFEFZ(SO 50001) iR
6 Fourth Quarter Environmental Examination Qualified
FOERE RO i

Note: The Group's production bases in China and business
footholds in Taiwan are primary engaged in sales and light
industry trade. The primary production base of the Group
is the Vietnam plant and therefore the environmental
emission and energy data disclosed in this report mainly
concern the Vietnam plant.
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RE -#HEREREE

{SOCIETY)
EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits

To gain trust from the employees, the Group maintains sincere
communication, proactively cares for the employees and values
employees’ benefits and opinions. The Group supports the
international labour and human right standards and achieves the
goal of “building corporate harmony and enhancing employees’
benefits” through three measures, namely “full compliance with the
labour laws, continuous optimisation of the safety and healthiness
of the working environment and proactive implementation of
employees’ training and communication”, which help build a sound
labour-employer interrelationship and maximise the benefits of the
Group and society.

The Group undertakes to earnestly implement the following
employee relations policies:

(1) Employment principles - Fair employment conditions,
compliant and reasonable remuneration

° The Group considers its employees to be its most
important cooperative partners. The employment of
an employee is based on the ability-oriented and fair
employment principles. There is no discrimination in
each division and department in terms of recruitment,
employment, promotion, training and reward. Upon
employment, the remuneration of an employee shall
be based on an equal pay for equal work principle and
there shall be no bias or discrimination against different
identities such as race, religion, nationality, gender or
disability in terms of appointment and promotion.

° The Group has long been complying the national labour
laws of the places where its production bases are located
to systematise the remuneration and report to the
competent authorities of the places where the enterprises
are located.
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RIBE -HEREABRE

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’

Benefits

(1

(2)

Employment principles — Fair employment conditions,
compliant and reasonable remuneration (continued)

RIEHARERN

() ERRA-DAFzEEFRTRESKEEZ

] (&)

° In 2017, the Group had 3,781 employees in aggregate. o
The statistics of employee turnover rate by gender and

geographic region is set out below:

20175 5B 8 THEE£3,7810L  BA
THRE MR B D NS WA

HEBRKLE:

BE BUGCENE BESTEAR

Total number
of employees

Male in Female in in each region
The Group’s primary base each region each region &EBET
SEXEEN EBEBI EBXZBT ny
The Vietnam plant i 5 [ 2,949 621 3,570
The China plant /Bl & [& 126 71 197
Foothold in Taiwan & /& & 2h 9 5 14

Total average

Total average

resignation resignation Total average

rate of male rate of female resignation

staff per month | staff per month | rate per month

58I ZETI | of each district

The Group’s primary base AERE ABRE EEAERE
The Vietnam plant i 5 [& 1.38% 0.28% 1.66%
The China plant # B9 [& 1.02% 0.21% 1.23%
Foothold in Taiwan & /£ # 2 0.60% 0.00% 0.60%

Employees’ benefits - Enhancing benefits and good
working conditions (continued)

(2) EIRF-BEABFNEARFHITERA

(&)

The Group attaches importance to gender equality
at work and has included such into the standards of
the Company. It complies with the local governmental
regulations. Provisions such as maternity system
management measure, paternity leave and menstrual
leave are clearly stipulated.

The Group has formulated relevant regulations which
provide workers based at the primary production
bases in Vietnam and China with benefits, such as free
food, clothing, housing, transportation, education,
entertainment and training.

SESERMETIEFZLHARA
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RE -#HEREREE

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(2)

(3

Employees’ benefits — Enhancing benefits and good
working conditions (continued)

Employees’ benefits and working hour management
systems have been established for all operating areas
of the Group in compliance with the local labour laws,
including minimum wage, annual leave and other
statutory benefits. Workers are entitled to the leaves as
stipulated by the local laws.

In 2017, in addition to the fixed monthly salary, the
Group’s employees can receive appropriate year-end
and performance bonuses based on the department or
individual performance. The Vietnam plant, the primary
production base, conducts promotion assessment
twice a year. in order to encourage the talents to excel
themselves with a friendly management approach.

Labour communication - Strengthening communication
channels and valuing human rights

The Group provides diversified channels for internal
communication and opinion expressing which allows
it to persistently understand employees’ real opinions
and recommendations on each aspect of the Company
through diversified means such as the proposal system,
suggestion boxes and employee satisfactory survey, and
to make improvements based on the problems raised by
the employees upon discussion.

The Group respects the right of employees to form
associations and organise unions upon their own free
will in accordance with the laws, and regularly convenes
labour conferences to share opinions with the labour
representatives and directly respond to the queries raised
by the employees. Meanwhile, it regularly organises
“Employee Forum” with the labour unions which allows
the labour unions to promptly reflect each problem raised
by the employees and constantly follow up the execution
progress of each discussion topic.
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RE - HERERES

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(3)

(4)

Labour communication - Strengthening communication
channels and valuing human rights (continued)

The Group has reported its internal regulations to
the competent authorities in the countries where its
production bases are located. Furthermore, it has
established the “Incentive and Disciplinary Committee”
comprising labour unions, legal personnel and relevant
competent units to deal with the matters of the reward
and punishment on the internal staff of the Company in a
transparent and open manner.

The Group attaches importance to labour interests. The
Vietnam plant (primary production base of the Group)
has coordinated with auditing institutions BSI/SGS/
INTERTEK to regularly carry out external audits and collect
employees’ opinions on the Company’s management
system, which is in line with the internationally
recognised standards.

Establishment of safe and healthy working environment
- Ensuring Company'’s safety to maintain employees’
healthiness

Adhering to the concept of “ensuring Company’s safety
to maintain employees’ healthiness”, the Group places
significant importance on the promotion of occupational
safety and hygiene. All of its policies, which are in
compliance with the relevant laws applicable to the local
operating area, have formed a safe working environment
to its employees, clients, underwriters and relevant
personnel.

The Group offers labour insurance and health insurance
applicable to the local operating area to each employee
and arranges regular health check for the employees in
an endeavour to look after the physical and mental health
of all employees. Moreover, the Group cooperates with
professional medical institutions to find out whether an
employee suffers from an occupational disease based
on the differences of each business division in order to
safeguard the healthiness of the employees.
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EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

RIEHARR
BE BUSEME BESTERN (F)

(4) Establishment of safe and healthy working environment (4) ERZ2HEEFENIFRE-ATZE:
- Ensuring Company’s safety to maintain employees’ TERE (F)
healthiness (continued)

In order to carry out the propaganda of the concept of
environmental protection, safety and hygiene, in addition
to organising environmental safety education programs
for the management level and the employees from time
to time, the Group has also merged the concept of
environmental safety and hygiene into major corporate
activities in order to create an impact of the combination
of environmental safety education with operating
activities.

The Group regularly inspects the progress and outcome
of every environmental protection, safety and hygiene
plan and continuously improves those plans in accordance
with the requirements. The department in charge of
environmental management implements and supervises
various safety and hygiene drills in the factory areas
targeting at the harm of special or major equipment in
the factory areas, and performs precaution inspections,
such as fire safety equipment, use of chemicals and safety
inspections on electrical equipment to avoid risks of
potential disaster.

In 2017, there were 11 cases of work injury in the
Group's primary production bases, which resulted in a
total of 3,444 lost working hours due to work injury.
The Group will continuously minimise the occurrence of
work safety accident every year through rigorous safety
education, management system and equipment.

The Vietnam plant (primary production base of
the Group) has comprehensively acquired various
management system certifications including 1SO 14001,
OHSAS 18001, ISO 50001, FSSC 22000, HACCP, ISO
9001 and so on. Meanwhile, it adheres to the standards
of the management systems and frequently carries out
inspections and guidance with continuous improvements.
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RE - HERERES

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’

Benefits (continued)

(5)

Development and training — Talent cultivation and
establishment of learning and growing environment
which employees can follow

As the Group believes that talents are, above all, the
greatest assets of the Company, we value the nurture
and development of talents and provide each employee
with a comprehensive educational training and promotion
system to satisfy the needs of employees in different
countries and regions, which allows all employees to
deploy their skills and unearth their potentials.

The Group regularly convenes meetings of the education
and training committee while proactively organising
professional courses and language courses based on
the job requirements of each department and regularly
conducting language and computer skill assessments to
improve occupational skills of the employees. The Group
has conducted a total four assessments of language and
computer skill respectively in 2017.

The Group formulates the “Annual Plan for Education
and Training” every year. To enhance the diversification of
learning, in addition to assigning employees to training
institutions to participate in various education and
trainings, the Group also engages professional lecturers
to hold a variety of seminars in the factories from time to
time and nurture its employees based on their aptitudes
so as to boost their potentials and enhance their work
passions and at the same time raise their sense of
belonging to the Company.

Based on the global operating strategy of the Group,
it continues to cultivate talents for its future senior
management and strategically nurtures employees
possessing high potentials with emphasis on specific
trainings to heighten the professionalism and regularly
updates on their promotion and development to ensure
the instantaneity and integrity of its talent reserve in a bid
to satisfy the needs for the long-term business growth of
the Group and enhance the core competitiveness of the
organisation.
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EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT BEI#BEER

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’ HH BUME£Mg HESTHEF (&)
Benefits (continued)

(5) Development and training - Talent cultivation and (5) BEEBI-AFEE BUBITER
establishment of learning and growing environment WEERREE (&)
which employees can follow (continued)

In 2017, the Group organised a total of 52,301 hours
of education and training courses with the average
training hours of approximately 14.65 hours per person
every year. In 2017, total hours of middle and high
management personnel of the Group taking occupational
training courses were 8,890.5 hours (middle management
officers) and 3,823.5 hours (senior management officers),
respectively.

2017% SERBROHB N RRRE
AR 852,301/ EI B AEF
HIBRBSF E 4 14.65/\8F - 2017 F £ E
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(6) Labour standards — Ensuring compliance with labour and (6) BIXQ-WEBFEHEREZES
safety laws

The Group strives to comply with all labour laws
applicable to the operating areas and achieve the goal of
“establishing a safe and healthy working environment”
by three aspects, namely “ensuring the compliance with
labour laws, constantly reviewing the development plans
and prohibiting the violation of human rights”.

The Group adheres to the principle of employment
freedom and refuses to hire forced labour and child
labour. All employment shall be based on the employees’
own free will and imposition of mandatory measures
on employees in violation of laws or human rights of
employees is prohibited.

The Group accepts inspections on its labour safety and
hygiene system carried out by government authorities
or external independent inspection units to ensure all
operating activities are in compliance with the local
government decree and international standards.
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RE - HERERES

EMPLOYEE PRACTICE AND BENEFIT

Policy: Building Corporate Harmony and Enhancing Employees’
Benefits (continued)

(6)

)

Labour standards — Ensuring compliance with labour and
safety laws (continued)

° The Group has an internal legal affairs department which
is not only responsible for revising the internal regulations
and systems of the Company in accordance with the
decrees issued by the government, but also for educating
the employees to understand and comply with the labour
laws through its education and training system.

Continuous review on development plans in pursuit of a
better safety and health management system

o The fundamental obligation of the Group is to provide
its employees a safe and healthy working environment.
A specialised department for the management of
environmental safety and hygiene has been established
within the Group which is responsible for supervising
the management system for environmental protection,
safety and hygiene, formulating all safety and hygiene
management regulations, regularly reviewing the
improvement recommendations put forward by all units,
examining the abnormal safety and hygiene incidents
and analysing the causes thereof, and suggesting feasible
improvement proposals or refined engineering designs
to the Group in an endeavour to assist the Group to
continuously heighten the management standards.

° Annual targets of the safety and hygiene management
have been set in each factory areas of the Group in
accordance with the local regulations. The occurrences
of abnormal safety and hygiene incidents have been
effectively reduced through an implementation of safety
and hygiene inspections, safety and hygiene education
and trainings and regular inspections on working
environment in order to maximise the working efficiency
of the employees in a safe and healthy environment.

° In addition to the respective safety and hygiene inspection
of each unit of the Group, the internal inspection
department also regularly reviews the management of
every environmental protection and safety operation
and the relevant operating environment to ensure the
implementation management systems such as ISO 14001,
OHSAS 18001, ISO 50001, FSSC 22000, HACCP, ISO
9001, etc.
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RE HEREREE

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers

Under the primary condition of stable quality and honesty in the
process of determining the suppliers, the Group selects its suppliers
across the globe as if deciding a long-term cooperation partner.
Under the gradual surge of green energy awareness across the
globe, the Group also wishes to promote the relevant environmental
protection concepts or practices to the upstream suppliers through
its supply chain management strategy of green products and
encourage the suppliers to actively cooperate and participate in the
environmental protection movement with its influence as a local
enterprise in hope to establish a green supply chain in the food
industry with its suppliers and improve the performance of the Group
and its suppliers in terms of social and environmental responsibility.

The raw material suppliers of the Group include manufacturers and
distributors. Engineering constructions are undertaken by engineering
contractors of construction and machinery. The Group adopts
standardised procurement model which not only includes comparison
of quality, cost, service, technology and delivery, but also includes
linked management for the information of suppliers to ensure the
integrity of the long-term information storage and flexibly updates
the changes in procurement demands so as to reduce procurement
risks.

The cooperation agreements between the Group and its suppliers or
contractors firstly requires the suppliers to faithfully carry out every
transaction in accordance with the contracts and not to damage
the interests and image of the Group. No suppliers shall engage
in transfer of personal benefits or involve in loans, leases and
investments for any non-business purposes with employees of the
Group or their families, relatives and friends. Meanwhile, the Group
also takes into account of appeals lodged by the suppliers against the
employees of the Group who may have breached the procurement
rules, and carries out investigations to safeguard the interests of the
suppliers in a bid to build a harmonious trading relationship between
both parties and establish an open, fair and just procurement
management mechanism.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers (continued)

We undertake to implement the following supply chain management
policies with considerable efforts:

(1) Regular supplier assessment mechanism for purpose of
improving management system of both parties

° The Group has established a system for inspection upon
delivery, regular inspection and assessment, and explicitly
has required the suppliers to cooperate with the Group’s
investigation in the factories based on the “Suppliers’
Annual External Assessment Program”. The top priority
is to guide the supplier to improve the deficiencies
found in the inspection and assessment. After notifying
suppliers the items which require improvement, regular
investigation shall be continued and gradings will be
given in order to improve the management system of
both parties and ensure its business relationships with
quality suppliers. In 2017, the Group fairly completed the
annual supplier assessment as scheduled and organised
two key supplier interactive communication meetings.

o The procurements of new raw materials or newly added
suppliers of the Group are all subject to the examination
and qualification judgement based on the “Assessment
Form for New Supplier” in order to ensure the standards
of the Group’s procurement management.
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RE HEREREE

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers (continued)

(2)

Continuous promotion and encouragement to suppliers
for implementation of their own management systems

In order to carry out safety management for suppliers
and prevent constructional safety incidents, the Group
not only continuously reminds and informs contractors
the relevant safety management requirements, but also
conducts on-site supervision over the operation safety of
the manufacturers and procures them to implement their
own management to prevent safety hazard to workers
or damage to the environment arising from improper
operation.

The Group also requires engineering contractors to
comply with and undertake to abide by all requirements
under the “Management Measures for Safety
and Hygiene of Contractors” and the policies and
requirements under ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 of
the Group and concurrently requires contractors to
assign safety management personnel and engineering
supervisors to the construction sites to confirm the
safety before, during and after the construction in
order to ensure the operation safety and environmental
hygiene. In 2017, the Group has organised two education
programmes concerning safety and hygiene management
for the contractors and continuously heightened the
critical measures and requirements.
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RE - HEREREE

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Policy: Strengthening Green Procurement and Maintaining
Mutual Growth with Suppliers (continued)

(3)

Continuously maintain the proportion of green
procurement

In principle, if the suppliers in the country of the Group’s
business footholds or the neighbouring countries share
the advantages in delivery time with the same favourable
conditions in terms of quality, service and price, priority
would be given to the local raw material suppliers and
contractors in order to reduce the carbon emission in
the process of transportation and jointly achieve green
efficiency.

In addition to continuously facilitating the replacement of
old and high-consumption equipment with new models
through plans on manufacturing process improvement
or special projects, the Group also regularly participates
in various exhibitions of innovative technology and new
energy conservation equipment in hope to continue to
manufacture with relatively high-efficiency equipment,
reduce energy consumption per unit, reduce the cost of
electricity used for operation, thereby implement energy
management and enhance the competitiveness of the
Group in the industry.

The Group advocates green procurement policy and
gradually carry out the environmental protection
concept of “low pollution, recyclability and resources
conservation”. We support ecologically friendly products
and green energy, and give priority to recyclable,
degradable, reusable and recoverable products in
response to the international environmental protection
standards. In compliance with the local environmental
protection regulations, we encourage suppliers to actively
develop green products so as to minimise the damage
to the environment. All in all, we make a contribution to
take the eco-friendly pledge for all mankind.

In 2017, the Group’s primary production bases
continuously increased the proportion of green
procurement to meet the carbon reduction target.
Accomplishments, in particular, included: (a) continuous
increase in proportion of procurement at production
places with great effort, (b) completion of two annual
procurement projects of energy-efficient equipment, (c)
continuous adoption of biofuel of 52,106 tons/year and
(d) achievement of the procurement target of 100%
electrical appliances with energy efficiency label.
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RE - HEREREE

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Policy: Comprehensive Quality Management to Live Up to
Customers’ Satisfaction

Continuous pursuit of high quality is the core objective of the
Group's corporate culture. Over the years, we have been enhancing
the planning and implementation of quality improvement of our
products and persisting to exceed customers’ expectations with
supreme quality.

Through a consolidation of three aspects, namely quality control,
production technology and management system, the Group strictly
complies with the highest standard of “Comprehensive Quality
Management” to carry out quality control, enhance productivity and
pursue a production process with lower cost and higher efficiency so
as to achieve a more promising operating performance of the Group.

We undertake to implement the following product responsibility
policies with considerable efforts:

(1) In compliance with national quality and safety regulations

° As product is the core competitiveness of an enterprise,
the primary production bases of the Group have
established GMP+ Feed Safety Assurance, ISO 17025,
HACCP, ISO 9001 and FSSC 22000 food safety
management systems and enforce them on relevant
food production aspects to enhance its competitiveness
and satisfy customers’ requirements on quality and the
requirements of food safety standards.

° The Group ensures the quality of every product it
produced is in compliance with all requirements of
relevant local laws applicable to the operating areas.

o In 2017, the Group has fully implemented the monthly
review of the validity period of various intellectual
property rights in a bid to ensure the due completion of
registration procedure for renewal before expiration and
prevent trademarks being counterfeited.

o The shipment of each batch of the products is subject to
a random inspection conducted by the Group. The fail
rate of the Group’s product in the random inspection in
2017 was approximately 0.15%; the Group will continue
to enhance the system for the traceability of source
management.

. The Group performed a product recall drill in 2017 for
every main product (MSG, seasoning products, modified
starch, maltose and feed products).
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RE #HEREREE

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Policy: Comprehensive Quality Management to Live Up to
Customers’ Satisfaction (continued)

(2) Preservation of customers’ interests and consolidation of
customer relations

° As the Group weighs its customer relation management
system, it has established feasible and effective customer
communication channels to understand the needs and
questions of customers. The Group has established the
"operating procedures for toll-free customer service
hotline”. Through the toll-free customer hotline, the
Group ascertains the procedures and scope of customer
service operation and matters which require customers’
cooperation in order to ensure customers’ interests as
well as to safeguard the interests of the distributors and
agents.

° Addressing customers’ opinions and feedbacks and the
quality issues, each business unit has formulated standard
operating procedures in compliance with the local laws,
according to which it promptly provides proper responses,
makes reports and puts forward solutions through the
communication channels specified in the official website
of the Group and sales personnel to achieve the goal of
customer satisfaction.

° In 2017, the Group has received 11 customer feedbacks
in total. The general management office has appointed a
designated person to arrange the response to customers'
feedback and the response rate was 100%.

° Addressing customers’ data protection and privacy
management, the Group carried out 6 internal
inspections in 2017 to ensure that the management
measures are duly implemented by every department.

o The distribution partners around the world are important
market vanguards of the Group which help the Group to
deliver its brand value to the potential customers at every
corner of the world. The Group organises distribution
partner meetings or product launching events from time
to time to share the analysis on the overall market trend
and its marketing strategies in order to assure customers’
satisfaction and establish a long-term and stable market
operating foundation for the Group.
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RE HEREREE

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND PREVENTIVE MEASURES
Policy: Upholding Integrity and Formulating Standards

The Group highly values operation in good faith. It has established
a designated inspection unit, in addition to the establishment of a
transparent and open communication platform. The Group requires
its employees to comply with the regulations of integrity and also
reinforces the propaganda on a regular basis to prevent corruption
and fraud.

The Group requires all employees to abide by the prevailing
government regulations in each operating area and the internal
regulations of the Company in an endeavour to procure employees
to safeguard the Group's reputation with the highest moral standard.
For the implementation of the Group's anti-corruption policy, penalty
shall be imposed on inappropriate conducts in accordance with the
relevant regulations of the Company, while local legal proceedings
shall be instituted on a serious breach.

The Group shall implement the following policies with considerable
efforts to enforce the regulations of integrity on employees:

(1) Continuous propaganda of integrity

The Group requires every employee internally, and reminds all
customers, suppliers and all third parties involved in business
transactions externally not to obtain commercial benefits
directly or indirectly through malfeasance or bribery. It has also
established standard operation procedure systems for business,
procurement and finance departments to prevent employees
from abusing their power for personal gains which would result
in conflict of interests.

(2) Establishment of transparent and open communication
platform

Integrity is a major criterion of the Group's assessment on its
employees and employees who reported corrupt conducts shall
not result in any implication to their salaries and promotion
prospects or be subject to other unfavourable penalties.
There is a feedback channel which allows all employees to
report corrupt conducts to the management directly through
diversified means, where the whistle blower shall be protected
by the Group’s system. No employee in the Group was subject
to legal proceedings regarding corrupt conduct in 2017.
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RE - HEREREE

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer

The Group provides special care to the relatively underprivileged
minority in society and gives long-term and appropriate support and
positive encouragement. With a thankful heart, the Group is willing
to be a cheerful corporate volunteer and communicate with the
community benevolently so as to requite the public for the support to
the Company.

Through internal coordination and planning of the public relations
department, the Group has been devoting itself to public welfare
activities, such as providing international medical support, taking care
of the impoverished families, promoting environmental protection
and energy conservation education and sponsoring outstanding
poor students for a long period of time in hope for encouraging
more enthusiasts to carry out charitable work and radiating
warmth to every corner in need through our modest contribution
and increased participation. Vietnam Red Cross awarded the “Red
Cross Outstanding Contribution of Business Enterprise Award” to a
Vietnamese company under the Group for multiple times, indicating
that the Company’s active participation in the public welfare has
obtained recognition by international charity and aid organisation.

The followings set forth a summary of the Group’s social operation
and participation in public welfare:

(1) Continuous international medical support

Given that international human care has always been the
benevolent activity which the Group pays attention to, other
than sponsoring the “Agent Orange Victim Fund” and the
“Child Protection Fund”, the Vietnam plant (primary production
base of the Group) has cooperated with the Government of
Dong Nai Province, Taichung Veterans General Hospital, Taiwan
and Huei-Kong Social Welfare Foundation for six consecutive
years to carry out international medical support activities which
benefitted nearly ten thousand people. In 2017, the Group
fully implemented the plan under the “Medical Cooperation
Memorandum” entered into by the government, universities
and companies, which supports medical personnel in Vietnam
to go to Taiwan for a half-year international medical exchange
in order to achieve the goal of expanding local medical services
and cultivating outstanding medical professionals.
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RIBE -HERE

B¥RE

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer (continued)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Encouragement to employees to participate in social
welfare activities

The Group always encourages its employees to participate in
all kinds of public welfare activities and several directors of
the Group and their families have set an example by working
as long-term volunteers of medical institutions and hospice
centres in an endeavour to motivate more employees to unite
their power through personal actions and serve the public with
contribution to society.

Continuous charity and public welfare activities

To demonstrate the spirit of fraternity and help impoverished
families, the Group adheres to the concept of gaining healthy
lives through flavourful and delicious food and organises
various activities such as “Spreading Warmth at the End of the
Year”, "Gratitude Fund”, "Building Warm-Hearted House” and
“Poverty Fund” every year to provide the most appropriate
support to the needy.

Facilitation environmental protection and energy
conservation education

In order to enhance the awareness of the importance of
energy and climate change issues among all people, the Group
cooperated with the local government and international
organisations every year to promote the concept of forest
conservation by organising different activities such as "“Green
Sunday”, “Tree Planting”, “Environmental Protection Drawing
Competition” and “Classification of Household Waste”,
and sponsor a variety of environmental protection funds in
an endeavour to facilitate environmental protection, forest
conservation, forest expansion and improve the ecological
environment.

International Medical Support

BB EEEE
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RE HERERBHRS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WELFARE

Policy: Facilitating Social Development and Willing to be
Corporate Volunteer (continued)

(5)

(6)

Continuous promotion study encouragement

In order to incentivise impoverished students, the Group not only
entered into the “Industry-University Collaboration Memorandum”
with numerous higher education institutions, but also regularly
carried out study encouragement in accordance with the local
government policies and gave scholarships and donations for
construction of schools in a bid to provide better education to
outstanding students in order to encourage students to study hard.

Donations for Construction of Schools and
Encouragement to Students
BEEREFES T

Generation of a centripetal force towards society by
culture education

The cultivation strategy of the Group is to rapidly and fully
integrate into local culture where it operates. As such, the
Group provides various recreational activities and supports the
relevant activities of local governments, such as celebrating
local festivals, participating in the International Women's Day,
commending senior employees, establishing party organisations
and organising activities in a bid to enhance a sense of
belonging of the employees to the local culture and earn
recognition of the Company from society.
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RE HEREREE

PROSPECTS

"“Care for environment and sustainable operation” is the operational
mission of the Group and also a commitment and fundamental
responsibility of us as an international corporate citizen to the
environment and society. In process of the preparation of the
disclosure in this report, we have reviewed the actual actions taken
by the Group in a new perspective for implementing the three
sustainability measures, namely sustainable environment, public
welfare and sound corporate governance, and found that certain
items still require continuous improvement. In the future, the Group
will formulate better development solutions which integrate the
operating procedures and will continuously strive for excellence,
facilitate social development and benefit the environment as a whole.

With reference to the relevant regulations and international
standards, the Group will continue to review the hindrances and
risks to be involved in the future corporate governance, social
development and environmental protection. It will also formulate
mid-to-long-term improvement strategies and action plans as soon
as possible with effective communication with the stakeholders of
the Group, including employees, customers, suppliers, investors and
the community, that enable them to understand and support every
practical action taken by the Group for the environmental, social and
governance in order to face the trend of the macro-environment and
challenges together in a prudent manner and seek the best way for
coexistence and mutual prosperity.

The Group believes that the fulfilment of social responsibility is the
critical driving force for the sustainable growth of enterprises in the
21st century. In the future, we will continue to integrate the core
competence of biotechnology with social responsibility, nurture
talents for the greening field and develop green economy. The Group
not only expects to have a significant influence on the food industry,
but also hopes to arouse the awareness of climate change among
global citizens in an endeavour to contribute to the sustainable
development of the environment of the earth and create a better
home together.
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RBE -HERE

The Group's compliance of General Disclosures and KPIs:

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

76 ¥R B

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls
TEER BEH —REBRBAEENER

“Comply or explain” Provisions

[FETRERE]

SEETF-RREREREBIERZBITBL

H(RE HEREA/EES) 2HERR

Compliance as disclosed
in this report

TEEERBEZBITHER

A. Environmental
RiE

A1 Emissions:

Bmm:

General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)

— R E (2016.1.14 %)

Information on:
BEBERREREHN MKE IS BEERBEREEY
MBS

(a)  the policies; and

(a) HEE: X

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

(b) BITHETABEAZENHEBEZZRMAOINER-

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

Note: (1) Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulated
under national laws and regulations.

do WESHREEASLCY HetWREMTETOERE KRR E
COMER 7K

Note: (2) Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous
oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and sulphur
hexafluoride.

A QRERBEBE_StHK Pk SR @@RtEEw 23t
RN EmALE

Note: (3) Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.

d QBETEREVEBRERBEOMATESE-

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report
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RIBE -HEREBBRENTE

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, HRE - HEREARHREES) 2HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

FTEHER BEEH —REERBEEANER

“Comply or explain” Provisions Compliance as disclosed
[FEFHAERE] in this report
TREERBEZBITER

KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
BRENIBE (2017.1.1%£ %)

KPI A1.1: The types of emissions and respective emissions data. As stated in the section
BESRAE B IEAT - BRI TR AR R BE R B - headed “Environmental

Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report

MEmEE RBERE)H
WY E R | EE AU

KPI A1.2: Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, | As stated in the section
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, | headed “Environmental

per facility). Protection (1) Emission
FRETIEIZA1.2 SEEREAHRE (UWEETE) R (WEA) % | management” in this
E (WA SESEMN  BERMETE) - report

MEE RBREDHE
W IE ] EERUM

KPI A1.3: Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where | As stated in the section
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per | headed “Environmental

facility). Protection (1) Emission
BRESIEEMI MEEEEEEDES (LTS ) &R (@ | management” in this
R)EE (MAEEESMN GHEEBHETE) - report

MEmEE RBERE)H
WA E R | EE AT

KPI A1.4: Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, | As stated in the section
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, | headed “Environmental

per facility). Protection (1) Emission
BRESIEEM A FMELEBREEEYES (LUEFTE) & (3 | management” in this
B)EE (WM ESESEMN SHEKRENE) - report

W EE [RERE)S
BER | EERUR
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIBE -HEREBBRENTE

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#8)

(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
FTERER BEH —REBENRBREEVER

“Comply or explain” Provisions

[ R8T AEE]

B (RE HERELAREES) 2HERE

Compliance as disclosed
in this report

EBEEERBEZBITHEE

KPI A1.5: Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved.
RIS BUERALS MU BB E R AERR -

KPI A1.6: Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
BRANIERA 6 HARBAFTLEEEEYN X REE
EEREERFTERR -

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report

MR EE RRREDHE
WY EIE ] EERUM

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (1) Emission
management” in this
report

M EE RBREDE
WA E R ] EE R

A2 Use of
Resources:

BIRER :

General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)
— B E (2016.1.1.4£ %)

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

BERERER (BEER KREMRME) OB -

Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in
buildings, electronic equipment, etc.
2 BRTVAREE #7F EH BF BFREF-

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report
MEERBREQE
TR AE R &AM
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIBE -HEREBBRENTE

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

(#)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHKE EH —REBENERERESR

“Comply or explain” Provisions

[REFHAEE]

B (R HERERBEES) 2HRX

Compliance as disclosed
in this report

EBEEERBEZBITHEE

KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
BRENIBE (2017.1.1%£ %)

KPI A2.1: Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

BRETIEEREA  RENESNERER SEEER(NE K|
gom) EREE (UTETERFE) REBE (WASEEEN 1]
R H) -

KPI' A2.2: Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).
BRERURIEA2.2  BFEKERTE (WUBEESN B8

HE) o

iid

%5

KPI A2.3: Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.
RSB RUIRIRA2.3 e R ARGt B R PR E R

KPI A2.4: Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

B A RUIE IR A2.4 - SR BUGE A KR Er] AR BE - DA &R
FrRKB B RAERR -

KPI A2.5: Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
BRERUETA2S BB aEMENRE (AEFTE)R
(MER)BEEEMGE-

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited kfBEIER (25) R 27

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report

M EETRRREQE
REAER] E&au

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report
MBEERBREQ)E
RIEAER] EEAUM

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report
MMEERRREQE
REAER] E&aul

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report
MBEETRBREQE
RIEAER] ZEAUM

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (2) Resources
usage management” in
this report
MMEERRREQE
RIEAER] EEaUt




Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

B (RE HEREAREES) 2HERR

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#)
(continued)
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHR EH —REERBEERER
“Comply or explain” Provisions Compliance as disclosed
[REBFHRE] in this report
TREEREZBITER
A3
Environment
and Natural
Resources: General Disclosure (effective from 2016.1.1)
BRERRAER: — B E (2016.1.1.4£ %)

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

BIEBETAHRRERRAERERERTEOBE -

KPI (effective from 2017.1.1)
BREMIEE (2017.1.1£X)

KPI A3.1: Description of the significant impacts of activities on
the environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

BRERURIEAS M EREHHRBERRAERNEATE
ME KR EREHET ENITE -

As stated in the section
headed "“Environmental
Protection (3)
Environment and natural
resources management”
in this report

ks E RIFREQR)IR
BRRAKABREE] ZE

As stated in the section
headed “Environmental
Protection (3)
Environment and natural
resources management”
in this report

M EE R RREG)ER
RBRERAERER|ES
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HEREBRBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, H(RE HERERAHREES) 2HEBR
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (%)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER BEEH -REERBRANER

Compliance as

disclosed in
“Comply or explain” this report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures AREEREZ
[TETHBE] BERE BIEY
B. Social # &
I. Employment and
Labour Practices
- EREREIER
B1 Employment: General Disclosure
EfE: (effective from 2016.1.1)
—REE (2016.1.1. %)
Information on:
ERFMRRE BRREN
TERE BRE TERE S
b RIERAREMFERER
0l
(a) the policies; and As stated in the section
@ HE: R headed “Employee
(b) compliance with relevant Practice and Bgnefit (1)
laws and regulations that Employment principles”
have a significant impact in this report
on the issuer NHEEBIRAR
(b) BFHETABEALEN BROEERA ZE
HRER RABIMEH - st
relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

(#&)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER BE -REERBRENESR

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

[TETHEE]

Recommended Disclosures

EENE

B (R HERERBEES) 2HRX

Compliance as
disclosed in
this report
AREEREZ
BIEY

B2 Health and

Safety:
REHEZ2:

General Disclosure
(effective from 2016.1.1)
—REE (2016.1.1.45 %)

Information on:

BHRER2 TERERREE
BMEBENREN:

(a
(a

the policies; and

W R

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b) BFHETABEATEM

HEEERAOMER -

relating to providing a safe
working environment and
protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

EENE-HRARER

KPI B1.1
BRENEEB1

Total work force by gender,
employment type, age group
and geographical region.

BRI ERER  FRARI R
BEDIESEE -

KPI B1.2
BIRENIEIER1.2

Employee turnover rate
by gender, age group and
geographical region.

RIER - F el R Rt e 30 8
EERKLE-

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report
MHEEEIEHAA
BRHO)EERE] &
it

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (1)
Employment principles”
in this report
MBEEEIEIRMREA
BMERRE] 24
A

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report

NHREEIETIRHRA
BHOBREZ 2 HREE
B ITERE] EHRM
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HEREBRBREME

B (R HERERBEES) 2HRX
(#)

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER BEEH -REERBRANESR

Compliance as

disclosed in
“Comply or explain” this report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures AREEREZ
[FETFHEE] EERRE BiTER

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BENE-HEANER

KPI B2.1
R ENEEB2.

KPIB2.2
BRENIEEB22

KPI B2.3
B NIEIER23

82  Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk fHEIRE (328%) BRA T

Number and rate of work-related
fatalities.

ATFREMETHARRL

Lost days due to work injury.
RIGEXTIEAH:

Description of occupational
health and safety measures
adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.

HRMRANBERREL 2R
I A RIEBSRIT RE R 7%

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report

NREEETIRRA
BHUBRER 2 HRER
) TIERE] ZHAUL
As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report

MHREEEIRAA
BHOBRER2HER
B IIERE] ZHAUL
As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (4)
Establishment of safe
and healthy working
environment” in this
report

MHREEBEIRAA
BHOBRER2HER
B IERE] ZHAUL




Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

(#&)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER BE -REERBRENESR

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

[TETHEE]

Recommended Disclosures

EENE

B (R HERERBEES) 2HRX

Compliance as
disclosed in
this report
AREEREZ
BEY

B3 Development
and Training:

BR RN

General Disclosure
(effective from 2016.1.1)
—BRIEE (2016.1.1.4 %)

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.
ERRAEERTIERED
R8T B BUR - SR FIR
o

Note: Training refers to
vocational training. It
may include internal
and external courses
paid by the employer.

i JIEBREEI AT
FEHEFFENRID
FRIR

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

EERE-HEANER

KPI B3.1
BN EEB3.

The percentage of employees
trained by gender and
employee category (e.g.
senior management, middle
management).
RUERIREEER (NaRER
B PREEES)ENNZIE
BB

The average training hours
completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
RUEFIREBENES BEE
BA X I8 TR 8

KPI B3.2
B ENIEEB3.2

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
PREE[BETIRRA
BRG)EREEI]E
R

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
NHREEIETIRRA
BAEERAEI] &
i At

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit
(5) Development and
training” in this report
MEEEEIRRE
BAC)EREEI] &
AL
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HEREBRBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

B (R HERERBEES) 2HRX

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#5)
(continued)
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE BE -REERBRENEE
Compliance as
disclosed in
“Comply or explain” this report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures AREEREZ
[FETHERE] BENE BEiTER
B4 Labour: Standards: General Disclosure
STREA: (effective from 2016.1.1)

— R E (2016.1.1.6%)

Information on:

BB EETHHASE T

(a) the policies; and

@ BE: K

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b) BTHETABEAYEM
EEEERAGINER

relating to preventing child and
forced labour.

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (6)
Labour standards” in
this report
MBEEETRHAA
B TERZ6
AUt

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

EENE-HRANER

KPI B4.1
SR B 1ER4 N

Description of measures to
review employment practices to
avoid child and forced labour.
i R E G AR R
EIRBMSI:

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to

IR MIEIER4.2 eliminate such practices when
discovered.
HOEBERERBERREREHE
BRI F 5 -

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (6)
Labour standards” in
this report
MBEEE[EIFRE
BHEBIERIEEH
piigu

As stated in the section
headed "Employee
Practice and Benefit (6)
Labour standards” in
this report
NHREEETIRRA
BRE)S TER] EH
At
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

B (R HERERBEES) 2HRX

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (%)
(continued)
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
IREE BE -REBRBEENER
Compliance as
disclosed in
“Comply or explain” this report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures AREEREZ
[TETHBE] BERE BIEY
II. Operating
Practices
= EERM
B5 Supply Chain General Disclosure
Management: (effective from 2016.1.1)
HEREERE —®REE (2016.1.1.£%)

Policies on managing
environmental and social risks of
the supply chain.
ERHERNRE R GRRT
%o

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

EERE-HEARER

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by

BRI IEIEB5. geographical region.
BRIDMEEHHE -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating

MR EIERS.2 to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, how
they are implemented and
monitored.

W ABERAHEERNED @
ENTEBRBRMMtEREE
AREBEAMNBRITRERSR
o

As stated in the section
headed “Supply Chain
Management” in this

report
MEEE[HEEEE)
E3:07 818

As stated in the section
headed “Supply Chain
Management (1), (2)
and (3)" in this report

MmEEHERER
(M )RE) ] EeR
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE HERERBMEME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

B (R HERERBEES) 2HRX

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#5)
(continued)
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE BE -REERBRENEE
Compliance as
disclosed in
“Comply or explain” this report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures AREEREZ
[FETHERE] BENE BEiTER
B6 Product General Disclosure
Responsibility: (effective from 2016.1.1)
EmEL: —BRBE (2016.1.1.4%)

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited & fBEIER (25%) R A3

Information on:

BBFMREERANRBOERSR

22 BE RERMEEEUR

R A

(a) the policies; and

@ BHE: &

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b) BIFHBTABEATYEM
EERZEERADINER -

relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and
services provided and methods
of redress.

As stated in the section
headed “Product
Responsibility” in this
report
MBEEEREMR] E
iF e




Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, HRE -HEREARREES) 2HER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (#&)
(continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER BE -REERBRENESR

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

[TETHEE]

Recommended Disclosures

EENE

Compliance as
disclosed in
this report
AREEREZ
BIEY

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

EENE-HRARER

KPI B6.1
RN 12861

Percentage of total products sold
or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.
BERREREREHTRAL S
BRFEMMARKNBED L.

KPI B6.2
B ENIE1E86.2

Number of products and service
related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.
BERARERIRENRFEE
AR S 7 %

KPI B6.3
B ENIE1E86.3

Description of practices relating
to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

it EEERREAEERER

ok

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance

R GENIEER64 process and recall procedures.
RS EmTEREREREKE
Fo

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data

R EUETEB6.S protection and privacy policies,
how they are implemented and
monitored.

IO BEEERRERILE R
FUARBARITRER G-

As stated in the section
headed “Product
Responsibility (1)" in
this report
mHEEEmEME
(1] Egfut

As stated in the section
headed “Product
Responsibility (2)" in
this report
NHREE[EREAR
(2) | EEf

As stated in the section
headed "Product
Responsibility (1) in
this report
NHREE[ERAR
(1) ] &

As stated in the section
headed “Product
Responsibility (1)" in
this report
NREEIEMRA
(1) e

As stated in the section
headed “Product
Responsibility (1)" in
this report
nHREEE@AA
(1) EEf
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HEREBRBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

(continued)

(%)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEER BEEH -REERBRANER

“Comply or explain”
Provisions

[TETHEE]

Recommended Disclosures

EENE

B (R HERERBEES) 2HRX

Compliance as
disclosed in
this report
AREERERZ
BIEY

B7 Anti-corruption:

RES:

General Disclosure
(effective from 2016.1.1)
—REE (2016.1.1.4 %)

Information on:
BEMEHE 9% BFRER
LR

(a) the policies; and

@ BE: &

(b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer

(b) BTHETABEATEM
EEEERAOINER -

relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering.

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

BERE-HEARER

KPI B7.1
AR E IR 1RBT .1

Number of concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RERBANHETAIEEER
LI BBENESFRRENE
BRFDER.

Description of preventive
measures and whistleblowing
procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.
M SBEERBREF UK
HRRATRERAE.

KPI B7.2
BRENIEEET.2

As stated in the
section headed "Anti-
corruption and
Preventive Measures” in
this report

mEEEIRARMA]
Bl

As stated in the
section headed "Anti-
corruption and
Preventive Measures
(1)" in this report
nHREEIRERRA
(1) ] el

As stated in the
section headed “Anti-
corruption and
Preventive Measures
(2)" in this report
WHREEREFHA
(2) | EEf
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Notes to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIR #HERERBREME

CROSS-REFERENCE SHEET OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL,

B (R HERERBEES) 2HRX

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (%)
(continued)
Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
IREE BE -REBRBEENER
Compliance as
disclosed in
“Comply or explain” this report
Provisions Recommended Disclosures AREEREZ
[TETHBE] BERE BIEY
lll. Community
= HE
B8 Community General Disclosure
Investment: (effective from 2016.1.1)
HERE: —REE (2016.1.1.4£%)

Policies on community
engagement to understand
the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and
to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’
interests.
BRNHEBE2ERTREEME
HERENRRAERESEE
AL R Z A E R

Recommended Disclosures - KPI

EERE-HEANER

Focus are as of contribution
(e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

EFEHEE(NHE BET
H-SIFF BE X -8

z=

B)e

KPI B8.1
RN 12881

KPI B8.2
PR ENIEEB8.2

Resources contributed (e.g.
money or time) to the focus
area.
CTEFEEMHBER (e
HEERH) o

As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare” in this
report

IREEMELEH
BEDNE] EHfUL

=E

As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare (1)-(6)"
in this report
MREEMRLEN
BER@()-6)] EH
As stated in the section
headed “Community
Development and
Public Welfare” in this
report
MEEEHELER
BEDNH] BB
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Report of Directors

EEERE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) present their report and
the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the production of fermentation-based
amino acids, food additive products and cassava starch based
industrial products. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in Note 10 to the accounts.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of these
activities during the year under review.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Preface

For fair review of the Group’s business, the description about major
risks and uncertainties and business prospects, please refer to
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this Report.

Subsequent events after year end date

No major event that influences business operation of the Group has
occurred since 31 December 2017 (the balance sheet date of the
financial year under review) until the date of this report.

Analysis of key financial performance indicators

For detailed key financial performance indicators that reflect business
performance of the Group, refer to “Financial Highlights” on page 5
in this Annual Report.

Corporate environmental policy and performance

Environmental protection has always been a key target that the
Group is concerned and works hard on. The Group has worked
out an environmental policy and included environmental protection
in daily management in accordance with related environmental
protection laws and regulations applicable to the production
base. The Group has also helped every employee cultivate their
environmental protection awareness, strengthen the environmental
protection concept, prevent environmental pollution, and cherish the
earth’s natural resources, so as to conserve energy, reduce carbon
footprint, and jointly build a sustainable green enterprise.

90 vedan International (Holdings) Limited B B (EZER)BRATR
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Report of Directors

EEERE

In line with the national policy for production base, the Group
regularly holds all kinds of environmental safety drills and review
meetings to enhance the disaster response capability of employees,
creates a safe industrial environment for all the employees, and
actively strives to become a model enterprise in labour safety and
health.

The Group will continuously promote its environmental protection
policy to meet the following requirements:

1. Comply with or surpass provisions of the related laws and
internal standards.

2. Carry out corporate activities in light of the principles of paying
attention to personal safety, environmental protection and
resources conservation.

3. Minimize the emission of waste gas, waste water and waste
material as far as technically feasible.

4. Advocate recycling of resources to achieve the objective of
reducing material consumption and waste.

5. Include the concept of environmental protection, safety
and health in employee training and carry out all kinds of
environmental safety and health activities.

6. Check the progress and implementation effect of each plan on
an annual basis and improve deficiencies to achieve the purpose
of continuous improvement.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group constantly updates related laws and regulations applicable
to the production base (in Vietnam and China) and ensures
compliance with them. The Group's assets are located in Vietnam and
China respectively, while its income mainly comes from operations
of the Vietnam plant. During the year under review, the Group
observed the applicable laws and regulations of the country where
the production base is in all the aspects of significant influences.

AEBETEEEM  BRBEE  EMERSER
RZBBRRNE BAKBE I ZXERERE
N BERETERERE BEFIRKAS
REFENLEAEH-

AEEFBERERED I RFRERE:

1. HARBEERESRABEEZER.

2. BEEBRHNIEAERE RERTELRE
BERZRAIETT-

3. ERWMATZEER @A ER
BEK - REEMEISR M-

4. REERZOWENA WERBRIDE
HREREEZ BHY e

5. BRE ZERFEZESBABEIZI
R WHRBSBERLERD-

6. BFEHRBERBZAFEERERATRIY
UHREETHE NEFBERZZH
Hy o

BIEERER

AEETEEFRLEESE N (BB LETE)ERDN
HEER BRESKERK -AEEEED LR
MR R B mASE W E T 2R E R AR
LE-DNEFE AKREEMAEAFETEY
BEETEERMBZGERAMNBRIER -
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Report of Directors

EEERE

Major relationships with employees, customers and suppliers
The Group energetically cultivates local talents of the production
base to become major officers, and provides outside training or
internal training specific to expertise of employees so as to enhance
professional functions of all employees. The Group promotes park-
like construction of plants, offers an elegant working environment
and employee dormitories, sets up books, recreation, balls and
other facilities, and organizes comprehensive and attractive welfare
and recreational activities for employees. The Group has been
implementing its corporate citizenship concept and recruiting
outstanding talents to support its sustainable operations. Neither
strike nor major occupational hazard cases ever occurred during the
year under review.

The Group has established sound interactive relationships with
suppliers to realize efficient cooperation and jointly meet the business
requirements of all the customers. The purchase department of
the Group regularly reviews the supply quality with suppliers, and
examines all the production processes of the supply plant on site to
ensure stable and high purchase quality of the Group. Prior to each
purchase project, the Group has clarified the Group's regulations
and standards to the supplier; all purchase processes comply with
the principles of openness, fairness and justice, and agreements are
signed to ensure rights and interests of both parties.

The Group highly values the opinions and views of all customers,
learns the consumption demand trends of customers by using
different methods and pipelines, analyzes customer feedback
regularly, and adjusts the production and marketing plan flexibly to
meet requirements of all the customers and enhance the Group's
performance gradually. The Group carries out strict control and
inspection of product quality in accordance with international food
regulations so as to provide customers with products and services
of the best quality. The Group signs sales agreements with all the
major customers and distributors and maintains good cooperation
relationships with them by observing the standard sales procedures of
the Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 115.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of 0.443 US
cents per share, totalling US$6,750,000 (2016: US$12,740,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2017. Subject to shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the
final dividend will be paid in cash on or around 8 June 2018 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 31 May 2018.

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited &k B (EZER)BRATR
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DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2017 amounting to US$208,000.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s share premium reserve
(subject to the Cayman Companies Law and the articles of association
of the Company) and retained earnings available for distribution to
the Company’s shareholders are set out in Note 35 to the accounts.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
December 2017.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group purchased
less than 35% of its goods and services from its 5 largest suppliers
and sold less than 30% of its goods and services to its 5 largest
customers. None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 3,781 employees,
3,570 of whom were employed by subsidiaries in Vietnam, 197 by
subsidiaries in the PRC and 14 by the Taiwan Branch. The Group's
employees are remunerated in accordance with prevailing industry
practices, and with reference to the financial performance of the
Group and performance of individual employees. Other fringe
benefits such as accommodations, meals, insurance, medical
coverage and provident fund are provided to employees to ensure
staff loyalty and the Group's competitiveness. To enhance the quality
of human resources, bolster the professional skills and management
abilities of employees and build localised workforces, the Group
provides job rotation as well as internal and external training courses
and seminars on professional skills, languages, etc.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
YANG, Tou-Hsiung
YANG, Cheng
YANG, Kun-Hsiang
YANG, Chen-Wen
YANG, Kun-Chou

Non-executive Directors
HUANG, Ching-Jung
CHOU, Szu-Cheng

Independent Non-executive Directors
CHAO, Pei-Hong

KO, Jim-Chen

CHEN, Joen-Ray

HSIEH, Lung-Fa

According to Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou, Mr. CHAO, Pei-
Hong and Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. All such
Directors being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 30 to 35.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN EEREMG HRABROREEECZEEZN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES RE

(@) As at 31 December 2017, the interests of Directors of the (a)
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance

RZZE—+F+_A=+—H ARA=E
ERARRAHEEMEEEE (EERE
7 M BRDIEXVER) 2 B - BRI ()
NERFEPHB 2 ERIT  —

(the “SFQ"), were as follows:—

Interests in shares

Rz S

Percentage of
issued shares

Number of of the Company

Name Capacity ordinary shares HAATE BT

" A 56 LZER™E R4 A 2L

Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%
TR controlled by him Long Positions
MEER 2 EEZ#ER e
(Notes 1 and 3)
(B&E1R3)

Mr. YANG, Cheng Interest of company 169,730,196 11.15%
15 IE %4 controlled by him Long Positions
REER 2 EE 2R A
(Notes 2 and 3)
(FfE2X3)

Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung Beneficial owner 200,000 0.01%
EEREYE Rt 2PN Long Positions
e

Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong Beneficial owner 500,000 0.03%

had in the 169,730,196 shares were of the same block of shares.

IRt ExnEEA Long Positions
HE

Notes: =

1. Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung was entitled to exercise or control 1. ML E AT E IR TE
the exercise of more than one-third of the voting power King International Limited ([King
of King International Limited (“King International”). Mr. International | ) BB =52 — 8%
YANG, Tou-Hsiung was therefore deemed to have interest SR - 15 TE M ST £ M A48 A R King
in the 169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King International¥ & 2 169,730,196 % 2~ A
International. AR R A REZS -
Mr. YANG, Cheng was entitled to exercise or control the exercise 2. 5 IE % A B HEATE S H 7T # King
of more than one-third of the voting power of King International. International i@ =9 7 —HI R RIE 15
Mr. YANG, Cheng was therefore deemed to have interest IS E A MR AR King Internationali®
in the 169,730,196 shares of the Company as held by King B 2169,730,196 & 2 A &) B 1D 7 7 A #E
International. e
The interests that Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and Mr. YANG, Cheng 3. BHEEEAERBIELXERBER Z

169,730,196 % AR {5 #E 2s T BE P B — L A%

,T/'\ °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the
Model Code in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange; nor had they been
granted such rights.

DISCLOSURE OF CHANGE OF DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes and
updates in Directors’ information during the year ended 31 December
2017 are as follows:

Mr. KO, Jim-Chen, an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, no longer served as independent non-executive director
of Force-MOS Technology Co., Ltd. (an emerging-stock company on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation) since 4 January 2018. Mr.
Ko has also ceased to serve as independent non-executive director of
Jourdeness Group Limited since 12 May 2017.

Saved as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
change in the Directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the date of the
2016 annual report of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, Mr. YANG, Cheng, Mr. YANG,
Kun-Hsiang and Mr. YANG, Chen-Wen has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial period of three years
commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service agreements may
continue thereafter from year to year until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party to the
other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at any
time thereafter.

Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed period of three years commencing on 8 March
2018.

Each of Mr. HUANG, Ching-Jung and Mr. CHAO, Pei-Hong has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for an initial
term of one year commencing on 27 June 2003. Such service
agreements may continue thereafter from year to year until
terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by either party to
the other following the expiration of the end of the initial term or at
any time thereafter.

Mr. CHOU, Szu-Cheng has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2018.
Mr. Chou and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chou do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chou’s appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by
either party to the other.
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Mr. KO, Jim-Chen has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2018.
Mr. Ko and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of the
original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Ko do not agree to extend, the
service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original term
or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service agreement.
During the renewed term, Mr. Ko's appointment may be terminated
by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by either party to the
other.

Mr. CHEN, Joen-Ray has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three year commencing on 1 April 2018.
Mr. Chen and the Company may, upon or before the expiration of
the original term or any renewed term (as the case may be) thereof,
agree in writing to extend the term of the service agreement for
another year. If the Company and Mr. Chen do not agree to extend,
the service contract shall lapse upon the expiration of the original
term or any renewed term (as the case may be) of the service
agreement. During the renewed term, Mr. Chen’s appointment may
be terminated by the giving of one month’s notice in writing by
either party to the other.

Mr. HSIEH, Lung-Fa has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of three year commencing on 1 April 2018.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the service contracts detailed above, no director had a
material interest in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty; provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to any of the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company
has not entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body
corporate to manage or administer the whole or any substantial part
of any business of the Company during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with Vedan Enterprise Corporation (“Taiwan
Vedan”)

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company entered into
the following transactions with its substantial shareholder, Taiwan
Vedan, a connected person of the Company, which constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company and were subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

BF T 9 R
HBERANREESHARARANEENR
MERSHE ZFALRSENBBRITER
BEREMEL BENERXTERMBRER
XA H - BA - WE BX BERFE
AERREHMILFEMEBE  EARERETIE
HEEMEEERFRXTHERRANER

EEEW

FREZRETINRBAQIN ARBRFAALE
BERENAL ARFEABBITZEMAL
EREREEARNRNAEMEBNBEE D HAEM

EZay e

HERERXS
ERACEROERAR ([EEBRA]) 2XSH

HE_Z—+F+_A=1+—HILEFE KTRQF
BETERFEARBEALERAETTIR
7 MEERXZHBREET EMRAE14AZE A
BEAEREZLHEWER S ARFAMERLE
MRANEIMAENBRELEHARE

Note Us$'000
B 7 FET
A.  Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan A MEERSEHEER (i) 5,901
B.  Technological support fee paid to B. A A ER T (ii) 2,181

R & &

Taiwan Vedan
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Notes:

(if)

The Group has been selling certain GA (acronym as “glutamic acid”),

MSG (acronym as “monosodium glutamate”) and cassava starch based
industrial products to Taiwan Vedan and its subsidiaries (other than
members of the Group) (“Taiwan Vedan Group”) for use in Taiwan. On
7 November 2014, the Company and Taiwan Vedan entered into an
agreement in respect of the sales of such products by the Group to the
Taiwan Vedan Group for a term of three years from 1 January 2015 to
31 December 2017 (“Taiwan Sales Agreement”). At the relevant time,
the Company estimated that the annual total aggregate amount of
sales of the products to the Taiwan Vedan Group will not exceed the
maximum cap of US$50,000,000 for each of the three financial years
ended 31 December 2017.

US$5,901,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of sales
of the products by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2017, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$50,000,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 7 November 2014.

On 21 December 2017, the Company and Taiwan Vedan agreed to
extend the Taiwan Sales Agreement for a term of three years from 1
January 2018 to 31 December 2020. At the relevant time, the Company
estimated that the annual total aggregate amount of sales of the
products to the Taiwan Vedan Group will not exceed the maximum
cap of US$7,000,000 for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2017. The Directors believe that the sale of goods to the
Taiwan Vedan Group pursuant to the Taiwan Sales Agreement will
generate additional income to the Group.

The Taiwan Vedan Group has been providing certain technological
support services to the Group. On 7 November 2014, the Company and
Taiwan Vedan entered into an agreement in respect of the provision of
such services by the Taiwan Vedan Group to the Group for a term of
three years from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 (“Technology
Support Agreement”). At the relevant time, the Company estimated
that the annual total aggregate amount of service fee payable pursuant
to the Technology Support Agreement will not exceed the maximum
cap of US$2,500,000 for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2017.
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(iii)

US$2,181,000 represents the annual total aggregate amount of
service fee payable by the Group to the Taiwan Vedan Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2017, which has not exceeded the
relevant maximum cap of US$2,500,000 as disclosed in the previous
announcement dated 7 November 2014.

On 21 December 2017, the Company and Taiwan Vedan agreed to
extend the Technology Support Agreement for a term of three years
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. At the relevant time,
the Company estimated that the annual total aggregate amount of
service fee payable pursuant to the Technology Support Agreement will
not exceed the maximum cap of US$2,500,000 for each of the three
financial years ending 31 December 2020. The Directors believe that the
technology support from Taiwan Vedan Group will benefit the Group's
future business developments.

The prices of goods and services provided to connected persons of the
Company are determined within the normal commercial price range
and the price quotation of the product is determined after taking
into account the production cost and the local market price of the
product with an aim to maintain the overall gross profit margin within
a reasonable range. The management of the Company has reviewed
the prices of transactions with connected persons and those with other
independent customers on a quarterly basis to ensure that the pricing
and terms with connected persons are fair and reasonable, and has
reported the relevant information at least once every six months to the
Board for review.

(iii)
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Confirmations

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2017 have been reviewed by Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. The Independent Non-executive
Directors confirmed that the aforesaid connected transactions were
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) on normal commercial terms or better; and (c) according
to the agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group on pages 106 to 112 of the annual report in
accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in Note 34
to the accounts. Save for the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above, none of these related party transactions constitutes
a connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules which
requires to be disclosed.

Save for the continuing connected transactions disclosed above
and certain other continuing connected transactions/connected
transactions which is exempted from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, during the reporting year,
there were no other transactions which constituted connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions that were subject to
the reporting requirements under the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the requirements for connected
transactions in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Report of Directors

EEERE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the group

for the last five financial years is set out on page 202 of the annual
report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES

So far as known to the Company, as at 31 December 2017, other
than the interests of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as disclosed above, the following persons had interests in the shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

EEMRE
ARREBERARNKFASHE AL ERL
BERERTE ERAQRARLIARBRREE
FAAD o

IEMBEBME
AEBERBARTEAMBRFENEEREENE
BERBERENAFRFE2028 -

FERRERBRMZEINKR

BARAMM R_TE—tFt+t-_A=1+—8"
BREXFAEBEARARESTHZEITHRABNE
@I ATATRARBBRM P HEREES R
HERPIEXVEIFE 2R FE3N B2 EXARAR
BB D  RIARRRIRERE S LS K
PIZE336IGMIFE 2 B Mr s :

Number of
ordinary Percentage of
(Long Position) issued shares
shares of the Company
Name Capacity ZEREE wEAFE
=x 54 (##&) BITROBES L
Billion Power Limited (”Billion Power"”) Beneficial owner 512,082,512 33.62%
TR a A (Note 1)
(PREET)
Vedan Enterprise Corporation Interest held by its controlled 512,082,512 33.62%
(“Taiwan Vedan”) corporation (Note 1)
RABEROERAR ([AEKS]) REEHZPEZ#ER (BEET)
King International Beneficial owner 169,730,196 11.15%
BERHAA
Concord Worldwide Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
EmEA
High Capital Investments Limited Beneficial owner 127,297,646 8.36%
BERHAA
FECERNHAERAQ A Beneficial owner 83,348,000 5.47%
EmEE A
Notes: P&
1. Billion Power was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Taiwan Vedan. Taiwan 1. Billion Power & & EK K2 EMB LR A

Vedan was therefore deemed to be interested in these 512,082,512
shares held by Billion Power.

ER IR A A % Z A Billion PowerfTi A 2
512,082,512/% B 15 2 #E 2
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Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Company, as at
31 December 2017, no other person (not being a Director or chief
executives of the Company) had any interests or short positions in
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Annual Report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Five Directors of the Company, namely, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung,
YANG, Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG,
Kun-Chou were also directors of the Group's controlling shareholder,
Taiwan Vedan. In addition, Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung, YANG,
Cheng, YANG, Kun-Hsiang, YANG, Chen-Wen and YANG, Kun-Chou
indirectly held approximately 19.77 percent., 9.89 percent., 6.18
percent., 8.24 percent, and 6.18 percent. interest in Taiwan Vedan,
respectively and they were therefore considered as having an interest
in Taiwan Vedan under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Taiwan Vedan Group is principally engaged in, inter alia, the
production of food additive products, including MSG products, and
beverages in Taiwan, which may compete with the Group’s business
operations in respect of the product portfolio of the Group (“Product
Portfolio”).

Since Messrs. YANG, Tou-Hsiung and YANG, Cheng are both
responsible only for the overall strategic planning and the business
development of the Taiwan Vedan Group and the Group and the daily
operations of the Group are managed by Messrs. YANG, Kun-Hsiang
and YANG, Chen-Wen together with an independent management
team. In Taiwan Vedan, Mr. YANG, Kun-Chou is mainly responsible
for the sales of the products of the Company and products of other
companies which the Company acts as an agent within Taiwan.
In the Group, he provides guidance and assistance for selling the
Group's products in Vietnam and the PRC markets. Taiwan Vedan
and the Group are operated by separate sales teams which are
independent of each other, while market segmentation shall comply
with the details of the territorial delineation agreement signed by
the Group and Taiwan Vedan. The Directors are of the view that
the management and the operational functions of the Group are
independent of and separate from those of other members of the
Taiwan Vedan Group.
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For safeguarding the interests of the Group, the Independent Non- AREAEEFZ  ARRBYIFNITEERE
executive Directors and the Audit Committee of the Company would I ZE S TFE BT AEE 2 £HE ML ELE
on a regular basis review the business and operational results of the — AWER (Hh ) KEE 2 E R RV ES B
Group to ensure, inter alia, that the Group’s business operations in  IZJ & K F} A 2 & - I 15 4 48 it -
respect of the Product Portfolio is and continues to be run on the

basis that it is independent of, and at arm’s length from, that of

Taiwan Vedan.

AUDITOR ZBED

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who AR B E&ME T KESTAIZFEZ
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. ZZHEMEmER MRTEEEEET-

By Order of the Board AEESH

YANG, Kun-Hsiang IR ke

Director and Chief Executive Officer BEFHFITHAE

27 March 2018 —E-N\F=ZA=-++tH
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_E
pWC i Jo gk R 18

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FKSER (ER)ERATRE
VEDAN INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability) (REBEEHME T ERAE)
Opinion =8

What we have audited D EEH T A

The consolidated financial statements of Vedan International  5|& #1132 201 H8 S HE (#£) AR A
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the j((ﬂanj”&ﬁgﬁ BAT([EE®]) M

“Group”) set out on pages 113 to 201, which comprise: LBREmE B aE:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017; . MoE—+&+-A=+—A0NEL8E
BfEx:

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended; . HEZAILFENEAKSE:

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the o BEZBIFEEMEL2mksE:
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year o HEZAILFENSABAEHE:
then ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then BEZALEENEAESREE R
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which . AR ENMT EhaeErEe sty

=]
include a summary of significant accounting policies. ST EE o

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

EIFIHER

BHRR ZEEEUMBRRECRERES
fAg ([BAGFEAE])BMHE BB R
SR ([FEMBREEY ) EEMPHHR
B EEER _ZT—tF+_A=1t—HHR
EHMBRRAREREZALFENGAMBR
ARGARERE AT ERER (RREH)
ZHRBREZREE-

ERER
BHMCREELESTAASEMNTEENE
Al ([BAFEER])ETE -RAEZFE
AT B AERN IR RS e B L AR
B BmRARENETSHAFL -

BIEE - RPIMERHRABE LR ENE
WwREMHE R ER -

i3

Bt

REFBGALGN (BESHEBETAD
(T=p81)) - BB BEEE - XOARESTH
BITEMBRERE T

MEESEER
MREBAFRETRERMANEXZHE  BREA
HRGAMBREANBIRAEENFR -FL
FERERMEAERGAVBERRIERE
REETTRE - R TS HELTRIEHEEN
BRe
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Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:

o Impairment of goodwill

Key Audit Matter
BREN SR

BFEREPRANERETFEAMADT

. EERE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ET U AEERRETEER

Impairment of goodwill

AERE

Refer to note 9 to the consolidated financial statements
EL2HRA SRR

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of the
Group’s goodwill amounted to US$7.8 million related
to the PRC MSG related business. As described in the
Accounting Policies in note 2.7, goodwill impairment
assessments are undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared
to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value-

in-use and the fair value less costs to sell.

RZF—+tF+=—A=+—8"

3R o R R A A H BB I AR A -

HERmERTKOSE (AEREEEQFERESE

RAZBEE) ELLE -

Management tests annually whether goodwill suffered
any impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets prepared by management covering a
five-year period. Cash flows of the related CGU beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated

growth rates.

THEEEAHBREMEE BEEOesFETAR

BENRERERREREEAESEIMET EREE
AHEDNEEERE I FHYBRESEERBRY
fiRERERA - BHAFHNBEBRINBRSEMNHR

TRERGEIBREER -

We focus on this area because these calculations and
valuations require the use of significant judgements
and estimates. These estimations are also subjected to

uncertainty.
MRZEFETERGET2/EHE RN R A5
BRI Z IS E - RS EAMETHREETE -
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BEREEHHKBEE
BEBEHENBENRMER7 8B &ETT - MM E2.7
ZEFBEM B FETREN G TEREEN

We evaluated the appropriateness and consistency of
assumptions and estimates applied in financial budget
prepared by management covering a five-year period such
as sales growth rate, gross margin and discount rate by
comparing with current year and historical trends.
BPEBBEBHEERET EMNERFTREIZNAFER
FEriBs FEEAREEERE s AFHMBRERNHR
R fhEFTEEE M R =Bt

We involved our internal valuation specialist to assess
the valuation methodology, discount rate adopted and
the numerical accuracy of the calculations prepared by
management.
BFMOABEEEREL2EFGEREETTENMGEER
BB E R B A R RN

We evaluated management’s sensitivity analysis which
considers the effect of reasonably possible changes of major
assumptions including sales growth rate, gross margin and
discount rate to the recoverable amount of goodwill.
BMEFNBEEENSREIN EFEREERZAEL
BHNABENTE RRHEEERX ENERFHEIK
Bl & FEHITER K o

Based on the procedures described, we considered the
methodology used and key assumptions applied in the
impairment assessment of goodwill is supportable.
BBPTMET  RMB RN ERENEPRAERN T AR
FIERNEERRABRE -
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Hit&EH
BERREFAHEMENER - HMEHBRSF
BAWMAEER  ETEREEMHRR LK
iR SRED R

BMEGEEMBERRNBELNRELMBER
BPTATHZEEMERERERATANEE

+ A
e

MRMAHERAMHRENETMS  RANEE
EREEMER FURET EREMERE
DREAMBBRXRMEESBREPFATH#
BB E R S U 17 E K8 R R
BB

ERBEMEATHIE  UREMBREMER
FHEEAERRL HMAFTERETZEFE -EE
HHE BB EA#RE -

EERAEERGAMBEBRARENER

BERREFERERBEREGMASHEMDN
BEVBHREENRFERBGI 2 KERE
RAEBEEMPENGEMBERE YHERRA
FEEAVBRROBR I FEHRNRFFHER
MEMMERFERRAFAFTHOAMEHAE -

EREGAVBREAE EEAHNE BE5H
FEKENRE ) YEBERBRTRERFEL
BERNER ARERAFELERGER,
FRIFEFERENR BEREFRMEFLEZ L5
BHMERNERTR

REERAREER
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Chiu Raymond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
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As at 31 December

R+=A=+—~H
2017 2016
—Z—+tF ZT—RF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
k=3 FEx FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Land use rights - Hb {5 A 6 2,042 2,321
Property, plant and equipment Y- WE RE 7 145,612 143,263
Intangible assets EBEEE 9 9,070 8,677
Long-term trade receivables REIEWE Z R 14 - 168
Long-term other receivables = HY E i fE U 5R8 14 1,307 90
Investment in an associate REtERNE 2R E 11 3,555 3,350
Total non-current assets FREBEELE 161,586 157,869
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 13 82,868 65,282
Trade receivables FEWE Z R 14 31,651 27,825
Amount due from the non-controlling U] B 2 7] JE4E A% #E 25
interest of a subsidiary Z A - 823
Short-term loan to an associate HKTEARR ZEHER 11, 34(d) 120 120
Prepayments and other receivables T8 < 5018 & E Ath fE W A 14 9,351 13,283
Current income tax recoverable EHIR R E B 2,872 -
Structured bank deposits ERIEIRITIER 15 3,903 -
Short-term bank deposits RERITE R 15 16,063 33,287
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 15 49,679 55,210
Total current assets REBEELE 196,507 195,830
Non-current assets held for sale FIEREZEMBDEE 8 366 3,091
Total assets EERE 358,459 356,790
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners AAREEAEIEER
of the Company
Share capital [N 16 15,228 15,228
Reserves f# 17 270,182 266,307
285,410 281,535
Non-controlling interest IR (2,827) (2,329)
Total equity XA 282,583 279,206
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As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —EF—X
Note US$'000 Us$'000
k=2 FEr FET
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank borrowings HRITEE 19 19,491 24,190
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFSHAE 20 3,263 3,416
Retirement benefit obligations BRARENEE 29 1,447 1,386
Long-term environmental provision RHIRIG B E 18 233 113
Total non-current liabilities FRBEERE 24,434 29,105
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables JERTE SRR 18 15,772 18,296
Accruals and other payables FERT B A R H Ath FEA 3R 18 17,509 15,637
Amounts due to related parties JERT BRAEA LA 34(d) 1,418 836
Bank borrowings HRITEE 19 15,906 12,620
Current income tax liabilities BNERFT SR B & 837 1,090
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 51,442 48,479
Total liabilities BERAE 75,876 77,584
Total equity and liabilities EERBEAE 358,459 356,790

biitraBERBREERBRME —GiRIE -

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction
with the accompanying notes.

BRFIBE20MEZHEEWBRREN_-F
—N\F=ZA-t+tHESFSEHLTATIA
ITRREZ-

The consolidated financial statements on pages 113 to 201 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2018 and were
signed on its behalf.

Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang

B B
Director Director
EE EF
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Consolidated Income Statement

mellak
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—-HLEFE
2017 2016
—E—tE —E—RXEF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FET
Revenue Wz 5,21 322,805 327,640
Cost of sales & KA 23 (254,668) (248,610)
Gross profit ER 68,137 79,030
Other gains/(losses) — net Hiblhzs ~ (f18)
— 22 935 (4,090)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX 23 (21,746) (21,517)
Administrative expenses THREX 23 (24,272) (24,743)
Operating profit mERF 23,054 28,680
Finance income B M A 853 686
Finance costs B (804) (875)
Finance income/(costs) — net BURA S ()
—FH 24 49 (189)
Share of post-tax profit/(loss) of FEIGEE R AR T
an associate wmH(EE) 11 205 (15)
Profit before income tax B P 18 % AT 0% F 23,308 28,476
Income tax expense Frigfim = 25 (4,570) (6,243)
Profit for the year REERF 18,738 22,233
Profit attributable to: UT&ASEERR:
Owners of the Company KRARERA 19,061 22,501
Non-controlling interest e A (323) (268)
18,738 22,233
Earnings per share for profit ARREEAELER
attributable to the owners of the BAzERER
Company during the year (expressed  (LAEREATIR)
in US cents per share)
Basic earnings per share BREXER 27 1.25 1.48
Diluted earnings per share SREBHEER 27 1.25 1.48

The above consolidated income statement should be read in  F#liéR& WK fEE R AR W 55 — HFRI5E -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

ReEZERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
—Z—+tF ZT—RF
US$’000 Us$'000
SPESn FET
Profit for the year AEFEEBA 18,738 22,233
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hiz2mW A (BE) :
ltem that may be reclassified to AEMHOEERECIER
profit or loss
Currency translation differences M 5 =5 2,054 (2,073)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REEBRBEFEEMBEM
for the year, net of tax WA (E18) 2,054 (2,073)
Total comprehensive income AEEXEKRALE
for the year 20,792 20,160
Total comprehensive income/(loss) UATEFEERNFERZE
for the year attributable to: WA ()85
— Owners of the Company - WNEIEZ DN 21,290 20,261
— Non-controlling interest —IE IR (498) (101)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ZAFE 2 M A4 20,792 20,160

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should

IS UESS

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARER AR
Non-
Share Share Other Merger Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity
& BEE HittftE AhEE REEF @i FERER BRAR
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
T FET T FEL TR Txn T£n Txn
Balance at 1 January 2016 RZE-"E-A-Az&H 15,228 47,358 13,908 79,994 119,130 275,618 (2,168) 273,450
Comprehensive income 2EHUA
Profit for the year RERRN - - - - 22,501 22,501 (268) 22,233
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ Eft2EHR A/ (F#)
Currency translation differences ERZE - - (2,240) - - (2,240) 167 (2,073)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2EHR A/ (F#E) B8 - - (2,240) - 22,501 20,261 (101) 20,160
Total transactions with owners BREAZARSE
Dividends (Note 26) T8 (Bitae) - - - - (14,344) (14,344) (60) (14,404)
Balance at 31 December 2016 R-B-AE+ZA=+-H
it 15,228 47,358 11,668 79,994 127,287 281,535 (2,329 279,206
Balance at 1 January 2017 RS-t 5-A-Az68 15,228 47,358 11,668 79,994 127,287 281,535 (2,329 279,206
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit for the year AR - - - - 19,061 19,061 (323 18,738
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ Eft2ERA/ (HE)
Currency translation differences ERER - - 2,229 - - 2,229 (175) 2,054
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2K/ (FiE) BE - - 2,229 - 19,061 21,290 (498) 20,792
Total transactions with owners BEAACZBRSE
Dividends (Note 26) &2 (Ki26) - - - - (17,415) (17,415) - (17,415)
Balance at 31 December 2017 RZE-tF+=A=+-H2
] 15,228 47,358 13,897 79,994 128,933 285,410 (2,827) 282,583

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

bR A1

m BB R EER AR E—OE-
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERIRER

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZE—RF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
B 5 FEx FET
Cash flows from operating activities REXEBZHERE
Cash generated from operations X¥BEAZES® 31(a) 21,721 73,829
Interest paid B E (812) (900)
Income taxes paid EATER (7,893) (6,701)
Net cash generated from operating REXBEEZ
activities e FHE 13,016 66,228
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZHRERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEME BB REMHE
equipment (16,193) (11,798)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BEX
plant and equipment BB TS RIE 31(a) 149 62
Proceeds from disposal of assets PEFELEZ
held-for-sale BEZMESRIE 1,360 -
Purchases of intangible assets BEERVEE 9 (77) (132)
Decrease/(increase) in short-term bank RESRTTEIORD
deposits (&) 17,224 (13,957)
Increase in structured bank deposits MR TR g (3,903) -
Interest received 2 UH & 790 686
Net cash used in investing activities KREESFAZ
e FH (650) (25,139)
Cash flows from financing activities METHZRERE
Dividends paid BB 26 (17,415) (14,344)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMENIA 27,987 16,735
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (29,400) (31,651)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEBMAZ
e FHE (18,828) (29,260)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬁ.ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
cash equivalents W) R (6,462) 11,829
Cash and cash equivalents A E%ﬂzfﬁﬁ)}
at beginning of year ReEEY 15 55,210 44,190
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and RekReZEEHZ
cash equivalents bE 5 Uk ek (B518) 931 (809)
Cash and cash equivalents REXRZRER
at end of year ReZEY 15 49,679 55,210

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  Fii4RAIR A REREERBREMN T —OFRIE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) manufacture and sell
fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products and
cassava starch-based industrial products including modified
starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium Glutamate (“MSG”"),
soda and glutamic acid (“GA"). The products are sold to
food distributors, international trading companies, and
manufacturers of food, paper, textiles, and chemical products in
Vietnam, other ASEAN member countries, the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"), Japan, Taiwan, and several European
countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
10008, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman KY1-
1001, Cayman Islands.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars ("US$"), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial information of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The
consolidated financial information have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial information
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

—REH

WABEER ZER)ERAF ([RRF]) R
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EEEBRIFNE ELLERRAER
MIZXER SBEZERY SRR
i (IR TRk ([28
Bl) - EmNHETHE EMREKE
Bz hmEARLME ([HE]) B
BERZEBRMNBERORMD HE B
BHRF URRME Bam SERETE
mAEER

KRRl RRHASHETMAIZERA
Al sEfi EE it & - PO, Box 10008,
Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand
Cayman KY1-1001, Cayman Islands °

ARARNEBH AL HFAERAF LD -

BRATIAN EMBRRIAET ([
Tl olE-.

RHBERFEFHRRBE

REMEGAMBRRFEAZEIEGTK
REINMT - BRABIHN HFRED
ERERRMEZRFE-

2.1 mEEE
AEEMGEEVBERTREMRE
HRABAVBREER ([EAMBE
MEEAN])MFER R M B ER
TR IR R S0 K AN AE 9 i 4R 22

BAUNTABEVBRELENNGES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

(a)

120 vedan International (Holdings) Limited

The following new standards, interpretations and
amendments to standards are mandatory for the
Company for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2017, but have not
had any significant impact on the preparation of the
consolidated financial information.

(a)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RREERTETHRREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEE(E)

RRABHBRFIAR T —HF—
A—BRZERABZHBEFE
BRERTIHMEL 2BK
EZER BXEEREA Y
BEMZBUEELTAERY

@,
=

HKAS 7 Statement of cash flows BB G EREIR RERER
(Amendments) (BETR)

HKAS 12 Income taxes BEGENE129 MEH
(Amendments) S HEN)

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in AERMBEREEDN BERNAME
(Amendments) other entities F125 (BFTA) IR

The adoption of these amendments did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods. Most of the amendments will also not
affect the current or future periods.

The amendments to HKAS 7 require disclosure
of changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, see note 31.

The following new standards, interpretations and
amendments to standards have been issued, but are
not effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2017 and have not been early adopted.

R 5 T A 70 2 A1 HARS
BRZ &AL WETTE -
BH BT AT TR 8 A%
REHMEETE-

BB GFERIEIR ZIEETHR
EREREEHELE AEBSE
) ( BHIEE31) °

LATRERGELIENR-F
—tF-A-BRABZHEREF
JE AR B IR R AT ER ) 2 H
EQ BB RERNZER

Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or after
RT3 BB &S
ZFEEHBEX

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

BAEVBWEENE1R R
EE LR E285%
SCEHEN)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

Classification and Measurement of

Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle

TE-MFEE_T-RNFEAZFESE

Share-based Payment Transactions

BBV B REERFE25
CCHES)
HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

NN RERNRNZZ 2D B RGE

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

FREW R EEAFAHR
(BRTA)
TRTA

RFHEIRR (ER) BRAR

BEBMBEHREEANBARRRAD
—HHEREE YRS EAFWR

1 January 2018

—E-N\F—-HA—H

1 January 2018
—2-N\F—A—H
1 January 2018

—T-N\F-A—H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

(BETA)
HKAS 40 (Amendments)
BB G ERZE 405
({ERTAN)
HK (IFRIC) = Int 22

B (BB BRERE
ZEE) —REFE22HR

HK (IFRIC) = Int 23

B8 (BB BHRERE
ZEE) —REFE23N

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

BEWBRE LR FHR

(EETA)
HKFRS 16
BRMBREENF 165
HKFRS 17

BB EERE175%
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

EBMBRELERNEI05 R

FE G ERFE28%
(BRTA)

Transfers of Investment Property

BERNEME

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

SRS RIENKE

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

FRISTHER 38 2 T E 1t

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation
HEamMENREETTIE

Leases

HE

Insurance Contracts

RBEL

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

REEHEBENAIREEREZEN
BEHEHTE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 REEERTESHHFERE (H)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEE(E)
(b)  (continued) (b) (&)
Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or after
RT5 BE 2 %%
ZEEHBER
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
BBV EERIFEIR tETA —ZT-NF—HA—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
BB BIMEERE1555 KEEPAEHZ Wm —ZT-NF—H—H
HKFRS 15 (Amendments) Clarifications to HKFRS 15 1 January 2018
BAEVBWELERZE155% BEMBWEENEISHREOEE —E2—-N\F—A—H

1 January 2018
—ET-NF¥—-HA—H

1 January 2018
—Z2-/\%—A—H

1 January 2019
—ET-hF—H—H

1 January 2019

—E-NEFE—A—H
1 January 2019
—E-NEFE—-HA—H
1 January 2021
—E-_—%—HA—H

To be determined

AEBEZEILA RER
BB A 2 8 2 TR
Tx-

The Group's assessment of the impact of these
new standards, interpretations and amendments to
standards is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHRKREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

21 mBEEE (F)

(i) HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments” ()  BEYBEHEEREIN  [2
BT A/
Nature of change gy

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments addresses the
classification, measurement and derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities, introduces
new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

Impact

The Group has reviewed its financial assets
and liabilities. The Group does not expect the
new guidance to affect the classification and
measurement of the financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss and
the Group does not have any such liabilities.

The new impairment model requires the recognition
of impairment provisions based on expected credit
losses (“ECL") rather than only incurred credit
losses as is the case under HKAS 39. It applies to
financial assets classified at amortised cost and
loan commitments. Based on the assessments
undertaken to date, the Group does not expect
significant increase or decrease in the loss
allowance for trade debtors.

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about
its financial instruments particularly in the year of
the adoption of the new standard.

Date of adoption by the Group

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The
Group will apply the new rules retrospectively
from 1 January 2018, with the practical expedients
permitted under the standard. Comparatives for
2017 will not be restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRME

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18
which covers contracts for goods and services and
HKAS 11 which covers construction contracts and
the related literature.

The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good or
service transfers to a customer.

The standard permits either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

Impact

The Group has assessed the effects of applying the
new standard on the Group’s financial statements
and does not expect a significant impact on the
recognition of revenue.

Date of adoption by the Group

The adoption of this new standard is mandatory for
financial years commencing on or after 1 January
2018. The Group intends to adopt the standard
using the modified retrospective approach which
means that the cumulative impact of the adoption,
if any, will be recognised in retained earnings as at
1 January 2018 and that comparatives will not be
restated.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHREERTFTESHRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEE(E)
(i) HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with (i)  BEYEREERF 155
customers” [KEEPEH.Z W]
Nature of change My

FREGE A E BBEMER
YA B 3 B o 5% 2 RIS ER AR
FEETERNE 18 ORER
mERBEH) REBBGE
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R
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v
AR B T 8 PR 3 T 22 2
AREYBREOTE BB

T EHRABRRELEAY
@,

NEBMBEMZ AL

ZA R ER AR —ZE— N\
F—A— Az BHABNITK
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Mz ERE R BB RBERA
RN BEZE (M
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RREERTETHRREE (4)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEE(E)
(iii))  HKFRS 16, “Leases” (iii) BB EHEERE165

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will
result in almost all leases being recognised on the
statement of financial position, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to
use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for Group's operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of US$2,593,000 (Note 32).
The Group estimates those related to payments
for short-term and low value lease which will be
recognised on straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss are insignificant.

The Group has not yet assessed what other
adjustments, if any, are necessary for example
because of the change in the definition of the lease
term and the different treatment of variable lease
payments and of extension and termination options.
It is therefore not yet possible to estimate the
amount of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
that will have to be recognised on adoption of the
new standard and how this may affect the Group’s
profit or loss and classification of cash flows going
forward.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(iif)  HKFRS 16, “Leases” (continued)

2.2

Date of adoption by the Group

The adoption of this standard is mandatory for
financial years commencing on or after 1 January
2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective date. The
Group intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative amounts
for the year prior to first adoption.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective
and that would be expected to have a material impact on
the entity in the current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions.

Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(a)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’'s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the
group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.
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e M RRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHEERTFTETHRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

22 MEAR (&)
22146 (#)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate (Note 2.3), or financial
asset (Note 2.10). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements of the Company

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.
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e M RRME

2.4

2.5

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group's financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial
information of associate has been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors.

Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in US$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RREERIFTEGTRFEE (4)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.3 Associates (continued) 23 LT (E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHREERTFTETHRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5 SHNEBRE (H)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)  Transactions and balances (continued) (b)) XZRAiZe(E)
All foreign exchange gains and losses including FrEEREEMRE RBESE
those relate to borrowings and cash and cash BYEENELRELERS
equivalents are presented in the consolidated WamRAH [ Halzm (8
income statement within ‘other gains/(losses) — B) —FEIRE.
net’.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial IEBHBKEEREGEEEZ
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss EREE - YREBEZANERAE
as part of the fair value gain or loss. NEBER=ESEEN—H D -
(c)  Group companies (c) ZEEFHRA

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;
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- income and expenses for each income - BEBERERZBARE

statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
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transactions); and AMEZH &
- all resulting exchange differences are - MEEBREERSGEHAM
recognised in other comprehensive income. ZHEMAFHER -

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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e M RRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment, land use rights
Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

— Properties 15-50 years
— Plant and machinery 10-20 years
— Motor vehicles 5-8 years
- Office equipment 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains/(losses) — net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment, land use rights
(continued)

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to
use the land on which various plants and buildings are
situated for 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of
leases.

2.7

Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
or groups of CGUs, expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.
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e M RRME

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale
when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RHELERTFEFHRREE (8)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.7 Intangible assets (continued) 27 EBREE (&)
(b)  Trademarks and licence (b) EIERIEE
Separately acquired trademarks and the licence, BB AERERAGR
which have finite useful lives, are carried at cost EREAFE WEKAR R
less accumulated amortisation and impairment FHEESE RO EE R AR o # Y
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight- DRRABERESE  UHEE
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and RIBERKARBEENFETF
licence over their estimated useful lives of 6 to 10 fEET A R F BT H B -
years.
(c)  Computer software (c) EEHM
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised BANEREHRREEEER
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and N {5 P 5% 5 FE B FIT Sl B Y K
bring to use the specific software. These costs are RERE - BB AR EAEET
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5 ATAFHAF#E-
years.
2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets 2.8 FUMBEEZRE
Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, WEREAFEAFH EAE (NG
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are 2)HE#E BEEAGFAFHME
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject BEAEFHNE BB REREmE 4
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever TREWEIR - NAB G ERE
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the BEFELRE S - BEBEBIIZE
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment ERAEBLEMEEREZ €5
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's R AN ERFEREE 2 N FER
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The HEXNEKEREE(ABSER
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value ) HAEERRENS  BEH
less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of SRBIHIESRE (REER
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest B ) 2 REKFEDFE BRBREZ
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash MBEE (TEEFE) KE2
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other WA A TR R Em T AT
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed o
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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e M RRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHRREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 B EE
2.10.1 %48

2.10 Financial assets
2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables, based on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group's loans and receivables comprise trade
and other receivables (Note 2.12), cash and cash
equivalents (Note 2.13), amount due from the non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary, long-term other
receivables, short-term bank deposits, structured
bank deposits and short-term loan to an associate
in the consolidated balance sheet.

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at
fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHRREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 BM%EE (#)
2102 R REE (&)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)
2.10.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are presented in the
consolidated income statement within ‘Other
gains/(losses) — net’ in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.10.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

2.10.4 Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FHREERTFTESHRREE(HE)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 BM%EE (§)

2.10 Financial assets (continued)

2.10.4 Impairment (continued) 2,104 & (&)
Evidence of impairment may include indications BEZREABRFBEEF AL —A
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing BB A LE B IR E K% E -

significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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e M BERRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.11

2.12

2.13

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Consumables are included within inventories and stated
at cost, using the weighted average method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.

The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowings costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(a)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, the Company’s subsidiaries
and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b)  Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHRKREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

218 EMIRIELEREHR (H)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

(b)
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e M BERRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

RREBERFERHBREE (W)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued) 219 EERR (&)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The

(a)

RIS EE (E)

RiEFRBERBRARATER
MEAREFTERRZAB/R
ERNEERRERK 2R
TE REBMEEZRERE

present value of the defined benefit obligation is Tﬁ%? (AR AT F) 25 BT AR
determined by discounting the estimated future Maﬂﬁ B HREL AR B AR IR
cash outflows using interest rates of high quality CEEFHEE) 2T XTI

corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related pension obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of a defined benefit plan,
recognised in the consolidated income statement in
employee benefit expense, except where included
in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the
defined benefit obligation results from employee
service in the current year, benefit changes,
curtailments and settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are charged or credited to equity in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they
arise.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHRREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued) 219 EERR (&)

(b)  Termination benefits (b) ARIFRFE
Termination benefits are payable when employment EALEEREREETRKA
is terminated by the Group before the normal A IEEHER B EEEE
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts % B FEE A A ELE B A
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these B R R ER A A e
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits REBE]BARHERILEER
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination NARYE —IEFF AR IE T0RT 8142
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to IREERENER CRARE
terminate the employment of current employees B 7] R ) BF - TSR AR UL AR TS
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an moMIBH —TBENNERA
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the FEIE AR - IR AR B s b T8
termination benefits are measured based on the M EBEEZNE B ARG
number of employees expected to accept the offer. EomEHEBEAT @A
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the XN BANTR REE-
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.

(c)  Bonus plans (c) JEALETE)
The Group recognises a liability and an expense REBRE—HAKX (BEAR
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes 7 AR SR FE a3 408 58
into consideration the profit attributable to the BiE) BEABEREBEELRHA
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments. X o AREEREHNRELBE
The Group recognises a provision where BHEEAEETEETRER
contractually obliged or where there is a past fHie
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(d)  Employee leave entitlements (d) ESEZEE
Employee entitlements to annual leave are EEEHAFBRIENNEE=S
recognised when they accrue to employees. ERBER-EEZRBRESH
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity BN EBREBRRS &R -
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

2.20 Provisions 2.20 ®BE

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs, and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.20 Provisions (continued)

2.21

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group's activities, as described below. The
Group bases its estimates of return on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)  Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group
entity has delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 FREERTIETHRKREE (E)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

221 BRUEREAMKA (F)

2.21 Revenue and other income recognition (continued)

2.22

2.23

2.24

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

(c)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’'s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company's shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividends proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee contracts under which the Group
accepts significant risk from a third party by agreeing to
compensate that party on the occurrence of a specified
uncertain future event are accounted for in a manner
similar to insurance contracts. Provisions are recognised
when it is probable that the Group has obligations under
such guarantees and an outflow of economic resources
will be required to settle the obligations.

2.22

2.23

2.24
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e M BERRME

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.25 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group’s operating units. The board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

(@)  Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Vietnam Dong against US$.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations, which the Group does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.
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e M RRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

0]

(if)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2017, if the Vietnam Dong
had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
the US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$1,246,000 (2016: US$1,508,000) lower/
higher (2016: lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of Vietnam Dong-denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.

At 31 December 2017, if the Renminbi had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the
US$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$590,000 (2016: US$391,000) lower/
higher (2016: lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains
on translation of Renminbi-denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other payables.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk, which the directors consider the
exposures to be insignificant. The Group
does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, management of the Group monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks
(continued)
At 31 December 2017, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$74,000 (2016: US$43,000) lower/higher
(2016: lower/higher), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, short-term loan to an
associate and other receivables.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products are made to customers with appropriate
credit histories. The Group has policies to assess
the credit quality of the customer, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on
internal or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, short-term loan to an associate
and other receivables included in the consolidated
balance sheet represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to these financial
assets.

For bank deposits and bank balances, the Group
only uses banks and financial institutions with good
reputation. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, all
the bank balances as detailed in Note 15 are held
in major financial institutions, which are either state
owned or with high credit quality. Management
believes that the credit risk for bank deposits and
bank balances is minimal.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

No impairment has been provided for other
receivables as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
Other receivables do not contain impaired assets.
Management are of opinion that these balances are
of low credit risk.

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
US$511,000 (2016: US$386,000) were considered
impaired and US$511,000 (2016: US$386,000)
provision was made (Note 14). Management
are of opinion that that adequate provision for
uncollectible receivable has been made.

Liquidity risk
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MERIER ()
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 HMERKBREZE (&)

(c)  Liguidity risk (continued) (c) FTHEzZEE (&)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial THRBIZEEAEAS LT
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based BTSSR 0% E
on the remaining period at the balance sheet BN REBEBRERETS
date to the contractual maturity date. The M- RREPAEBELEERE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual HARFTERERE -
undiscounted cash flows.
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
-fR —-5EZ@ME WEERLF BBERE ait
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
FET S S SV FET
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+ZA=+-H
Bank borrowings (Note) BITEE (M) 16,256 9,161 10,195 1,200 36,812
Trade payables ERE SRR 15,772 - - - 15,772
Other payables and HibERHIER
accruals [EETE R 8,860 - - - 8,860
Amounts due to EREEEAT
related parties I 1,418 - - - 1,418
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+=A=+-H
Bank borrowings (Note) BITEE (M) 13,387 8,264 16,479 - 38,130
Trade payables ERE SRR 18,296 - - - 18,296
Other payables and HibEAHIER
accruals [EETE R 5,469 - - - 5,469
Amounts due to EREEEAT
related parties WA 836 - - - 836
Note: Mzt -

The balance includes interest payable on bank borrowings
up to their respective maturities.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MERBRER (#)
3.2 Capital management 3.2 BXER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEFEETEESZBIEAREARSE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going SRR AE B AR B E L 288 T - BA
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders BREGREFRABEMBRERSE
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an HRAE A RERFEEZ ERE
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. ELAR B AN ©
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, BTHEFIABRERERE ~EET
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to ERARIRN TRR 2RSSR MR
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new REEER BITHROMILEEE
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. LA R B B 75 o
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group HENEMAR—& NEBENEE
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This BEEEREEERER - Z L TR
ratio is calculated as total bank borrowings divided by HEEAEBBRM TN ZERITEE
owners’ equity as shown in the consolidated balance MRUABEE A BRI E - BB EREE
sheet. Total borrowings include non-current borrowings m@ﬂa BERkngEE-
and current borrowings.
During 2017, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged RZE—+F AEBEZRIEHE_-ZT
from 2016, was to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio. —RNERMNEER R DERE
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2017 and 2016 were F‘EFH:?E’V\@K? RZT—+
as follows: FRZZF-RF+ZA=+—HZ
ﬁ%ﬁfﬁtb%ﬁﬂ? :
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—KRF
us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Total bank borrowings (Note 19) BIRITIEE (H5E19) 35,397 36,810
Owners’ equity (including non- WA AR (BEFA
controlling interest in equity) s 2 IEPE i) 282,583 279,206
Gearing ratio EEBGELE 13% 13%
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values because of
their short maturities. The fair values of financial assets
and liabilities for disclosure purposes are estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and judgements (Note 9).
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a4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Current income taxes and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred income
tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

Functional currency

The functional currency of each of the Group's entities
has been determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates, that is normally
the one in which each of the Group’s entities primarily
generates and expends cash. The determination requires
the use of judgement.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Executive Directors collectively. The Executive Directors
review the Group’s policies and information for the purposes
of assessing performance and allocating resources. The Group
presents its operating segment results (below), based on the
information reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker,
and used to make strategic decisions. This information includes
segment revenue, segment capital expenditure, segment assets,
segment non-current assets, other than financial instruments
and deferred income tax assets and segment liabilities.

The chief operating decision-maker considers the business
mainly from a geographical aspect. In presenting information
on the basis of operating segments, segment revenue is based
on the geographical presence of customers. Segment capital
expenditure, segment assets, segment non-current assets, other
than financial instruments and deferred income tax assets and
segment liabilities are based on the geographical location of the
assets or liabilities.

The chief operating decision-maker mainly assesses the
performance based on revenue derived by each geographical
segment and product nature. Accordingly, the segment
performance is restricted to revenue information.

Revenue of approximately US$45,843,000 (2016:
US$34,126,000) is derived from a single external customer
located in Japan. This revenue is attributable to the MSG/GA
segment. No other customers individually contribute 10% or
more of the Group's revenue (2016: same).

SHBEH

FELERFRECHERTRBINTES
BITEEZEHAEE 2 BR KA AT Z
FARDEER AEERBEEXELER
REMEBENHITARBIERBREZERZ
B oEES (R TX) - WEEARBE
DEE DEEARZE  HEEE - HE
InRBEE (eMITEMELEMGSHEE

BRON R EHBEE-

FEEBERARETZNMEEEOMEE
% o A2 E D S AEE 2 MAE R - 95Uk
mAEPAEMRE S D EHE AL
DEEE -NEHERDEE (BRI ER
REMSHEERN) RO MBAGFRILLE
EXBEMEME S -

/éiﬁ%ixmﬁ‘éxi‘mli”*ﬁﬁﬁF
EZJ%Z EMEMEEFERERE At
MRRERNKEEH -

U %% 495 45,843,000% 7T ( —F — X
% 134,126,000 L) RIRE B A &E
INEBRE - RBRBKEW®E  AEE D
B ﬁﬂiﬂﬁﬁtmﬁ!ﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁ$%uﬁzﬁé
10% A £ (ZF—RF :HA) -

(a) Segment revenue (a) DEUz=

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET

By geographical location: E B E B D
Vietnam A= 162,986 160,615
Japan H K 64,199 66,793
The PRC a3 29,056 31,853
America EE 16,761 19,042
Taiwan & 10,630 10,649

ASEAN member countries (other than HEKE

Vietnam) (TEeiEwm) 31,792 32,422
Other regions H b b 7,381 6,266
322,805 327,640
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meEMBEHRRMEE
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SHEHEH(E)
(a) Segment revenue (continued) (a) DUz (E)

(b)

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
By product nature: REMEEGE S
MSG/GA KA AER 220,491 228,893
Modified starch/Native starch BB, RABRD 34,005 40,393
Specialty chemicals B L Em 29,012 22,518
Fertiliser and feed products AE &7 84 2 18,425 15,613
Others Hith 20,872 20,223
322,805 327,640
Capital expenditures (b) EAXZH
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTER FET
Vietnam 4 20,404 11,903
The PRC s 135 250
20,539 12,153
Capital expenditures are attributed to segments based on B AR TH R R A B AT i 9 B
where the assets are located. BEDE -

Capital expenditures comprise additions of property, plant

EAXHBREAEME BE MR

and equipment, land use rights and intangible assets. #HtEREREREEE-
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RE M B EmRME
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SWEHE(E)
() Assets () EE
2017 2016
—E—+t#F —E-RF
uss$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Vietnam . 288,357 285,341
The PRC s 48,424 42,710
Hong Kong BA 20,946 28,211
Taiwan =0 688 384
Singapore 3N 44 144
Total assets per consolidated FEEEBBRAT
balance sheet BEHRE 358,459 356,790
Total assets are attributed to segments based on where BEEREDRBEEEME MDA
the assets are located. BEDE-
Property, plant and equipment are monitored by the ME BERIEREEENEES
management at the operating segment level. The HBEMER - U TAS %@ﬁ%ﬁé’]#
following is a summary of amortisation, depreciation, MEVEEEE NE RE- ’:Erf
impairment of non-current assets, income tax expense P MBS ARNER, (8
and share of profit/(loss) of an associate for each M E-
operating segment.
Amortisation Share of
and Income tax profit/(loss)
depreciation Impairment expense of an associate
PEfh B E A E
BERITE RE FEHAX wAl, (FR)
uss$'000 Uss$‘000 US$'000 uss$'000
FTER FEn TER TER
2017 —E—tF
Vietnam 4 17,182 - 4,125 205
The PRC s 1,183 - 433 -
Others HAty - - 12 -
18,365 - 4,570 205
2016 —E-RF
Vietnam figa] 17,438 2,882 6,117 (15)
The PRC GE 1,231 - 82 -
Others HAh - - 44 -
18,669 2,882 6,243 (15)
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5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(d)

(e)

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments,

SEHMEH(#\)

(d) ZUBIASZHRBDEE (ERMIA

by location: BROM) -
2017 2016
—E—+tF T —RF
uUs$‘000 Us$'000
SRE FET
Vietnam i E 137,946 135,101
The PRC s 18,778 19,160
Total et 156,724 154,261
Liabilities (e) BfE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
uss$‘000 Us$'000
SREL Tt
Vietnam B 65,768 67,856
The PRC a3 4,604 4,617
Hong Kong A 3,074 3,726
Taiwan =0 2,382 1,339
Singapore N3 48 46
Total liabilities per consolidated FEEEBBRERAT
balance sheet BERTE 75,876 77,584
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6 LAND USE RIGHTS 6

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net book values are
analysed as follows:

+ ith 5 A 4
AREBER T HERE 2 EREREEENZ
BNRE EREFEITET

2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE-RF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January mn—H—H 2,321 2,544
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 23) - s {50 A e 8

(ME=E23) (61) (61)

Transfer to non-current assets ERERERE Y
held for sale (Note 8) EREEE (MIEES) (360) -
Exchange differences PEH =58 142 (162)
At 31 December W+—A=+—H” 2,042 2,321

In respect of the Group’s land use rights, Xiamen Vedan Foods
Co. Ltd ("Xiamen Vedan"”) and Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co.
Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan”), subsidiaries established and operating
in the PRC, have each been granted rights to use the land by
the relevant authority for 50 years, which will expire in 2042
and 2060, respectively.

Amortisation of land use rights has been charged in
administrative expenses.
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 ME - BRERRE
Construction- Plant and Motor Office
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles equipment Total
EEIR nE  RBEREE RE BAERE At
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER R S TER TEn TER
At 1 January 2016 R=B-~E-A—-H
Cost BA 4,074 117,874 439,366 9,19 19,439 589,872
Accumulated depreciation 2itE - (72,766) (330,113) (6,466) (17,927) (427,272)
Accumulated impairment ZiRA - (1,100) (4,875) - (22) (5,997)
Net book amount REFE 4,074 44,008 104,378 2,653 1,490 156,603
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z-XF
TZA=ZT-BLEE
Opening net book amount FNREFE 4,074 44,008 104,378 2,653 1,490 156,603
Additions RE 9,054 202 1,862 605 298 12,021
Transfer % (5,883) 258 5,625 - - -
Disposals (Note 31) HE (Fi31) - (64) (150) (16) ®) (238)
Depreciation (Note 23) & (MiFF23) - (4,202) (13,284) (582) (407) (18,475)
Impairment (Note 22) A (ME2) - (1,990) (772) (43) (77) (2,882)
Transfer to non-current assets ERERELEFRDEE
held for sale (Note 8) (HzE8) - (3,091) - - - (3,091)
Exchange differences EXER () (463) (173) (24) (13) (675)
Closing net book amount FEREEFE 7,243 34,658 97,486 2,593 1,283 143,263
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-R%§
+=A=1+-H
Cost A 7,243 109,735 439,123 9,046 18,945 584,092
Accumulated depreciation 2imE - (73,977) (338,552) (6,453) (17,640) (436,622)
Accumulated impairment 2ERE - (1,100) (3,085) - (22) (4,207)
Net book amount REHE 7,243 34,658 97,486 2,593 1,283 143,263
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z-tF
+TZA=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount FONEAFE 7,243 34,658 97,486 2,593 1,283 143,263
Additions RE 15,535 68 3,864 447 548 20,462
Transfer R (11,425) 1,473 9,876 - 76 -
Disposals (Note 31) & (Hi331) - (107) (341) (30) (11) (489)
Depreciation (Note 23) & (M15523) - (3,012) (14,149) (652) (357) (18,170)
Transfer to non-current assets ERERBELE
held for sale (Note 8) FmBEE (Fis) - - - (5) M (6)
Exchange differences ERZER 3 395 125 21 8 552
Closing net book amount FREBFE 11,356 33,475 96,861 2,374 1,546 145,612
At 31 December 2017 RZB—t#F
+=A=1+-H
Cost A 11,356 107,730 447,891 9,199 19,393 595,569
Accumulated depreciation 2EmE - (73,155) (347,945) (6,825) (17,825) (445,750)
Accumulated impairment ZiPRE - (1,100) (3,085) - (22) (4,207)
Net book amount REFE 11,356 33,475 96,861 2,374 1,546 145,612
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation expense of US$16,878,000 (2016:
US$17,143,000) has been charged in cost of sales, US$240,000
(2016: US$286,000) in selling and distribution expenses
and US$1,052,000 (2016: US$1,046,000) in administrative
expenses, respectively.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to US$143,000 (2016: US$25,000) on qualifying
assets.

In 2016, impairment of property, plant and equipment of
US$2,882,000 related to the Group’s Ha Tinh plant which is
located in central-northern part of Vietnam, has been charged
in other gains/(losses) — net (Note 22). The impairment was due
to the underutilisation of the production capacity as a result of
the lack of supply of raw materials for production.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

During 2016, the disposal of the property, plant and equipment
of Ha Tinh plant had been approved by the directors. On 22
February 2017, Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited
entered into an agreement with an independent third party, to
dispose of its property, plant and equipment of Ha Tinh plant
for a consideration of US$3,400,000. The relevant property,
plant and equipment were presented as non-current assets
held for sale as at 31 December 2016. The transaction was
completed during 2017.

On 5 September 2017, Shandong Vedan Snowflake Enterprise
Co., Ltd. entered into an agreement with an independent
third party, to dispose of its land use right and property,
plant and equipment for a total consideration of US$645,000
(RMB4,352,000). As at 31 December 2017, the transaction has
not been completed. The relevant land use rights and property,
plant and equipment amounted US$360,000 and US$6,000
respectively were presented as non-current assets held for sale
as at 31 December 2017.
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9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 ELEE
Software
Goodwill and licence Trademarks Total
BE HHRER [ &t
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 UsS$'000
TEn FTET FTET TEn
At 1 January 2016 R=E-xE-HA-H
Cost B 8,541 1,899 12,089 22,529
Accumulated amortisation ZErEH - (1,263) (12,089) (13,352)
Net book amount EEFE 8,541 636 - 9,177
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-E-XF
+=ZA=+-BLLEE
Opening net book amount FOREZE 8,541 636 - 9,177
Additions NE - 32 100 132
Amortisation charge (Note 23) BRI (MF23) - (125) (8) (133)
Exchange differences EREE (499) - - (499)
Closing net book amount FEREMFE 8,042 543 92 8,677
At 31 December 2016 RIB-—XE
+=A=+-H
Cost A 8,042 1,931 12,189 22,162
Accumulated amortisation ZE - (1,388) (12,097) (13,485)
Net book amount REFE 8,042 543 92 8,677
Year ended 31 December 2017 BZE-Z—t%
TZAEt+-BLEE
Opening net book amount FOREZE 8,042 543 92 8,677
Additions NE - 77 - 77
Amortisation charge (Note 23) BHERT (ME23) - (124) (10) (134)
Exchange differences ERESE 450 - - 450
Closing net book amount ERKREFE 8,492 496 82 9,070
At 31 December 2017 R-E-+tfF
+=ZA=+-8
Cost AR 8,492 2,008 12,189 22,689
Accumulated amortisation g 3 - (1,512) (12,107) (13,619)
Net book amount REF(E 8,492 496 82 9,070
Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses. B P ATTBRA X -
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BEBRE (W)
EERER

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 9

Impairment tests for goodwill:

Goodwill is attributed to the Group's CGUs according to PR DIRIE AR E A E D E o i = B EUE

operating segment. BB o
The PRC Vietnam
MSG MSG
related related
business business Total
B O R
HBEER HEEEK &5t
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FET FET
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+_-_A=+—H 7,762 730 8,492
At 31 December 2016 RZE—X"F+-_A=+—H 7,312 730 8,042

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five years period. Cash flows beyond
the five years period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below if applicable. The growth rates do
not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the MSG
related business in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation of

FRENR & B 2 AT IR O £ B8 Y PART E
BEZHAEBE ZFEERERER
Btz A FHBBESH ZRBAR
ERERALET BHAFHZRAERE
ERATHE 2 HetERREE (E
A -EEXTESRMBA S B M

B RBABEBORETIERS

R EHERERELSED B ZE

the goodwill in the PRC MSG related operating segment are as RAEEZ FTEBRRMOT-
follows.
The PRC
B El
2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZT—RF
Growth rate in sales volume HESWLRE 0% - 10% 0% - 20%
Growth rate in sales price HEBIERE 0% - 1% 0%
Gross margin EF=E 18.7% - 29.9% 26.1% - 32.5%
Other operating costs per annum BFEMEERAR
(US$'000) (F%7T) 2,152 - 2,467 2,344 -2,919
Long term growth rate RHERX 3% 3%
Discount rate IR & 12.5% 12.5%
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Growth rate of sales volume is the average annual growth
rate over the five years forecast period. It is based on past
performance and management’s expectations of market
development. Growth rate of sales price is the average annual
growth rate over the five years forecast period. It is based
on current industry trends and includes long term inflation
forecasts.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Other operating costs are the fixed costs of the CGUs, which do
not vary significantly with sales volumes or prices. Management
forecasts these costs based on the current structure of the
business, adjusting for inflationary increases and these do not
reflect any future restructurings or cost saving measures. The
amounts disclosed above are the average operating costs for
the five-year forecast period.

For the goodwill of the PRC MSG related business, the
recoverable amount calculated based on value-in-use
calculations exceeds carrying value by US$2.7 million. A
decrease in annual sales volume growth rate of 8%, a decrease
in annual sales price growth rate of 8%, a decrease in gross
margin of 3%, an increase in annual operating costs of 17%, a
fall in long term growth rate of 2.7% or an increase in discount
rate of 2%, all changes taken in isolation, would remove the
remaining headroom.

EmRRE ()
HEEBMERZT/AFEAMTFHFER
T EREBERALEEBEHEMSHRE
MEREL - HEENERX ST FEA
HWFeFEEE TEARARTERS
B YE RRMBRER-

EREDREBEXERAEETSEREY
EHEEREENK - TAIFTRETIRBR
A R R BB A 2 0 B0 2 5 E LR o

HA & RATIBREVR © B (L) B E K
AW HEHEERHEERNREY -E
BEEARAREBRBRAZEXAS I
MBRETHEL AR BEEPWERRE
IR EHELEE AT - Lt 3
SR AFEAYNFOLERA -

RPBEKRIBHEBEEE 2HEM S ERNE
HEREBEEMSIOReEBLREE27
BEXT FHEEEREFES% Fi¥
EEERETUS%  EFETIE3%  F
EEMRAERI7% REERETE2.7%
FITREIER2% BB ULELE 2B EY
15 5 bR ) 61 PR 28 -
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B 25
THIRR-_ZF—tF+-A=+—B2z=x

10 SUBSIDIARIES 10

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2017:

BHBAR:

Proportion of

Place of Proportion of  ordinary shares
incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and Principal activities and issued/paid up held by non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital the Group interest
AL/ RIS rEEBEe  FEREREKAZ
#R UREEERER TEEBREEHE BRI/ BRRARE EERLE EERLA
Directly held:
EERE:
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
("BVI") US$1 each
Winball Investment Limited RERLHES EERRERR 100R B REME1FTH
([ZERREE]) R
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
US$1 each
Talent Top Investment Ltd. RERAES EERRERR 100 BREBEIETH
Indirectly held:
HERE -
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$61,109,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. s ERMBREER 61,109,000% 7t & &%
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$20,177,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. ik ERMBREER 20,177,000% 70 & @ %
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Vietnam Manufacturing and sale of fermentation- 131,970,000 99.9% 0.1%
Corporation Limited based food additives and biochemical Ordinary shares of
products and cassava starch-based US$1 each
industrial products including MSG,
GA, modified starch, glucose syrup,
soda and acid in Vietnam and for
export
WA (ME)RAGRAR itz EEBYEREEZERRIMA. 131,970,000k B RE A
EERRAERNIRER 1ETHERR
BERE AR ZHRH
BERR RORERIHELD
Shandong Vedan Snowflake PRC, limited liability Manufacture and sale of MSG in the PRC ~ US$17,200,000 70% 30%
Enterprise Co., Ltd. company Registered capital
WRKASEEZERAA PE BREARA ETEEEREERS 17,200,000% & A
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG in the PRC US$9,800,000 100% -
company Registered capital
LERALXERAA PE BREARA ETEBKREERSE 9,800,000% LM EX
Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG in the PRC US$20,270,000 100% -
company Registered capital
ERGARRERAR PE BREARA ETEBKREERSE 20,270,000% LA A
Xiamen Darong Import & Export PRC, limited liability Trading of cassava starch-based industrial ~ US$254,000 100% -
Trade Co., Ltd. company products in the PRC Registered capital
ERARELDESBRAR PE BREMRA ETEEEAZRNIZER 254,000% LM AR
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11 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE, SHORT-TERM 11 REBEEARZRE - KFHRELAFLZ
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE s
(a) Investment in an associate (a) REELATNZRE
Movement of the investment in an associate is as follows: REE AR ZIREZEBAT
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E-REF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
As at 1 January ®n—H—H 3,350 3,365
Share of post-tax profit/(loss) of JE {5 Bt 2 X A
an associate BREE R (Fi8) 205 (15)
As at 31 December R+Z—A=+—8H 3,555 3,350
Nature of the investment in an associate as at 31 RZE—+EFRZFT—R"F+=A
December 2017 and 2016: =T—B REEARZREEERN
T
Country of Particulars of % Measurement
Name Incorporation issued share capital interest held method
=L BRI ES BRITRAFE BEEEZ% STEAE
Dacin International The Cayman Islands 4,100,000 shares of 30 Equity
Holdings Limited US$1 each
EMBERZERERAR HeiHB 4,100,000 T AR E & EIU - 2973
1€ T2 &5
The associate is principally engaged in real estate ZBMENTETENBEREFME
development in Vietnam. BRE-
Dacin International Holdings Limited is a private company EMBEREREBR AT ALAATR
and there is no quoted market price available for its BERG W BT IS ME -
shares.
There is capital commitment amounting to US$2,632,000 AEBERZBERAZRESR
(2016: US$2,632,000) in relation to the Group's 2,632,000E T (=T — X4
investment in the associate. 2,632,000% 70 ) 2 & AN HEHE o
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11 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE, SHORT-TERM 11
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(a) Investment in an associate (continued)

RBEEARZRE BTFTHRELFZ

mERE® ()

(a) RBELATFZRE (&)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information BRERBELR
2017 2016
—E—+tE —E—REF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEr FET
Net assets as at 1 January R—A—BzEEFE 11,166 11,217
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF S (EE) 684 (51)

Net assets as at 31 December Rt+=ZA=+—8B=xz

EEFE 11,850 11,166
Interest in an associate (30%) REEE R F 2w (30%) 3,555 3,350

(b) Short-term loan to an associate
As at 31 December 2017, there is a short-term loan to
an associate of US$120,000 (2016: US$120,000) which is
unsecured, bears interest at 4% per annum, denominated
in US$ and is repayable on demand.
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(b) HFHERATIZEHER
WZZE—+F+-A=+—H &%7F
Bt N 2 5 BB 120,000 7T
(ZZF— /X4 :120,000%7T) ' &K
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RE M B mERME
12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12 EBENEISZEMIA
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Loans and receivables EXRKkERRE
— Long-term other receivables (Note 14) — R B HE ftb fE IR FUIA
(M&E14) 1,307 90
— Trade receivables (Note 14) —JEUWE 5 IR
(KEEE14) 31,651 27,993
— Amount due from non-controlling —FEUR T BB A )
interest of a subsidiary eI 2 FRIB - 823
— Loan to an associate (Note 11(b)) — B THBE N ZER
(KFEE11(b)) 120 120
— Other receivables — current portion — H b & YR IE
— BEAER 2,474 1,352
— Structured bank deposits (Note 15) —EBHRITER
(M45E15) 3,903 -
— Short-term bank deposits (Note 15) —RHIRITER
(M5E15) 16,063 33,287
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15) —HekREEEY
(B¥3E15) 49,679 55,210
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet GEEERBRARZ
BE 105,197 118,875
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RN A EZ
MigaE
— Trade payables (Note 18) —ENE SRR
(KF3E18) 15,772 18,296
— Other payables and accruals — B JRE < RRIE
EEtER 8,860 5,469
— Amounts due to related parties — N EBEEALRIEA
(Note 34(d)) (P 5E34(d)) 1,418 836
— Bank borrowings (Note 19) —RITIEE (M5E19) 35,397 36,810
Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet #AEEBBERAITZ
BfE 61,447 61,411
13 INVENTORIES 13 &
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTXEx FET
Consumables JEFE M 6,308 5,186
Raw materials R 45,820 28,306
Work in progress EH @ 4,914 5,005
Finished goods BURK 25,826 26,785
82,868 65,282

FEKA A202,763,000%E 70 ( ZF — X
F 1 196,996,000 7T) Bt ASHER A o

The cost of inventories of US$202,763,000 (2016:
US$196,996,000) has been charged in cost of sales.
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 BERESEFREMEKRRIE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FEIT
Non-current trade receivables EMBEWE F RN - 168
Current trade receivables MBI EUE F IR R 31,651 27,825
Total trade receivables JEMWE 5 BR B R 31,651 27,993
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FTEx FET
Trade receivables from third parties ERE=FEHER 32,162 28,379
Less: provision for impairment of o RWE S ERFORE
trade receivables BiE (511) (386)
Trade receivables - net EBYWESER-FE 31,651 27,993
Prepayments TEf RIA 6,877 11,931
Other receivables H i e W 5K IR 3,781 1,442
42,309 41,366
Less: non-current portion of A B FEUGRIA 2
other receivables 3 BN ER B 19 (1,307) (90)
Less: non-current trade receivables W IEMENE B EWARR - (168)
Current portion B #A B 5 41,002 41,108
The carrying values of the Group's trade and other receivables REEEWE 5 IR R H Ath FE IR IE 2 AR
approximate their fair values AEBEEQNFERS-
Prepayments mainly represent advance payment for the TERRIE E 2B E R MR AR
purchase of raw materials. Other receivables as at 31 December B-R_E—+F+ZH=+—H Hitr
2017 include the outstanding balance in relation to the disposal JE W SR IE B E B 8 O A% R 2 R UK
of Ha Tinh plant (Note 24). s (MHEE24) -
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 14 BERSHERRAMEHRRIT (&)
The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on J'EHKT%HEMZWEBQEBME'JHEEI6O
delivery to 60 days. The Group may grant a longer credit period CAEBEAMETELFEEREREE
to certain customers and it is subject to the satisfactory results Hﬁ MEZRAEEFHIMERAR B
of credit assessment. The ageing of the trade receivables based WESRFIREZAMZRESTOT
on invoice date is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—t#F T —RF
Us$‘000 US$'000
FTER FET
0 - 30 days 0230K 18,627 26,388
31 - 90 days 31290k 12,161 770
91 - 180 days 912180k 667 271
181 — 365 days 1812365k 189 584
Over 365 days 365K 518 366
32,162 28,379
As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of US$25,259,000 NoT— t¢+ A=+—H" 25,259,000
(2016: US$26,187,000) were fully performing. FEir (ZZ—7~F 26,187,000k 70) 2 JE
WESEREHBERIT-
As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of US$6,392,000 RZZ—tF+-A=+—H" 6,392,000
(2016: US$1,806,000) were past due but not considered Ex(ZZT—7N%:1,806,000%7T) 2 &
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers WE SERDEBERARKME G
for whom there is no significant financial difficulty and based FRIEEETIWESAMBRE 2 BIEP
on past experience, it is considered that the overdue amounts Al BERBRETLR BHFIBEBHEER
can be recovered. The ageing of those past due but not AI B - %5 B B BB N ARORE 2 B UK
impaired receivables is as follows: HZBRRDTWT
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Overdue by #60 HA
0 - 90 days 0290K 6,201 1,330
91 - 180 days 912180k 144 17
Over 180 days 180K A £ 47 359
6,392 1,806
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14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 14

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables of US$511,000
(2016: US$386,000) were considered impaired. The amount
of the provision made was US$511,000 as at 31 December
2017 (2016: US$386,000). The ageing of these receivables is as

BEESEFRREMERRE (§)

RZE—+tF+=_A=+—H" 511,000
FL(ZF— /N4 386,000k 70) 2 &
WESGEFRERABERE R —+
F+ZA=+—HELWNBESLER

follows: 511,000 0 (=& — 734 : 386,000
JL) c R FFEWGKIBERBRER DTN T ¢
2017 2016
—E—t& ZE—RF
uUs$'000 Us$'000
FEx FZET
Overdue by 360 HA

0 — 90 days 0E90Kk - -
91 - 180 days 91E 180K - -
181 — 365 days 181E365% 20 20
Over 365 days 365K A 491 366
511 386

The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

FE W B 55 B o e HAth B W R 2 BRENE 1R
THEEEE:

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

us$‘000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Vietnam Dong WA 20,299 20,043
us$ ETT 17,152 15,936
New Taiwan dollar e 112 181
Renminbi AR 3,507 4,437
Others =il 1,239 769
42,309 41,366
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14

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements on the Group's provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

14 BRRHERRAMERKRET (F)

A B N E S R A R B
T

2017 2016

—Z—-+tF T —RF

Us$’000 Us$'000

FEx FET

At 1 January w—A—H 386 353
Provision for receivables impairment JE W R IR R B B

(Note 23) (MF3E23) 125 33

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 511 386

The creation of provision for impaired receivables have been
included in administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement (Note 23). Amounts charged to the allowance
account are generally written off when there is no expectation
of recovering additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

FLE R ERWEIBEFEHAEEREE A
HFEMWEROITHA D (MaE23) © R
BERAGNSE - RREREIREES
B -

FEU B 5 B e B At FE WA A 2 B 4B
MATBREEREEE-

REER RREERRE Ll XERIE
R Z BREE - NEBE W KRB U R E T
A 35 470 m (R HE 4
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15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED 15

BANK DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM BANK
DEPOSITS

The remittance of the funds out of the PRC of US$14,106,000
(2016: US$7,933,000) and Vietnam of US$38,257,000 (2016:
US$58,720,000) is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by
the PRC and Vietnamese governments.

BaRBaSRY HHERTER
REMBITHER

EHAREZE$14,106,000% 7T (==
— N :7,933,000% 7T) & [E L8 E
< & 438,257,000 0 (=T — < F:
58,720,0003E 7T ) 7H & <7 A1 B % # /g BT
B9 SN EE B I 15 e

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-RF
Us$’000 Us$'000
TEx FET

Short-term bank deposits with original RE AR RBEB=1EA
maturity over three months ZRHIRITE R 16,063 33,287
Structured bank deposits HERERITER 3,903 -
Cash at bank and on hand RITAFHERE 49,679 55,210
69,645 88,497

As at 31 December 2017, cash at bank of US$49,447,000
(2016:US$55,012,000) and bank deposits of US$19,966,000
(2016: US$33,287,000) were exposed to credit risk.

The Group’'s cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank

R-ZE—+FE+-_A=+—0 K17
IR £49,447,000E L (ZF — XN F:
55,012,000 7T ) & #1717 319,966,000
E70 (ZZF—7<4% :33,287,000% 70 ) E R
EERRK-

AREEZRERRSEE YA NEHIRT

deposits are denominated in the following currencies: FRIRATEBEHE -
2017 2016
—EB—tF —E-RF
US$‘000 Us$'000
FTER FET
Vietnam Dong M A 24,485 28,254
us$ =V 29,119 50,287
Renminbi AR¥E 15,738 9,681
Hong Kong dollar BT 154 207
New Taiwan dollar e 146 65
Others Efh 3 3
69,645 88,497
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15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED
BANK DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM BANK
DEPOSITS (continued)

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the end
of the reporting period were as follows:

Short-term bank deposits with original
maturity over three months

Structured bank deposits

16 SHARE CAPITAL

BIBIERITIER

REMASERE=MEAZ
72 H R 1T 17 3K

At 1 January 2016,
31 December 2016 and
31 December 2017

At 1 January 2016,
31 December 2016 and
31 December 2017

15 BeRBESFRY BHEERTER
REMBITHER (&)
RBERR RNEE 2 ERFNEHI N
T
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN S
4.3% 3.1%
4.2% -
16 B&F
Authorised ordinary shares
EEEBR
Par value Number
uss of shares US$’000
HEXT RoEE TERn
0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
ERTRAREER
Par value Number
uss$ of shares Us$'000
HEXT IR 4 8 B TER
0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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17 RESERVES 17 s
Share Exchange Merger Retained
Premium Reserve reserve earnings Total
(Note)
R EE EXfE abtE REEF ok
(&)
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
TErT TEn FTEn TEr TET
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—-R"F—F—H 47,358 13,908 79,994 119,130 260,390
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit for the year AEE RN - - - 22,501 22,501
Other comprehensive income HfZE YA
Currency translation differences [E % Z% - (2,240) - - (2,240)
Total comprehensive income 2K A B - (2,240) - 22,501 20,261
Total transaction with BERAZBRGE
owners
Dividends paid (Note 26) BRI E (Kiz26) - - - (14,344) (14,344)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—RF
+-F=1+—H 47,358 11,668 79,994 127,287 266,307
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—H—H 47,358 11,668 79,994 127,287 266,307
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit for the year KERHET - - - 19,061 19,061
Other comprehensive income H i ZEKA
Currency translation differences [E % 2% - 2,229 - - 2,229
Total comprehensive income 2K A% - 2,229 - 19,061 21,290
Total transactions with BREBAZBREE
owners
Dividends paid (Note 26) BRRE (MzE26) - - - (17,415) (17,415)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+-F=1+—H 47,358 13,897 79,994 128,933 270,182
Note: Bt 5T :
The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between REBNEHFEEERBER _ZET=_F+=A
the nominal value of the share capital and share premium of the Z 47N B A & B B 4B IO T8 A B R AR
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation completed AHEBEERRODREEARRAIGEITIIRMET
on 26 December 2002 and the nominal value of the share capital of the ZRAEERZERE -

Company issued in exchange therefor.
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18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

18 EMNRHERRHfEFTRIT

2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZE—RF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Non-current FEENHA
Long-term environmental provision REVRIGEE 233 113
Current BN HA
Trade payables FETE SR 15,772 18,296
Accruals EstE A 8,089 8,125
Payable of purchase of property, plant ENEEWE BE R
equipment and construction costs 5 LA e B SRR AR FRIE 4,127 222
Receipts in advance A A 1,296 2,581
Other payables b FE A R 3,997 4,709
33,281 33,933
Total trade and other payables JEN B 5 BRI &
H b & (4 FRIA M 7R 33,514 34,046

At 31 December 2017, the ageing of trade payables based on
invoice date is as follows:

R-ZT—tF+-_A=+—H EHES
RRRBERAMZEREDTAOT

2017 2016

—E—tfF N

Us$°000 US$'000

FTER FET

0 - 30 days 0230K 13,912 17,232
31 - 90 days 31E90K 1,567 1,026
91 — 180 days 91E180K 111 4
181 — 365 days 181E365K 142 7
Over 365 days 365K A & 40 27
15,772 18,296

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables

are denominated in the following currencies:

AEBZENEZRAREMENRIEZ

FREER T E8EE:

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF

us$'000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Vietnam Dong WA 15,473 12,813
us$ ETT 11,935 16,209
New Taiwan Dollar e 1,040 1,212
Renminbi AR 3,515 3,694
Euro BT 1,129 -
Others Hib 422 118
33,514 34,046
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19 BANK BORROWINGS 19 SRITHESE
2017 2016
—g—tF  —Tx&
us$‘000 Us$’000
FEx FET
Non-current FE BD HA
- Long-term bank borrowings —RITRHER 27,814 31,950
Less: current portion of long-term bank B ERITREAERZ
borrowings BIHAEL (8,323) (7,760)
19,491 24,190
Current Bl EA
— Short-term bank borrowings —RITERHER 7,583 4,860
— Current portion of long-term bank —RITRBERZ
borrowings BNERER & 8,323 7,760
15,906 12,620
Total bank borrowings RITEERRE 35,397 36,810

RoT—tF+=A=+—R FEEZ
SRATIE AR T R

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank borrowings were
repayable as follows:

2017 2016

—E—+tfF —T-RF

USs$’000 US$'000

FTEx FET

Within 1 year —F A 15,906 12,620
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMF 8,867 7,760
Between 2 and 5 years MEZEREF 9,562 16,430
Over 5 years AFNRE 1,062 -
35,397 36,810
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19 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

19

|MITEE ()

B85 R - A B £ T B U
BRANEHTEASMT

2017 2016

—E—tfF —E-REF

USs$’000 Us$'000

FEx FET

Within 6 months 6fE A A 17,700 17,340
Between 7 and 12 months 721218 A 2,934 2,371
Between 1 and 5 years 1854 13,701 17,099
Over 5 years SEM 1,062 -
35,397 36,810

The carrying values of the Group’s borrowings approximate
their fair values.

AEBEEEZRAEREL A FERS-

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group's RBERAR AEEEBEZ2ERFERN =0
borrowings at the end of the reporting period were as follows: I
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
uss ET 2.2% 2.1%
New Taiwan dollar ek 2.0% 2.0%
Renminbi AR - 4.8%

Annual Report 2017 £3§ 177



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M BERRME

19 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are

denominated in the following currencies:

|MITHEE ()

REBEEZREEERATERE:

2017 2016
—E—tfF N
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
us$ E 34,727 36,296
New Taiwan dollar e 670 465
Renminbi AR - 49
35,397 36,810
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: REBBEUTRREABERE
2017 2016
ZE—+tF A
US$°000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Floating rate: ER
— Expiring within one year —R—FANEIH 27,849 20,044
— Expiring beyond one year —RN—F & 25,449 18,000
Fixed rate: EE
— Expiring within one year —R—F RN 47,330 76,460
— Expiring beyond one year — R —F1& F 5 - 3,963
100,628 118,467

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has aggregate
bank facilities of approximately US$154,396,000 (2016:
US$171,219,000) for bank borrowings, trade finance and other
general banking facilities. Unutilised amount as at 31 December
2017 amounted to US$100,628,000 (2016: US$118,467,000).

The Group's bank borrowings of US$29,473,000 as at 31
December 2017 (2016: US$30,646,000) were secured by
corporate guarantees.
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RZE—+tF+A=+—H Xx&H
A H %A A E#I154,396,0003 T 2 $R1T
BE(ZZF— /N4 :171,219,000% 75 ) {E
BIETTEE ESRMEAREM—AIRITE
B R -_E—+F+_A=+—HB X
P4 %8/5100,628,0005E 7T (—F— N4
118,467,000 7T) °

AEERZ—_ZT—tF+=ZA=+—8H
5 #29,473,000F L (ZF — N F:
30,646,000%7T) 2 RITEE IR A A&
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 20 EBEFRBR

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using the principal tax
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

BIEFTSRIRIE B ERARE B2 ERH
EERERHHN I EREXUME LR ZH

s
B o
B

EXFERBEZATIT

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Us$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — R BiB1218 A B Uk E
recovered after more than 12 months ZIEEFTERAE 3,263 3,416

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as
follows:

BREFMEHESEHEEMT:

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

US$'000 US$'000

Fxx FET

At 1 January w—HA—H 3,416 4,178
Income statement credit (Note 25) sFAU R (HI5E25) (153) (762)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8 3,263 3,416

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

REZRLEMEHERERBE (R RE
SHAR R BIA0 B A [ B 45 BR AT ) B0 & B 40
T

ELFEHAR

Accelerated tax depreciation

MEMRERE
2017 2016
—E—tHF —ZE-RF
us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January n—AR—H 4,196 4,899
Charged/(credited) to consolidated RERA WA R A
income statement (5t ) 330 (703)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H” 4,526 4,196
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

21

Deferred income tax assets

20 EEFTISIR(4E)

EEFREHEE

Other temporary differences

HiHEEE5E
2017 2016
e
uUs$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
At 1 January n—RA—H (780) (721)
Credited to consolidated income statement FF A&RAUWZFEK (483) (59)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8” (1,263) (780)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the profits
of PRC subsidiaries of the Group derived since 1 January 2008
will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% upon
the distribution of such profits to foreign investors. Deferred
income tax liabilities of US$910,000 (2016: US$799,000)
have not been recognised in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy of
these PRC subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits is
probable. The Group has unrecognised deferred income tax
assets of US$1,846,000 (2016: US$2,085,000) in respect of the
unrecognised tax loss of US$7,382,000 (2016: US$8,338,000).
These tax losses for PRC corporate income tax purposes will
expire within five years. Tax losses of US$2,399,000 (2016:
Us$2,512,000), US$2,774,000 (2016: US$3,732,000),
US$2,209,000 (2016: US$2,094,000) will expire within
one year, within two years and within three to five years
respectively.

REVENUE

The Group manufactures and sells fermentation-based food
additives, biochemical products and cassava starch-based
industrial products including modified starch, glucose syrup,
MSG, soda and acid. Revenues recognised for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016 were US$322,805,000 and
US$327,640,000 respectively.
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21

RIBPBECEMEVE REBBETH
MBARB-_ZTTN\F-—A-RREL
B A A0 K T MBI RE R A iR
10% HY B R SR TEHI L © B 70 A 5 [ 42
ZEPEMBARZREBE  BXAEH
ZHEMBAR RGN EE 2 ERER
ARATRER A R G KB A B ZE
Ty ZREERELFSH A {E910,0003%

T (ZZF—7X4 799,000 7T) °

BEMESHEEDNERHEFNEER
IR 2R JE B B ) 4 IR B L BT A B e B K S
BEHRER AEBEEAERBREEE
7,382,000% L (= F — /< : 8,338,000
ENLIZABRELEFMBSHEER
1,846,000% T (= ZF — 73 F : 2,085,000
ETT) SR BEMEMETmE 2 ZEHG
EE R A E A E H - Bii%/E5982,399,000
Fx(ZZF—75%F:2,512,000%7T) *
2,774,000 T ( == — ;X : 3,732,000
FEJT) + 2,209,000kt (=T — X F ¢
2,094,000 70) D BB R —F N - ME R
W =Z2RAFREIL-

Iz &
REBRERBEEEERMNNA - £
ERERAERMIEXER BIEZHER
WBAREE KR RITRER-HE—
T—+t+FR-ZTE-XF+-A=+—AL
FEER 2 WE D B A322,805,000% 7T
%327,640,0003 7 ©
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22 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET 22 Hfuws (B#R) — 88
2017 2016
—Z—-+t#F ZT—RF
uss$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Net exchange gains/(losses) B3 e (EIB) F5E 647 (1,102)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BEREREZ
plant and equipment E1E (340) (176)
Impairment of property, M BRE R ERERNRE
plant and equipment (Note 7) (BF3E7) - (2,882)
Impairment of amount due from the JRE U BT B8 B FEHE AR
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary W 2 FIERE (847) -
Sales of scrap materials REERIEE 596 501
Government grant BT 6 B 392 -
Others HAt 487 (431)
935 (4,090)
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23 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution

23 RUEESFAZAX
HEKA &R RS RITHRFA T

expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BREZAZSWOAT
2017 2016
—E—tF T —RF
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Changes in inventories and FEKERERERE
consumables used (Note 13) (FF3E13) 202,763 196,996
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) & & A # 1 (K5E9) 134 133
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) 1 {55 PR 5H (BT 5E6) 61 61
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BRI B &
— Audit services —ZER 345 320
- Non-audit services — IR BUR 115 5
Depreciation on property, ME - BERRBITE
plant and equipment (Note 7) (FH&E7) 18,170 18,475
Operating leases expenses in respect of FEAE L EEHENZ
leasehold land 3 294 305
Employee benefit expenses (Note 28) EERAFZ (M5E28) 35,097 36,973
Provision for impairment of trade FEWE SR FOR B R
receivables (Note 14) (FiE14) 125 33
Technical support fee (Note 34(b)) BTz & & (M7E34(b)) 2,181 2,156
Travelling expenses ERAEZ 1,484 1,486
Transportation expenses RiBA X 9,400 8,893
Advertising expenses BEERAX 2,962 3,147
Other expenses EmF X 27,555 25,887
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution  $5&E R A « $5E Ko 555
expenses and administrative expenses Y RITHREY 258 300,686 294,870
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24

25

FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS) - NET 24 HBERA(XH) —2#
2017 2016
—E—t& —T—RF
uUs$’000 Us$'o00
FEx FET
Finance income B A 853 686
Interest expense on bank borrowings HITEENERX (812) (900)
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying B EBEREEERNMEFIE
assets (Note 7) (FF&E7) 143 25
Discounting effect on non-current other FE I B H th JE WA 2
receivable (Note) WIRFZ (M) (135) -
Finance costs B 7% S (804) (875)
Finance income/(costs) — net R A ()
—F 5 49 (189)

Note:

On 22 February 2017, Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited
entered into an agreement with an independent third party, to dispose
of its property, plant and equipment of Ha Tinh plant at a consideration
of US$3,400,000. The transaction was completed during this year.

According to the payment schedule in the agreement, the outstanding
balance as at 31 December 2017 of US$2,040,000 is repayable in the
amount of US$680,000, US$680,000 and US$680,000 in 2018, 2019
and 2020, respectively. The balance is non-interest bearing.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates.

25

FsE

R_E—+tF A+ %FH(Hm)KH
ERARE-RBIE =L —BRE A
3,400,000% L 2 RE L E A EME Y - K
EREE ZRHRANFETRK

Bz REER RZE—tF+=
A=+—BZHKEE#2,040,000ETTER
“EN\FE ZF-NAER_ZF_TFEHHE
680,000 JT * 680,000 7T }2680,0003 T °

Fr8MAX
it F 2 BABLF A ERTOS AR A K
BEMEBRRZRITHETE-
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25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 25

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

FrisBA (#§)
RERA Wt KRR 2 TSR & RS

2017 2016

—E—tf —T—xf

Us$’000 Us$'000

SPEw FET

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") XS 4,592 6,993
Under-provision of income tax BETFEMEHBENR

in previous years 131 12

Total current tax BVHAR IE 4 A 4,723 7,005

Deferred income tax (Note 20) EIEFTBR (M5E20) (153) (762)

4,570 6,243

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the applicable tax rate for Vietnam Vedan, which is a major

ZER B RET TS B AT & R B PR S B B w5
RAALER T 2ME Q7 B K8 E A
BMEMAENERHEANE HHNWT

subsidiary of the Group, as follows:

2017 2016

—EB—tF —T—KRF

Us$’000 Us$'000

TXEx FET

Profit before tax B 7 B i ) 23,308 28,476
Tax calculated at tax rate of 15% B15% 2 HEFE 2R IE

(2016: 15%) (ZZE—XRF:15%) 3,496 4,271

Tax effects of different tax rates TRMEZ B2 1,132 1,249

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes G L d =3 204 683

Income not subject to tax HARTEA (11) -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax A A AERN G EE

losses (672) (220)

Under-provision in prior years RBAFETBEE 131 12
Tax losses for which no deferred income WEBRELEMSHEE

tax asset was recognised 2B EE 290 248

Tax charge HIA S H 4,570 6,243

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.

184 vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk BIB: (328%) AR AT

EEFTSBIZ TS R |EEE RN E
BBt AT a0 B 78 SR S AT 105 B I 2
B LA



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

RE M B EmERME
25 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 25 FABRAX (&)
(i) Vietnam (i) M
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operations in B A BRI E T Al B FTETE - AR
Vietnam is 15%, which is an incentive tax rate offered SECHENEBNERCEMS
by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated in the & 7315% B R 7 mE BUN A
subsidiary’s investment license. ETHWESRRE.
(ii) The PRC (i) HE
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operation in the AEEEPENEBOHBEAEEMR
PRC is 25%. S E /25% °
(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong (i) FmgE,EE
No Singapore/Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as B AR &R B R AN 6 2 3 A TR T IR
the Group had no estimated assessable profit arising in or M BRI ES T ERTAF -
derived from Singapore and Hong Kong during the year. B I NP 4 1F 5T N3 B/ B RS FE
B o
(iv) Taiwan (iv) &%
The applicable EIT rate for the Group's operations in AEEEREMNEBRNBERALEMR
Taiwan is 17%. [FRERI1T% °
26 DIVIDENDS 26 KR
A final dividend of US$12,740,000 that relates to the year FRBEzE_Z—R"RF+t-_A=+—H1It
ended 31 December 2016 declared in 23 May 2017 and was FE 7R E12,740,000 TR - F
paid in 2017 (2016: US$4,583,000). —+tFRAZFT=ZHEREA-_ZT—+t
FFUAXNN (ZF —7X%F :4,583,000%
TT) e
The interim dividends paid in 2017 was US$4,675,000 (0.307 RZE-—+EtFINHFEHRER
US cents per share) (2016: US$9,761,000, 0.641 US cents 4,675,000% 7T (& f20.307F L) (==
per share). A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 — X% :9,761,000% T (FM%0.641%
December 2017 of 0.443 US cents per share, amounting W)) $R=—T—-—N\NFRAZ+=BH
to a total dividend of US$6,750,000, is to be proposed for THRFEAFAE LRZUEMENE
approval at the annual general meeting on 23 May 2018. These EEZ—+tHFT_A=T—BILEFED
consolidated financial information do not reflect this dividend KRB BEAR0.443F - IR E B E
payable. 6,750,000% 7T, © s Fr & M I E B R
MRS -
2017 2016
—E—t#F —E-RF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Interim dividend paid of 0.307 US cents A H P AR B AR
(2016: 0.641 US cents) per ordinary &/ A%0.307E1L
share (ZZE—REF:
0.641311) 4,675 9,761
Proposed final dividend of 0.443 US cents  #/R & BA A% B & I
(2016: 0.837 US cents) per ordinary T BA%0.443E 1L
share (ZE—RF:
0.8371) 6,750 12,740
11,425 22,501
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27 EARNINGS PER SHARE 27 SEEF
(a) Basic (a) EX

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the

BREABNRARBEER ARG
i MR A A 2 31T B @ AR

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FHEETE -
during the year.
2017 2016
—Z—+tfF AN S
Profit attributable to owners of RRRHEE AEL
the Company (US$'000) wmA (F3ETT) 19,061 22,501
Weighted average number BE 1T E W AR A AN
of ordinary shares in issue FHE(FR)
(thousands) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic earnings per share BREREF
(US cents per share) (FREZEA) 1.25 1.48
(b) Diluted (b) #8

Diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings per
share as there are no dilutive instruments for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

HE-_Z—+tFR-_ZFT—RF+=
A=+—HLFE BARITESEST
B ek ERNEGRERRT
LEIGTE

28 ERBHAXZ (BEESHFH)

2017 2016

e

Us$‘000 Us$'000

FX5t FET

Wages, basic salaries and allowances TE R RERM 28,128 29,462

Directors’ bonus (Note 30) BEIAL (MFE30) 1,921 2,515
Pension costs — defined contribution plans R K& A

— MR E 2,649 2,681

Other employee benefits EihiE B &R 2,399 2,315

35,097 36,973
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29 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 29 EHBEFIEE
As stipulated by the labour laws in Vietnam, the Group BEOHEBERRT NEEBRARZ
operates defined benefit pension plans for its employees in EENFTZA=T—HIAFERSE
Vietnam employed on or before 31 December 2008. The HEESRHTHEBRMNRAKSTE -ZFE
provision is determined based on the employees’ years of BUEEBR-_EENE+=_A=+—H2
services as at 31 December 2008 and their average monthly PR 7% 4 B e B 1% AR 7 B EA BT 7518 A HAfE &Y
salary for the six-month period prior to the last service day. FHRAFED -
2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZT—RF
Us$’000 US$'000
FTEx FET
As at 1 January w—HA—H 1,386 1,230
Current service cost BIVHA AR 75 7 52 176 253
Payments NS (115) (97)
As at 31 December Rt+t—_A=+—8H 1,447 1,386
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FERNFERERKRNT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
Us$’000 US$'000
TEx FET
Discount rate Prif = 9% 9%
Salary growth rate TEIERXK 3.0% - 8.0% 3.0% -7.9%
Expected years of service remaining T8 A 5 4 AR 75 SF PR 14-18 years4 14 -19 yearsfF
Pursuant to the Law on Social Insurance in Vietnam effective BER_ZETZNF-A—BRERZHE
from 1 January 2009, the Group is required to contribute to HeRkE AEEELEUMESRE
a state-sponsored employees’ social insurance scheme for its REBZEEMERBEFEELHK R
employees in Vietnam. The Group has no further payment ERZEHFTE FNEEREEMNRE
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The F-ZERFRIPBEINESERAEEER
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when FMBFAE o

they are due.
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EFERINRER(FEBLEIEH (5
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 6228 ) 3831 AF (HBEESF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE S8FH)HM (F622GE)REE L
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF B EWE)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES)
(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) ESRERITBABZ#HSE
The remuneration of every director and the chief FEEZERSAITHRAE ZEHHEH
executive is set out below: wms
For the year ended 31 December 2017: BE-ZF—+t&+=-A=+—HL
FE:
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits  contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind aretirement  or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b)  benefit scheme undertakings Total
RESRE
ERANTY
B HHEARBHEN
Fe EHERRNERN ERAERHE  EpBHEAD
Name of Director j £33 He (Hita) mERL (Hf3th) s ERzEf#HE EH
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
Ry REY RV TEn Tin Tin Ry
Executive Director HTES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BREESE 1 343 572 15 - - 931
Mr. Yang, Cheng BEXE - - - 14 - - 14
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ) #5344 (fitEc) - 380 549 15 - - 944
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 181 400 15 - - 596
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou L E bt - 181 400 15 - - 596
Non-executive Director F9TES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng BBREE - - - 1% - - 14
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung BREELE 1 - - 14 - - 15
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BEREE 3 - - 1% - - 17
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray BREEEE 2 - - 14 - - 16
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa EEE St 1 - - 14 - - 15
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen AkEEE 2 - - 1% - - 16
Total ek 10 1,085 1,921 158 - - 3174
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EFERIRES(FHLAVEN ($
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622K )E383§ AT (HBEEF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE SEF)HA ($622GE)REFEL
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF THRAUBREWHS) ()

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERERTHRAEZHME (E)
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016: BE-ZE-—R"E+=-A=+—-HL
FE:

Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable

in respect

of director's
other services
in connection

with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind a retirement or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
REFRL
EBARAL
Exm HEMBAREBH
Fia ERRENEN ERENHE  EpBHEMN
Name of Director 32 e (fizta) [ilpza (Bi&EDb) e RRzEREHE At
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000 US§'000
e FEn RET REI RE FEn e
Executive Director HTES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BREEEE 1 338 750 15 - - 1,104
Mr. Yang, Cheng BERE - 16 - 14 - - 30
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ¢) #5383 5 & (fif5c) - 374 715 15 - - 1,104
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 179 525 15 - - 719
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou o3y bt - 179 525 15 - - 719
Non-executive Director FUTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng BABEREE - - - 14 - - 14
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung ERREE 1 - 1 - - 15
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong BERELE 2 - - 14 - - 16
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray REkEE 2 - - 14 - - 16
Mr. Hsieh, Lung-Fa EEE gL 1 - 14 - - 15
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen AgEEE 3 - - 14 - - 17
Total aE 10 1,086 2,515 158 - - 3,769
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
(continued)

EEHEARER (FRAFGH (H

622E )E3831&F AT (HBEEF
REH)RG (B622GE)RFEL
THRAUREHE) ()

(A)

Aggregate other emoluments paid to

EERARTRAEZHE (#)

Aggregate emoluments paid to or or receivable by directors in respect of
receivable by directors in respect of their other services in connection with
their services as directors, whether of the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiary undertakings the Company or its subsidiary undertakings Total Total
ESRERESZRE ESREELAQAY
(FRAXDAZEMNBLAZES) EMBAREBEEN
EEXNRENZAME HtRECEX NS BRzEtME LR Ch Ch
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tF “ERE —E—t% NS “E2-t% “ERE
US$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000 Us$'000
TER TEL TER TER TER TEL
3,174 3,769 - - 3,174 3,769

Note: FfsE -

(a)  Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid (a) XRNF-—RBEENHFRTEARZA
or receivable in respect of that person’s other services in TRERERARAIEWNBE AR E
connection with the management of the affairs of the 575 B8 6 H A PR 765 1 2 = 1<) ok M )
Company or its subsidiary undertakings. B & o

(b)  Allowances and benefits in kind include travelling (b) AL K B YRR B R ROE R, -

allowance.
() The director is also the CEO of the Company, no separate

disclosure in respect of the remuneration of the CEO has
been made.
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(B) Directors’ retirement benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no other
retirement benefits were paid to directors in respect of
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking
(2016: same).

(C) Directors’ termination benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no
termination benefits were paid to directors (2016: same).

(D) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no
consideration was provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services (2016: same)

(E) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings in favor of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with directors (2016: same).

30 EFRIRES (FRAFGH (%
622E ) 553831 AT (HBEEF
REAH)RG (B622GE)RFEL
TRABEHE) ()

(B) EZEENKEARN
REBEE-_ZT—tF+-_HA=+—H
IFFE TERAEERFEEEELAR
A8 E B A B K 3 S AT R A A B
BEAEMBRARER (Z2—RF:
EIE

() RIEEBERBES
REBEZE2-_ZE—+tF+=-A=+—H
IEFE - W AIE SRR
= (ZE—RF AR -

(D) HREHESEHRBEMAZ=TREMHHN
RE
RBE-Z—tFt+-_A=+—H
LEE UERREESRE A
F=ZNTRHEAEB(ZZF-XF:H
[l) o

() FEBUES ZZRSESEHNEA
BERENRZEESNAREERAS
BANER EERRAGBXSNE
5
RBE-ZF—tFt+-_A=+—H
IFFE - UEAEE IRTEFE
HEEABRERZEESENARE
BERARBAEHNER EERRK
HEHR 5 (ZZ—RF ER) -
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(F) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year (2016: same).

(G) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included five (2016: five)
executive directors; their emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above.

(H) Senior management remuneration by band
The emoluments fell within the following bands:

30 EFRIRES (FRAFGH (%
622E )E3831&% AT (HBEEF
REH)RG (B622GE)REFEL
TRABEHE) ()

(F) EERRZ RHFERSHTNEAE
s
RAFEHIAFEAEMER AR
AN AT AN B XA B A
NRAEFERNFMEAFTEA R
MEMBEARS RHHAH (ZF
—NEFER) e

(G) HEEBZEMEAL
AEBARFEANRERSMHE AL
BRAA(ZE-RF - RAB)WT
BEF REOMEER X220
[ Bk o

(H ZREBEISIEREEAEME
e RN A TEE :

Number of individuals

AE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
Emolument bands (in US$) e EE (ET)
US$80,001 — US$105,000 80,0013 7T
- 105,000 7T 2 2
US$105,001 — US$130,000 105,001 70
- 130,000% 7T 4 4
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31 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash generated from operations

31 BReERERH
(a) XBELEZHE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
us$‘000 Us$'000
FX5t FET
Profit before income tax B P 15 %1 Al ) 23,308 28,476
Adjustments for: BUATIEE A
— Finance (income)/costs =B (A,
- net (Note 24) — %78 (MH5E24) (49) 189
— Share of post tax (profit)/ —EhEE AT
loss of an associate (Note 11) Btk CaF)
& B (HizE11) (205) 15
— Depreciation of property, —-ME- KB &
plant and equipment (Note 7) HBITE (MFE7) 18,170 18,475
— Provision for impairment of — W E 5 RFORE
trade receivables (Note 14) BiE (MsE14) 125 33
— Amortisation of intangible assets —mEEEH
(Note 9) (KEE9) 134 133
— Amortisation of land use rights — b {5 PR R 6Y
(Note 6) (KtzEe) 61 61
— Impairment of property, —-ME- KRB &
plant and equipment BERE (H5E22)
(Note 22) - 2,882
— Impairment of amount due from —El—RERBARZ
the non-controlling interest of PRI T IR 2
a subsidiary (Note 22) WA (FIFE22) 847 -
— Loss on disposal of property, —EEWE- -KE R
plant and equipment BB KB
(see below) (RTx) 340 176
42,731 50,440
Change in working capital (excluding 2E&&EH)
the effects of exchange differences (REtfrEREEAZ
on consolidation) fEH ZEyE)
- Inventories —FE (17,586) 14,755
— Trade receivables, prepayments —EBRESER
and other receivables T8 FRIE
HoAth e Y kI 591 (1,015)
— Trade payables, accruals and —EREZER.
other payables st B R &
H i & 508 (4,597) 9,770
- Net changes in balances with —EEMEQTRIELZ
related companies BENFE 582 (121)
Cash generated from operations XBEEZES 21,721 73,829
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31 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 31 BeaR=8H(#E)
(a) Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) ¥XKELEHE (H&)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds EFReRenexN HEWE B
from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise: BR&EEZFERIERNT
2017 2016
—Z—-+tF ZT—RF
US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Net book amount (Note 7) BREDFE (MFE7) 489 238
Loss on disposal of property, HEME WEREREZ
plant and equipment (Note 22) E 18 (MI7E22) (340) (176)

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BERREZ

plant and equipment FriS 8 149 62
(b) Net debt reconciliation (b) BEXFHYER
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the REHINRE 25 B 2 EBHFE
movements in net debt for each of the periods presented. AT RE FEEE -
Net debt B FE
2017 2016
—E—+tfF ZE—RF
Us$’000 Us$'000
TXEx FET
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEED 49,679 55,210
Bank borrowings — repayable RITIER-—R—FANER
within one year (15,906) (12,620)
Bank borrowings — repayable HITER R —FREE
after one year (19,491) (24,190)
Net debt B F5 14,282 18,400
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 49,679 55,210
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BEesE—EER R (17,970) (26,599)
Gross debt — variable interest rates ESEE - 2EF R (17,427) (10,211)
Net debt (EErEE-E] 14,282 18,400
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e MBERRME
31 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) 31 BHeaR=E8H(#E)
(b) Net debt reconciliation (continued) (b) BEXRFHEZHIR (&)
Liabilities from
Assets financing activities
BE REMETBH2EE
Bank Bank
Cash  borrowings  borrowings
and cash due within due after
equivalents 1 year 1 year Total
Bek R—FREH R-FEIB
BeEEY 2RTER ZBITEX =
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
FEr FET FET FErx
Net debt as at R-ZZE—-XRE—-f—
1 January 2016 AZEXFHE 44,190 (23,113) (28,613) (7,536)
Cash flows RBeERsE 11,829 14,916 - 26,745
Foreign exchange HNE 2
adjustments (809) - - (809)
Other non-cash movement Hih3EReEH - (4,423) 4,423 -
Net debt as at R-ZZE—XRF
31 December 2016 +=ZA=+-H
ZEBEBEHE 55,210 (12,620) (24,190) 18,400
Cash flows Reng (6,462) 5,036 (3,623) (5,049)
Foreign exchange SN FE B
adjustments 931 - - 931
Other non-cash movement HtER e &5 - (8,322) 8,322 -
Net debt as at RZIZE—+F
31 December 2017 +=ZA=+-H
ZEBFE 49,679 (15,906) (19,491) 14,282
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32 COMMITMENTS 32 KiE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EXEIE
The Group's capital expenditure contracted for at the end REERREMRDTHERESE
of the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows: ZERXZHMAT
2017 2016
—Z—+tF ZT—RF
Us$°000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Contracted but not provided for ERT A B R B E
Property, plant and equipment Y BB MR 1,864 1,043
Investment in an associate REEEABZIE 2,632 2,632
4,496 3,675
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) RERHRIE
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease REBRBIATHESCLHOER
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as RRZ MO REBERBERBOT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—t#F A S
Us$’000 Us$'000
TEx FET
No later than one year —F A 139 305
Later than one year and no later than —F&EBRHFR
five years 422 809
Later than five years HF1% 2,032 2,138
2,593 3,252
33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33 HRAR
At 31 December 2017, the Company has given guarantees for RZE—tF+-A=+—H AQAA
bank facilities of subsidiaries amounting to US$120,426,000 BB AR AE8120,426,0005 70 ( =T —7X
(2016: US$128,462,000), of which US$74,249,000 (2016: 128,462,000 7T ) ZSRITRVE R L2
US$83,946,000) has not been utilised. R HH74,249,000F T (ZF—/~NF:

83,946,000% 7T ) M A BN °
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is the Yang Family,
whose members are Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng,
Yang, Yung-Huang, Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Kun-Chou, Yang,
Yung-Jen, Yang, Chen-Wen, Yang, Wen-Hu, Yang, Tung, Ms.
Yang, Wen-Yin, Ms. Yang, Shu-Hui and Ms. Yang, Shu-Mei.

(a)

(b)

The table below summarises the related parties and
nature of their relationship with the Group as at 31

December 2017:

Related party
FBHEAL

3 FREALES

REBSERERTAGRRE HKER
IEGEESAE  BIERE - BKIEEAE 15
WS A M A KL E  BR
X EBIXURSE BRI E BB
T BREZ T RIGRIE T

(a) TEBUEN-—Z—tF+_-F5
Z—t—BzE@EALRHEEANE
ER RS :

Relationship with the Group
B 7K £ [ ) BR 1R

Vedan Enterprise CORP (”Taiwan Vedan")
KA ERNDBERRAR
Dacin International Holdings Ltd.

MBI RER A A

Capron Group Limited
Capron Group Limited

R

A substantial shareholder of the Company

ARBHEERR

An associate of the Group

N SN0

A company commonly controlled by the Yang Family
—fR BB RRELRZESZ AR

Significant related party transactions, which were carried
out in the normal course of the Group's business, are as

follows:

(b) EAXAKEHAEXHEETETHNE
REBMEALZZWT :

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Note Uss$‘000 Us$'000
b= FEx FET
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan mEEKSEHEE SR (i) 5,901 6,164
Technical support fee paid to BN SRR
Taiwan Vedan RS (ii) 2,181 2,156
Agency commission income M & IR R EL
received from Taiwan Vedan REASWA (i) 4 6
Notes: B & -
(i In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to (i) ARAREERE MABEALE

the related party were conducted in the normal course of

business.

(ii) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
transactions were carried out in the normal course of

business and the fees are charged in accordance with the

terms of underlying agreements.

2 AR B BB
e
(i) ARTEERA RIRPEAR

X BRR T X ERBEBR
AR E -
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

34

Key management compensation (9]
The compensation paid or payable to key management,

including all executive directors and senior management,

for employee services is shown below.

FREALES ()

TEEEAEHE
REERBENAEBNTEIZEEA
B(BEMERTEERERER
E)Z2HMEFN T -

2017 2016
—Z—+tF —E-RF
US$‘000 Us$'000
FEx FET
Salaries and other short-term Tk EMEHESRA
employee benefits 3,903 4,464
Year-end balances with the related parties (d HEBEALZFERER

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had the following
significant balances with the related parties:

RZFB—tF+_A=1+—R K&
BERBEBEANLZTEHEBROT:

2017 2016
—E—t#F T —RF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
B 5 SPESTE FET
Current: BIHR :
Amount due to Taiwan Vedan R BB K 2 5E (i) (1,405) (806)
Short term loan to an associate BTBERAZ
BEE R (i) 120 120
Amount due to Capron Group Jf& 15 Capron Group
Limited Limited 2 X I8 (iii) (13) (30)
Notes: MfsT -

(i) All balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of payment.

(i) The short-term loan to an associate is unsecured, bears
interest at 4% per annum, denominated in US$ and is
repayable on demand.

(iii)  The balance with Capron Group Limited is unsecured,
interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable within
one year.
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35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 35

THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

FAFIREARRREMED

ARAREERER

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2017 2016
—E—+tF T —RF
Note uUss$‘000 Us$'000
B 5 SEE FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRRZKE 166,030 166,030
Investment in an associate REgE QT 2" E 3,788 3,788
Loan to a subsidiary HTHBRRZER 2,200 2,200
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 172,018 172,018
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries & W B B8 A R R R 49,111 68,421
Short-term loan to an associate 4T RN B 2 BB K 120 120
Prepayments and other receivables T8 < 5018 2 H Ath fE R 678 733
Short-term bank deposits RHRITER 1,928 19,816
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEY 14,555 1,928
Total current assets RBEEHAE 66,392 91,018
Total assets EEHAE 238,410 263,036
EQUITY En
Equity attributable to owners RRBIER AEIG#ER
of the Company
Share capital & 7 15,228 15,228
Reserves ®iE (Note (a))
(%)) 218,874 243,516
Total equity ERAE 234,102 258,744
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35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 35 XAFESEARRREMEE (F)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued) EAREEEER (&)

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
k=g FEx FE7T
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FERT 8 A & H Ath FEA 3R 3,291 3,714
Bank borrowings HRITEE 670 465
Amount due to a related party JEBERBEALTREA 347 113
Total current liabilities REBAELARE 4,308 4,292
Total equity and liabilities ERREEREE 238,410 263,036
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board KRREEABREEEZTEN_E—N
of Directors on 27 March 2018 and were signed on its behalf. FZRAZtEAEMI A TIATREKE
=,
Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang
SRR B
Director Director
EE EE

200 vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk BB (328%) AR A



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M RRME

35

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 35 XNFEEABAERREREH ()
THE COMPANY (continued)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) rRAREEEER (&)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company MIaE(@) AR R E B E &
Share Exchange Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
B’ 19 % 18 BN fEE REER ]
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2016 HNZZE—AR"F—A—H 194,098 (151) 12,174 206,121
Comprehensive income 2EBA
Profit for the year NG - - 51,719 51,719
Other comprehensive income HtZEUK A
Currency translation difference  [E ¥ =% - 20 - 20
Total comprehensive income Z2HEWR AL - 20 51,719 51,739
Dividends paid AT S - - (14,344) (14,344)
At 31 December 2016 RIZE—RF
+=-—A=+—8H 194,098 (131) 49,549 243,516
At 1 January 2017 HNZZE—+F—H—H 194,098 (131) 49,549 243,516
Comprehensive loss 2HEEE
Loss for the year REEEE - - (7,332) (7,332)
Other comprehensive income HfthZ2HEWK A
Currency translation difference  [E X =% - 105 - 105
Total comprehensive income/ ZMEWA  (EE)BAHE
(loss) - 105 (7,332) (7,227)
Dividends paid AR S - - (17,415) (17,415)
At 31 December 2017 RIZE—+F
+=-—A=+—8H 194,098 (26) 24,802 218,874
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFEUBME

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31

BE+-RA=1+—HLFEFSXE

DECEMBER
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—ttF —ZT—RF —T—hHF T—NWNF —T—=F
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 USs$'000
FEx FET FET FET FET
Revenue Uy & 322,805 327,640 327,821 325,627 342,453
Profit/(loss) before B FT 1S H5 A1l
income tax mA (EE) 23,308 28,476 15,878 (1,496) 2,522
Income tax expense FTiS %t (4,570) (6,243) (4,048) (1,432) (1,794)
Profit/(loss) attributable  Z< A &
to owners of wAa A
the Company FEAE =
(E58) 19,061 22,501 12,095 (2,434) 1,488
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31 B+-BA=+—HGBEEERER
DECEMBER
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tF —T—RF ET—RHF ZET—WF ZT—=F
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
FEx FETT FETT FET FET
Assets and liabilities EENEE
Total assets EERE 358,459 356,790 356,629 378,440 352,670
Total liabilities BERTE (75,876) (77,584) (83,179) (111,341) (82,513)
Total equity T 282,583 279,206 273,450 267,099 270,157
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Reference for Shareholders

Place of Listing

Main Board of

Hong Kong Stock Exchange (“HKEx")

Stock Code
HKEXx 02317
Access to Bloomberg 2317 HK Equity
Access to Reuters 2317.HK
Board Lot 4,000
Par Value Us$0.01
Trading Currency HKD

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Financial year ended

Full year results announced
Annual general meeting

Interim results to be announced

* subject to change

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

31 December 2017
27 March 2018

23 May 2018

In the last week of

August 2018*

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the

Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Telephone : (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile : (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company's shares should notify the Hong Kong
branch share registrars promptly of any change of addresses.

Nsni:il BB FTER
B85 55

B 22 BT 02317

ZIBhRE 2317 HK Equity

PR B AL AR 2317 .HK
BEE®BM 4,000
mE 0.01% T
R EH BT
BBETEE
E2FEREFE —E—+HE+-A=+—H
EFEBENMH —E-NE=A-++H
BRAFAZ —ZE-NEFERAZ+=H
FHEIEE N —E-NENR

&% — A28

* HERE
B RAR T

EOBEBARNHBE RERZER  FHERRE
ZEBEMBFELSE:

BEEREBERAT
HE

2R KNER183%

AR L2218

E:E ¢ (852) 2980 1768
fHE : (852) 2528 3158

FERRRRMD 2 AL BEXUBU - FRRE
MEBBEMBEELDE -
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Investor Relations

REEBR

Over the years, the Group has been committed to maintaining close
contact and good communication with investors in a professional
and open manner to collect more information and valuable opinions,
as well as providing timely disclosure of its business strategies and
directions of the Group, so as to enhance corporate governance while
strengthening investor confidence.

During the year under review, the management team had regular
meetings and conference calls with investors in Hong Kong and
was proactive in dispatching the latest information of its business
to investors. Information about an environmental issue related
to its Vietnam operation was relayed to investors. This is in line
with the Group’'s commitment to keep up open and transparent
communication as well as ensuring that investors fully understand its
operations in order for them to make sound investment decisions.

Vedan International places strong emphasis of maintaining good
investor relations. During the year under review, the Group hosted
a total of 29 one-on-one meetings and teleconferences with major
international institutional investors including J.P. Morgan, Deutsche
Bank, Guotai Junan Securities, CIMB Securities and Value Partners,
among others, employing all the different important channels to
nurture good investor relations.

In addition, the Group constantly interacts with investors via its
corporate website. During the year, the Group has posted its
announcements, annual and interim reports, and all relevant
disclosures and circulars on its website promptly for the convenient
access and reference by investors. The Company website address is:
http://www.vedaninternational.com

Vedan welcomes all opinions and suggestions from investors.
The e-mail address of its investor relations department is
vdi@vedaninternational.com
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